
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
· MEETING·

Monday, April 22, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

(Scheduled to be broadcast on Channel 16) 

City Council: Mayor Rafferty, Councilmembers Cavegn, Lyden, Ruhland and Stoesz 
City Administrator:  Sarah Cotton 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION, 6:00 P.M. 

Community Room (not televised) 

1. Review Regular Agenda

CITY COUNCIL MEETING, 6:30 P.M. 

 Call to Order and Roll Call

 Pledge of Allegiance

 Public Comment (sign-in prior to start of meeting per Rules of Decorum)

 Setting the Agenda: Addition or deletion of agenda items

PROCLAMATION/SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

Arbor Day Proclamation 
Public Safety Life Saving Award Presentation 

1. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Consider Approval of Expenditures for April 22, 2024 (Check No. 120553 through
120635) in the Amount of $669,949.91

B. Consider Approval of March 25, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes

C. Consider Approval of April 8, 2024 Work Session Minutes

D. Consider Approval of April 8, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes

E. Consider Approval of the Hiring of Part-Time Staff for the Rookery Activity Center

2. FINANCE DEPARTMENT REPORT

No Report

3. ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT REPORT

No Report

4. PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT REPORT

No Report

1



Council Agenda -2- April 22, 2024 

5. PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT REPORT

A. Consider Resolution No. 24-22, Accepting Quotes and Awarding a Construction 
Contract, 2024 Trail Maintenance Project, Veronica Kubicek WSB Project Engineer

6. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT REPORT

A. Consider Resolution No. 24-44, Approving Centerville Lake Alum Treatment Cost-Share 
Agreement with Rice Creek Watershed District, Andy Nelson

B. Consider Resolution No. 24-42, Accepting Quotes and Awarding a Contract for 2024 
Spring Boulevard Tree Planting, Andy Nelson

C. Consider Resolution No. 24-37, Accepting Bids and Awarding a Construction Contract, 
2024 Rejuvenator Project, Veronica Kubicek WSB Project Engineer

D. Consider Resolution No. 24-38, Approving the CSAH 49/CRJ Reconstruction Project 
Joint Powers Agreement with the City of Shoreview, Michael Grochala

E. Consider Resolution No. 24-39, Ordering Project, Approving Plans, Authorizing Ad For 
Bids, Decorative Lighting for the CSAH 49/CRJ Roundabout Project, Michael Grochala

F. 440 Park Court (Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility), Katie Larsen

i. Consider Resolution No. 24-34 Approving Conditional Use Permit for Two (2) or 
More Principal Buildings

ii. Consider Resolution No. 24-35 Approving Parking Deferment Agreement

iii. Consider Resolution No. 24-36 Approving Site Improvement Performance 
Agreement

G. Jansen Addition, Katie Larsen

i. Consider Resolution No. 24-40 Approving Final Plat

ii. Consider Resolution No. 24-41 Approving Development Agreement

H. Water Treatment Plant Funding, Michael Grochala

i. Consider Resolution No. 24-43, Authorizing Minnesota Public Facilities Authority 
Application for Water Treatment Plant Grant Agreement

ii. Consider Resolution No. 24-45, Authorizing Minnesota Public Facilities Authority 
Application for Water Treatment Plant Loan Agreement

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None

8. NEW BUSINESS

None

Adjournment 

2



Council Agenda -3- April 22, 2024 

Community Calendar – A Look Ahead 
April 23, 2024 through May 6, 2024 

• Wednesday, April 24: Environmental Board Meeting
• Monday, April 29: Special City Council Work Session
• Monday, May 6: Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Meeting
• Monday, May 6: City Council Work Session

3



 
 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
ARBOR DAY - TREE CITY USA 

 
WHEREAS,  Arbor Day provides an opportunity to celebrate the importance of trees 

and forests to our economy, culture, history, and future of the state; and 
  
WHEREAS,  Trees are of great value as they provide clean air and water, shade and 

energy savings, wildlife habitat, recreational opportunities, wood products, 
and jobs, while also capturing and storing carbon from the atmosphere, 
thereby offsetting greenhouse gas emissions; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Properly planting and caring for a diverse mix of trees makes community 

forests more resilient by minimizing the impacts of diseases, insects, and 
other stressors and providing long-term community environmental 
benefits; and 

 
WHEREAS, Thoughtfully choosing, planting, and caring for a diverse mix of trees now 

supports resilient communities into the future.   
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Rob Rafferty, Mayor of the City of Lino Lakes, do hereby proclaim 
Friday, April 26th, 2024 as Arbor Day in the City of Lino Lakes. 
 
 
Dated the 22nd day of April, 2024 
 
 
 _______________________________ 

Rob Rafferty, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Attest: Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

4



+  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Expenditures 
April 22, 2024 

 
 
 

 

Check #120553 to #120635 

$669,949.91 

 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



Electronic Funds Transfer
    MN Statute 471.38 Subd. 3

Council Meeting April 22, 2024 Transfer In/(Out)

4/3/2024 H.S.A. Employer Contribution (5,791.52)             
4/10/2024 Transfer from FRB Money Market 250,000.00          
4/15/2024 Bldg Permit Surcharge (3,176.80)             
4/19/2024 Sales & Use Tax (6,912.00)             
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 (199,141.49)         
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 Federal Deposit (57,200.63)           
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 PERA (57,857.21)           
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 State (13,013.46)           
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 Child Support (321.48)                
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 H.S.A. Bank Pretax (3,546.20)             
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 TASC Pretax (867.27)                
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 Mission Sq 457 Def. Comp #301596 (2,645.00)             
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 Mission Sq Roth IRA #706155 (939.23)                
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 MSRS HCSP #98946-01 (5,071.18)             
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 MSRS Def. Comp #98945-01 (3,035.00)             
4/12/2024 Payroll #08 MSRS Roth IRA #98945-01 (779.00)                

40



 

1 
 

LINO LAKES CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
  
DATE:     March 25, 2024 
TIME STARTED:   6:32 PM 
TIME ENDED:    7:05 PM 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Councilmembers, Lyden, Stoesz, Ruhland, Cavegn, Mayor 

Rafferty 

Staff members present: Deputy Director of Public Safety Kyle Leibel Community Development 
Director Michael Grochala; City Engineer Diane Hankee; City Clerk Jolleen Chaika. 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Rafferty at 6:32 PM.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Community Development Director Michael Grochala opened the Public Comment session with a 
statement about a project that members of the community have been discussing: Madinah Lakes. 
He advised that as of this time, no application has been received for development. If and when 
an application is received, it will be reviewed pursuant to City Code. 
 

Farraz Yussuf, 12301 Central Avenue NE, Blaine. Mr. Yussef advised he is the president of Zikar 
Holdings. He said he wished to provide context as to who he is and what values he brings to this 
endeavor (Madinah Lakes). He said that while Zikkar Holdings is newly established, he and his 
team are dedicated and experienced. He anticipates submitting a (development) application in 
the near future. Mr. Yussef also clarified that his company is separate from the prior applicant. 
He expressed a commitment to working collaboratively with staff, Council, and residents. He has 
engaged in high-level discussions and will submit the application soon. He wants to make it clear 
there are no expectations of special treatment, that there have been no special deals struck to 
move this forward. He extended an invitation to anyone to reach out to him with any questions 
or concerns. He plans to hold neighborhood meetings in the future. 

Michael Arman, 172 Glenview Avenue, said he feels like his speaking is premature as he just 
found about the new development (Madinah Lakes) an hour ago so he didn’t have much time to 
research. He has concerns: He read on the website that paperwork hasn’t been submitted but 
the (developer’s) YouTube video is already talking about ground breaking scheduled for next 
year. He thinks that sounds a bit premature as well.  

Randy Rennacker, 379 Carl Street, stated he was speaking on behalf of the residents of Carl Street 
to remind Council of the strong opposition of any development near the Carl Street 
neighborhood. He added that if any development takes place that his street and neighborhood 
remain as is. 

41



 

2 
 

Luke Walter, 7800 Marilyn Drive, said he has lived in Lino Lakes for seven (7) years. He said the 
developer (of Madinah Lakes) has put out information that is confusing and that strikes him as 
disrespectful: taking reservations and money. He said when he first read of this information, he 
thought of politicians in the 21st century making deals. Mr. Walter said he is a bit soothed by the 
responses of the City. He added that what really struck him is that the proposed project is for a 
very specific community and he has concerns with that concept, adding that it creates 
segregation not by intent but by choice. He said that if there is a possibility of an additional 1800 
residents, we need organic integration. He added that he comes from a multi-faith, diverse family 
and is an immigrant so he is looking at this from that perspective; he voiced concern for a divided 
City. 

Theresa O’Connell, 1000 Main Street, spoke on the topic of the Centerville Lake (alum) project. 
She said she has been in the area since 1987 and she is very excited about the project and she 
wanted to convince Council that moving forward with the project is in the best interest of the 
community. She estimated that the costs to residents would be approximately $0.47 per home. 

Melissa Wagner, 7947 Sheila Avenue, said she has been a resident for 38 years and her husband’s 
family has been here for over 70 years. She has witnessed organic growth at a slow and steady 
pace and now has concerns about rapid growth and the impact that will have on the schools.  

Sam Bennett, 6841 Lakeview Drive, asked of any plans by the City to gather volunteers to clean 
trash along trails and ditches. He would like to see some movement on that and believes that all 
would benefit. 

Justin Carver, 65 Century Trail, voiced concerns about the 600-foot notice (to residents for 
development projects). He does not think that provides enough impact and inquired if more 
notice could be required. He also asked if it is normal business practice (for a developer) to sell 
lots before anything is in place.  

Prior to the close of Public Comment, Mayor Rafferty advised that the Council itself has not been 
involved in any discussions related to this (Madinah Lakes) development outside of calls and 
emails recently from residents. He added that there is nothing happening right now, that the last 
discussion (related to this property) was in 2022 and that project didn’t move forward. He 
encouraged residents to sit back and wait.  

1. Motion to: Close Public Comment at 6:58 PM. 

 

 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ruhland 
SECONDER: Cavegn 
AYES: Ruhland, Cavegn, Lyden, Stoesz, Rafferty 

42



 

3 
 

 
SETTING THE AGENDA 

The agenda was accepted as presented.  

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Consider Approval of Expenditures for March 25, 2024 (Check No. 120390 through 

120482) in the Amount of $661,506.63 
B. Consider Approval of March 4, 2024 Work Session Minutes 
C. Consider Approval of March 11, 2024 Work Session Minutes 
D. Consider Approval of March 11, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 
E. Consider Approval of the Hiring of Part-Time Staff for the Rookery Activity Center 
F. Consider Approval of Resolution 24-21, Authorizing Solicitor Permit  
G. Consider Approval of Resolution 24-19, Approve Certificate of Completion, DRF Lino Eye 

Building  

i. Motion to: Approve Consent Agenda Items 1A-1G  

  

2. FINANCE DEPARTMENT  
No report was presented. 
 

3. ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT  
No report was presented. 
 

4. PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT 
No report was presented. 
 

5. PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT  
No report was presented. 
 

6. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

A. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 24-20, Order Project, Approve Plans, Authorize 
AFB, 2024 Rejuvenator Project 
City Engineer Diane Hankee reviewed the request for approval of Resolution 24-20 which 
initiates the 2024 street maintenance portion of the 2024 street rehabilitation project 
program. The Street Maintenance Project includes applying a maltene-based asphalt 
rejuvenator. Rejuvenators are a new product many Cities are using in lieu of seal coating 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Lyden 
SECONDER: Ruhland 
AYES: Lyden, Ruhland, Stoesz, Cavegn, Rafferty 

 

43



 

4 
 

the City has completed three rejuvenator projects the past. As a third project in 2024 staff 
is coordinating a crack fill project. She reviewed the areas identified for the maintenance 
project and noted that the total estimated cost is $223,000 and funding is from the 
Pavement Management Fund. 

 

i. Motion to: Approve Resolution 24-20 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Rafferty reviewed the Community Calendar as presented on the Agenda. With no further 
business before the Council, the meeting was adjourned by Mayor Rafferty at 7:05 PM. 

 

These minutes were considered and approved at the regular Council Meeting on April 22, 2024.  
 
 
 
              
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk    Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Lyden 
SECONDER: Ruhland 
AYES: Lyden, Ruhland, Stoesz, Cavegn, Rafferty 

44



 

1 
 

LINO LAKES CITY COUNCIL 
WORK SESSION 

MINUTES 
  
DATE:     April 8, 2024 
TIME STARTED:   6:00 PM 
TIME ENDED:    6:28 PM 
MEMBERS PRESENT:                 Councilmembers Stoesz, Lyden, Ruhland, Mayor Rafferty 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Councilmember Cavegn 
 
Staff Members Present: City Administrator Sarah Cotton; Finance Director Hannah Lynch; Human 
Resources and Communications Manager Meg Sawyer; Public Safety Director John Swenson; 
Community Development Director Michael Grochala; City Planner Katie Larsen; City Clerk Jolleen 
Chaika. 
 
1. Review Regular Agenda 

Mayor Rafferty reviewed the meeting agenda. Staff provided an overview of submitted staff 
reports for each agenda item. 

Prior to the conclusion of the Work Session, Mayor Rafferty brought up the prior discussion of a 
fire analysis and the public safety model as discussed at the previous two work sessions. He 
recollected that the direction was for staff to find a consultant to focus on items 3, 4, and 5 from 
the 2014 fire analysis. Councilmember Lyden clarified that he did not believe restrictions were 
placed on the direction to staff, rather, the direction was to find someone to look at (the 
situation). Mayor Rafferty recalled that Councilmember Cavegn had stated we need to look at 
how 3, 4, and 5 can work for the city. Councilmember Lyden said that (in 2014), we did this: Put 
blinders on and put constraints on the report; when we start narrowing it down, we will come up 
with the same results as before.  

Public Safety Director John Swenson reviewed the (draft) minutes and stated that his 
understanding (from direction provided on April 1, 2024) was that the question posed to him and 
the next steps should be, “How will fire service be delivered in Lino Lakes?” He advised that staff 
have assembled several requests for proposals (RFP) from other cities for similar analyses; that 
staff are continuing to gather information to put together an RFP from Lino Lakes to be submitted 
to consultants/vendors. 

Mayor Rafferty stated that back on March 1, it had been identified that Deputy Director L’Allier 
was developing a five-year plan and he wanted an update on where that plan was at. Director 
Swenson clarified that based on the direction from Council at the April 1 work session to work 
with a consultant, work on the plan has paused so that staff could focus on the RFP. Mayor 
Rafferty then stated that he wanted to see the five-year the plan as it is now to be sent out to all 
of Council by tomorrow (April 9, 2024); however, Director Swenson informed Mayor Rafferty that 
he did not believe a document was available to be sent out to Council though he will check with 
Deputy Director L’Allier to see what may be available. Mayor Rafferty then directed Director 
Swenson to have a document or update to Council by Wednesday (April 10, 2024). Mayor 
Rafferty further stated he is looking for one thing: what we need for a fire department and he 
thinks that with (L’Allier’s) experience and knowledge, he is best suited to write the report. 

45



 

2 
 

Director Swenson sought clarification of what Mayor Rafferty is seeking; Mayor Rafferty stated 
he is looking for the plan. Director Swenson will review with Deputy Director L’Allier and will 
submit to Council what is available.  

Mayor Rafferty then provided a copy of a Star Tribune article, written by Erin Adler, regarding 
the City of Shakopee and the Shakopee Fire Department and directed that it be distributed to all 
Councilmembers; a copy of the article has been attached to these minutes for inclusion in the 
record.  Mayor Rafferty commented on the contents of the article and of the consultant who 
reviewed fire services in Shakopee. He then suggested that there needs to be a split between 
police and fire and further that Dan L’Allier should be the lead in writing the RFP.  

Councilmember Lyden clarified that Shakopee has been in the news for negative reasons; Mayor 
Raffety agreed and commented that the consultant has been helpful in identifying issues. 
Councilmember Lyden the spoke of his concerns with Mayor Rafferty’s tone and stated that he 
believes Mayor Rafferty has it in for specific people, that he believes the Mayor is engaging in 
bullying tactics. Mayor Rafferty disagreed and said he is watching dollars and cents and that it is 
not about an individual. Mayor Rafferty stated that he believes Director Swenson is better suited 
as a police officer and that he does not have the knowledge and years of experience as a fire 
fighter.  Director Swenson advised that he has 32 years in police service and has experience in 
fire since 2015; that Deputy Director L’Allier has more years of experience in fire. 
 
The work session concluded at 6:28 PM.  
 
These minutes were considered and approved at the regular Council Meeting on April 22, 2024.  
 
 
              
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk    Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

 

46



 

1 
 

LINO LAKES CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
  
DATE:     April 8, 2024 
TIME STARTED:   6:32 PM 
TIME ENDED:    7:14 PM 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Councilmembers, Lyden, Stoesz, Ruhland, Mayor Rafferty 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Councilmember Cavegn 
 

Staff Members Present: City Administrator Sarah Cotton; Finance Director Hannah Lynch; Human 
Resources and Communications Manager Meg Sawyer; Public Safety Director John Swenson; 
Community Development Director Michael Grochala; City Planner Katie Larsen; City Clerk Jolleen 
Chaika. 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Rafferty at 6:32 PM.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Farraz Yussuf Mohammed, 12724 Leyte Street NE, Blaine. Mr. Mohammed came forward again 
to speak and noted that he is before Council humbly and to share his story. He noted that over 
the past weekend, members of the community became aware of his conviction 11 years ago. He 
said that it is a chapter of his life that he does not shy away from; that he did make mistakes in 
the past. He noted he served his time and paid his dues and that he has worked hard to get to 
where he is now. He said that as an entrepreneur he has faced challenges and frivolous lawsuits 
and that as a builder, he has fewer lawsuits than most. Mr. Mohammed said he finds himself at 
the forefront of his venture, Madinah Lakes, and that he is aware that there are those who are 
seeking to use his past to undermine his efforts and to cast doubt on his integrity. He said that 
Zikkar Holdings will continue forward and asked that Council evaluate the project on its merits 
and what he sees as potential benefits for the City. He asked for open minds and thoughtful 
consideration. He advised he remains available to the community for questions or concerns 
regarding both his past and the proposed development.  

Dr. Sara Shady, 7668 Palomino Lane, advised that she and her husband have lived in Lino Lakes 
for 22 years and have raised their sons here. She said she is a professor at Bethel University where 
she also serves as Associate Dean of Academic Inclusive Excellence. She has focused her life’s 
work on building bridges across religious, ethnic, and racial divides. She spoke in support of the 
Madinah Lakes community. She said that she and her husband met with Farraz (Yussef 
Mohammed) about the project; she is excited about the project and what it will bring to the City. 
She referenced misinformed opinions about the development and noted she believes the City 
will benefit from the development. Dr. Shady encouraged the public to refrain from rejecting 

47



 

2 
 

factual information about the development and to educate themselves with facts. She also 
encouraged the community to meet with Mr. Mohammed rather then spread misinformation 
and dig into his past. She does not believe any other developers who have proposed development 
in the City have been subjected to the same level of scrutiny. She said that after the application 
is submitted to the City, there will be opportunities for the community to obtain factual 
information and to provide feedback on it. She again encouraged the community to reach out to 
the developer and noted that residents on Carl Street did so; the meeting resulted in changes to 
the plan. She is dismayed at the levels of hate, suspicion, and levels of disinformation being 
spread in the community.  

1. Motion to: Close Public Comment at 6:42 PM. 

 
SETTING THE AGENDA 

1. Motion to remove Item 1C for further review and consideration at a future meeting. 

 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Consider Approval of Expenditures for April 8, 2024 (Check No. 120483 through 120552) 

in the Amount of $266,972.48 
B. Consider Approval of March 25, 2024 Work Session Minutes 
C. Consider Approval of March 25, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes  
D. Consider Approval of April 1, 2024 Council Work Session Minutes 
E. Consider Resolution No. 24-31, Authorizing the Appointment of Hannah Lynch as Interim 

City Clerk    
F. Consider Resolution 24-32, Approving a Solicitor Permit for Edward Jones  
G. Consider Approval of the Hiring of Part-Time Staff for the Rookery Activity Center  
H. Consider Resolution 24-33, Approving a Special Event Permit for Rice Lake Elementary 

PTO 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ruhland 
SECONDER: Lyden 
AYES: Ruhland, Lyden, Stoesz, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ruhland 
SECONDER: Stoesz 
AYES: Ruhland, Stoesz, Lyden, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

48



 

3 
 

i. Motion to: Approve Consent Agenda Items 1A - 1B and ID-1H  

  

2. FINANCE DEPARTMENT  

A. Consider Resolution No. 24-28, Approving BS&A Software 

City Finance Director Hannah Lynch reviewed the proposal to move forward with new ERP 
software through BS&A as discussed at several recent work sessions.  

i. Motion to: Approve Resolution 24-28  

 

3. ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT  
A. Consider Appointment of Activity Center Coordinator 

Human Resources and Communications Manager Meg Sawyer presented a 
recommendation to appoint Mikaela Bagley as Activity Center Coordinator. 
 

i. Motion to: Approve Appointment of Mikaela Bagley as Activity Center Coordinator 
(Aquatics) 

 
4. PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT 

A. Approval of Resolution 24-26, Authorizing Grant Agreement for the 2024 Intensive 
Comprehensive Peace Officer Education and Training Grant 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ruhland 
SECONDER: Lyden 
AYES: Ruhland, Lyden, Stoesz, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Lyden 
SECONDER: Stoesz 
AYES: Lyden, Stoesz, Ruhland, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

 
 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ruhland 
SECONDER: Stoesz 
AYES: Ruhland, Stoesz, Lyden, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

 

49



 

4 
 

Public Safety Director John Swenson requested consideration of Resolution 24-26; he 
reviewed the background of the grant and advised the purpose of of the grant is to 
address the shortage of law enforcement professionals.  

i. Motion to: Approve Resolution 24-26 Authorizing Grant Agreement for the 2024 
Intensive Comprehensive Peace Officer Education and Training Grant 

 
B. Approval of Resolution 24-27, Authorizing Grant Agreement for the 2024 Pathways to 

Policing Reimbursement Grant 
Public Safety Director John Swenson requested consideration of Res. 24-27; he reviewed 
the background of the grant, which has been around several years; this grant is designed 
to increase the applicant pool for police officers across the state. This allows for 
individuals who do not have a college degree to apply. He explained the match terms as 
provided in his staff report.  
 

i. Motion to: Approve Resolution 24-27 Authorizing Grant Agreement for the 2024 
Pathways to Policing Reimbursement Grant 

 
5. PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT  

No report was presented. 
 

6. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
i. Watermark 7th Addition  

City Planner Katie Larsen presented three resolutions for Council’s consideration related 
to the 7th Addition of the Watermark development. The 7th Addition plat proposes 106 
single family lots and eight (8) outlots.   

i. Consider Resolution No. 24-23, Approving PUD Final Plan/Final Plat 

ii. Consider Resolution No. 24-24, Approving Development Agreement and 
Planned Unit Development Agreement  

iii. Consider Resolution No. 24-25, Approving Open Space Easement Agreement 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ruhland 
SECONDER: Stoesz 
AYES: Ruhland, Stoesz, Lyden, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Lyden 
SECONDER: Stoesz 
AYES: Lyden, Stoesz, Ruhland, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

 

50



 

5 
 

 
 

a. Motion to: Approve Resolution 24-23 Approving PUD Final Plan/Final Plat 

 
b. Motion to: Approve Resolution 24-24 Approving Development Agreement and 

PUD Agreement 

c. Motion to: Approve Resolution 24-25 Approving Open Space Easement 
Agreement 

 

B. Consider Resolution 24-29, Approving Amendment to the CSAH 49/CRJ Reconstruction 
Project Joint Powers Agreement with Anoka County 
Community Development Director Michael Grochala requested Council approval of an 
amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with Anoka County for the CSAH 
49/CR J reconstruction project. He provided background on the underlying JPA and an 
updated estimated cost for the City as outlined in his staff report.  
 

i. Motion to: Approve Resolution 24-29, Approving Amendment to the CSAH 49/CRJ 
Reconstruction Project Joint Powers Agreement 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Stoesz 
SECONDER: Ruhland 
AYES: Stoesz, Ruhland, Lyden, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Stoesz 
SECONDER: Ruhland 
AYES: Stoesz, Ruhland, Lyden, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 
 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Stoesz 
SECONDER: Ruhland 
AYES: Stoesz, Ruhland, Lyden, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Stoesz 
SECONDER: Lyden 
AYES: Stoesz, Lyden, Ruhland, Rafferty 
ABSENT: Cavegn 

 

51



 

6 
 

 
 
 

C. Consider Resolution No. 24-30, Approving Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 77th 
Street/Market Place Drive Improvement Project, 698 77th Street. 
Community Development Director Michael Grochala requested Council approval to purchase 
the right-of-way for the Marketplace Drive Realignment Project which proposes to realign 
77th Street to connect with the existing Marketplace Drive/Lake Drive intersection. The 
acquisition terms proposed with the property owner is $33,000.00. 
 

i. Motion to: Approve Resolution No. 24-30, Approving Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 
77th Street/Market Place Drive Improvement Project  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Rafferty reviewed the Community Calendar as presented on the Agenda. With no further 
business before the Council, the meeting was adjourned by Mayor Rafferty at 7:14 PM. 

 

These minutes were considered and approved at the regular Council Meeting on April 22, 2024.  
 
 
 
              
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk    Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

 

RESULT: CARRIED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Lyden 
SECONDER: Stoesz 
AYES: Lyden, Stoesz, Ruhland, Rafferty 
ABSENT:  Cavegn 

 

52



 
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM 1E 

 
STAFF ORIGINATOR: Meg Sawyer, Human Resources and Communications Manager 
 
MEETING DATE: April 22, 2024 
 

 TOPIC: Approval of the Hiring of Part-Time Staff for the Rookery Activity Center 
 
VOTE REQUIRED: 3/5 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The Council is being asked to approve the hiring of part-time staff for The Rookery. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Staff is seeking approval to hire part-time personnel to work at The Rookery. The recruiting process 
has identified candidates that will be a great addition to our staff at The Rookery. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Council approve the hiring of the part-time personnel listed below: 

 
First Name Last Name Title 
Alexandra  Lambert Lifeguard 

Cole Eberspacher Lifeguard 
Abigail Rink Lifeguard 
Tyler  Thaemlitz Lifeguard 

Raiden  Bankston Lifeguard 

Start dates vary based on position and training schedule.  
 
 
Please approve the above personnel for the part-time positions at The Rookery Activity Center. 

53



1 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 5A 
 

STAFF ORIGINATOR:  Veronica Kubicek, PE Project Engineer 
 
MEETING DATE:  April 22, 2024 
 
TOPIC: Consider Resolution 24-22, Accepting Quotes and Awarding a 

Construction Contract, 2024 Trail Maintenance Project  
 
VOTE REQUIRED:  3/5 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Staff is requesting Council approval to accept quotes and award the construction contract for 
the 2024 Trail Maintenance Project.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The 2024 Trail Maintenance Project includes milling and repaving trail segments that are in poor 
condition.  This is in conformance with the City’s Trail Capital Improvement Plan. To maximize the 
amount of trail maintenance completed, the City requested base quotes and alternates as follows: 
 

• Country Lakes Drive East (Base Quote)  
• Choke Cherry Road (Base Quote)  
• Country Lake Drive West (Alternate 1)  
• Birch Street (Alternate 2) 
• 12th Avenue (Alternate 3)   

 
Quotes were received on March 25, 2024.  
 

CONTRACTOR BASE QUOTE ALT 1 ALT 2 ALT 3 
Winberg Companies $79,894.50 $48,161.10 $26,397.00 $31,164.00 
Bituminous Roadways Inc. $105,170.00 $61,324.00 $29,048.00 $26,620.00 
Allied Inc. Did not Quote    
Arnt Co.  Did not Quote    
Dimke Excavating Inc.  Did not Quote    

 
Staff is recommending awarding the base quote and alternate 2 and 3. We are deferring 
Alternate 1 Country Lake Drive West to a future year due to budget. The low quote submitted 

54



2 
 

by Winberg Companies of Shafer, Minnesota, for the base quote and alternate 2 and 3 is a total 
amount of $137,455.50. 
 
The project plans are enclosed.  The project is funded through the General Fund – Parks 
Department. Winberg Companies has adequately completed projects in the City of Lino Lakes in 
the past.  
 
The estimated schedule for the project: 

City Council Approve Quotes and Award Project    April 22, 2024 
Construction        May-June 2024  
Final Completion       July 31st, 2024  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. 24-22, accepting quotes and awarding a 
construction contract for the 2024 Trail Maintenance Project for the Base, Alternate 2, and 
Alternate 3 in the amount of $137,455.50 to Winberg Companies.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. Resolution No. 24-22 
2. Construction Plan 
 

55



CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-22 

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING QUOTES, AND AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT, 2024 TRAIL MAINTENANCE PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a request for quotes for the construction of the 2024 Trail 
Maintenance Project, quotes were received, and tabulated: 
 

 
CONTRACTOR BASE QUOTE ALT 1 ALT 2 ALT 3 

Winberg Companies $79,894.50 $48,161.10 $26,397.00 $31,164.00 
Bituminous Roadways Inc. $105,170.00 $61,324.00 $29,048.00 $26,620.00 
Allied Inc. Did not Quote    
Arnt Co.  Did not Quote    
Dimke Excavating Inc.  Did not Quote    

 
WHEREAS, it appears the Winberg Companies of Shafer, Minnesota is the lowest possible 
bidder for the base quote, Alternate 2, and Alternate 3.  
 
WHEREAS, the funding for the project is from the General Fund – Parks Department.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that the 
Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to enter into a contract with Winberg 
Companies for the construction of the Base, Alternate 2, and Alternate 3 of the 2024 Trail 
Maintenance Project in the amount of $137,455.50; 
 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

56



Reshanau Lake

Aqua Ln

W
S

ha
do

w
La

ke
D

r

Country Lakes Park

Birchwood Acres Park

Country Lakes Dr

R
iv

er

Birch Pl

W
S

ha
do

w
La

ke
D

r

D
e

e rw

ood Ln

P
ai

nt
ed

Tu

rtle
Rd

Lones
om

ePine Trl

Arrowhead Dr

Hawthorn Rd

T
om

a
ha

w
k

T
rl

34

62nd St

Fox Rd

W
S

hadow
Lake

D
r

Wards Lake

Rice Creek Chain Of
Lakes Park Reserve

Black
D

uck
D

r

C
ou

nt
y Pkw

y
E

E
S

ha
do

w
La

ke
D

r

Holly Dr

Ruffe
d

G
ro

u
se

Rd

K
ill

de
er

D
r

Lantern Ln

Whit e
O

ak
R

d
Fox Rd

B
la

ck
D

uc
k

D
r

W
hi

te
ta

il
T

rl

12
th

A
ve

Pheasant Run S

B
la

ck
D

uc
k

D
r

S

Aspen Ln

E
Sha

do
w

La
ke

D
r

34

Holly Ct

H
olly

D
r

Sherman Lake

Joyer
Ln

Legend

Parcels

March 4, 2024
Map Powered By Datafi

±

1 in = 1,500 Ft

Page 1 of 6

57

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Text Box
Legend:  
               Proposed Trail Repairs 

vkubicek
Text Box

Project Location
2024 Trail Maintenance Project
City of Lino Lakes, MN

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
Callout
Alternate 1

vkubicek
Callout
Site 1

vkubicek
Callout
Alternate 2

vkubicek
Callout
Site 2

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Callout
Alternate 3

vkubicek
Text Box



34

Legend

Address Labels

Parcels

Surface Type,Trail Type,Functional Class
Existing Asphalt

Proposed Trails

February 29, 2024
Map Powered By Datafi

±

1 in = 100 Ft

Page 2 of 6

58

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Text Box
Site 1 Narrative: 
1.  Existing trail pavement to be milled in place or reclaimed in place (to be paid as mill bituminous surface).  
2.  Existing private signs along the trail shall be protected in place (incidental).  
3.  Tree removals will be performed by others prior.  

vkubicek
Text Box
Legend:  
               Existing Trail
               Future Trail
               Proposed Trail Repairs 

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Text Box
 Country Lakes Drive East
Site 1 Improvements
2024 Trail Maintenance Project
City of Lino Lakes, MN

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
Text Box
Country Lakes Drive

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Callout
Approximate location of 20' wide trail easement 

vkubicek
Text Box
Birch Street

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Callout
Install ADA compliant pedestrian ramp paid under Concrete Curb Ramp Walk

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
Callout
Adjust sanitary sewer manhole (Incidental) 

vkubicek
Callout
Culvert replacement by others 



12
th

A
ve

34

Buckthorn Ln

Chokecherry Rd
12

th
A

ve

Legend

Address Labels

Parcels

Surface Type,Trail Type,Functional Class
Existing Asphalt

Proposed Trails

March 4, 2024
Map Powered By Datafi

±

1 in = 100 Ft

Page 3 of 6

59

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
15' ROW

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
15' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
15' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Text Box
Legend:  
               Existing Trail
               Future Trail
               Proposed Trail Repairs 

vkubicek
Text Box
Chokecherry Road
 Site 2 Improvements
2024 Trail Maintenance Project
City of Lino Lakes, MN

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
Text Box
Site 2 Narrative: 
1.  Existing trail pavement to be milled in place or reclaimed in place (to be paid as mill bituminous surface).  
2.  Existing private signs along the trail shall be protected in place (incidental).  

vkubicek
Text Box
City Park

vkubicek
Text Box
Buckthorn Lane

vkubicek
Text Box
Chokecherry Road

vkubicek
Text Box
12th Avenue

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Callout
Install ADA compliant pedestrian ramp paid under Concrete Curb Ramp Walk

vkubicek
Text Box



Legend

Address Labels

Parcels

Surface Type,Trail Type,Functional Class
Existing Asphalt

February 29, 2024
Map Powered By Datafi

±

1 in = 100 Ft

Page 4 of 6

60

vkubicek
Text Box
Legend:  
               Existing Trail
               Future Trail
               Proposed Trail Repairs 

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Text Box
Country Lakes Drive West
ALTERNATE 1 Improvements
2024 Trail Maintenance Project
City of Lino Lakes, MN

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Text Box
Country Lakes Drive

vkubicek
Text Box
Fawn Lane

vkubicek
Text Box
City owned parcel

vkubicek
Text Box
City owned parcel

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
20' ROW

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Text Box
Alternate 1 Narrative: 
1.  Existing trail pavement to be milled in place or reclaimed in place (to be paid as mill bituminous surface).  
2.  Existing private signs along the trail shall be protected in place (incidental). 
3.  Tree removals will be performed by others prior.  

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Callout
Install ADA compliant pedestrian ramp paid under Concrete Curb Ramp Walk

vkubicek
Text Box



34

Legend

Address Labels

Parcels

Surface Type,Trail Type,Functional Class
Existing Asphalt

Proposed Trails

February 29, 2024
Map Powered By Datafi

±

1 in = 100 Ft

Page 5 of 6

61

vkubicek
Text Box
Legend:  
               Existing Trail
               Future Trail
               Proposed Trail Repairs 

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Text Box
Birch Street
 ALTERNATE 2 Improvements
2024 Trail Maintenance Project
City of Lino Lakes, MN

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Text Box
Alternate 2 Narrative: 
1.  Existing trail pavement to be milled in place or reclaimed in place (to be paid as mill bituminous surface).  
2.  Existing private signs along the trail shall be protected in place (incidental).  
3.  Tree removals will be performed by others prior.  

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
Country Lakes Drive

vkubicek
Text Box
Birch Street

vkubicek
Text Box
100' ROW

vkubicek
Callout
Install ADA compliant pedestrian ramp paid under Concrete Curb Ramp Walk

vkubicek
Text Box



12
th

A
ve

34

Buckthorn Ln

Chokecherry Rd

12
th

A
ve

Legend

Address Labels

Parcels

Surface Type,Trail Type,Functional Class
Existing Asphalt

Proposed Trails

March 7, 2024
Map Powered By Datafi

±

1 in = 100 Ft

Page 6 of 6

62

vkubicek
Text Box
Legend:  
               Existing Trail
               Future Trail
               Proposed Trail Repairs 

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Line

vkubicek
Text Box
12th Avenue
 ALTERNATE 3 Improvements
2024 Trail Maintenance Project
City of Lino Lakes, MN

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
Text Box

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Callout
Install ADA compliant pedestrian ramp paid under Concrete Curb Ramp Walk

vkubicek
Text Box
12th Avenue

vkubicek
Text Box
Buckthorn Lane

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Text Box
City Park

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' 

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Centered Drainage and Utility Easement
(TYP adjoining lots)

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
15' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
20' ROW

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Text Box
Birch Street 

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
100' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
PolyLine

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
15' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Text Box
15' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' Drainage and Utility Easement

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
40' ROW 

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Arrow

vkubicek
Text Box
10' ROW

vkubicek
Text Box
Alternate 3 Narrative: 
1.  Existing trail pavement to be milled in place or reclaimed in place (to be paid as mill bituminous surface).  
2.  Existing private signs along the trail shall be protected in place (incidental).  
3.  Tree removals will be performed by others prior.  



CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 6A 
 

 
STAFF ORIGINATOR:  Andy Nelson, Environmental Coordinator 
  
MEETING DATE: April 22th, 2024 
  
TOPIC:  Resolution No. 24-44, Approving Centerville Lake Alum Treatment 

Cost-share Agreement with Rice Creek Watershed District 
   
VOTE REQUIRED:  Simple Majority 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Staff is requesting City Council consideration to approve a cost-share agreement with Rice Creek 
Watershed District (RCWD) for an aluminum sulfate treatment for Centerville Lake in an amount 
not to exceed $35,000. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Rice Creek Watershed District (RCWD) has been awarded $954,500 in State of Minnesota 
Clean Water Fund grant funding to be used for improving water quality in Centerville Lake.  
These funds will be used for alum treatments that will address internal phosphorous loading 
that has been responsible for algae blooms and other water quality issues.  The treatments 
are scheduled to begin in spring of 2024.   
 
RCWD is requesting a financial contribution from each project partner to assist with meeting 
the 10% local grant match requirement.  Partners on this project include the City of 
Centerville, Anoka County, and the City of Lino Lakes.  RCWD is requesting 22.6% of the local 
match required or $35,000, whichever is less, from each of the project partners.  RCWD will be 
providing the remaining portion of the match requirement and any additional money needed 
should the project go over budget. 
 
Support for this financial partnership can be found in the Lino Lakes Local Water Management 
Plan.  The following goals and policies related to water quality management are applicable to 
the Centerville Alum Treatment project: 
 
Goal 2.1   
Protect and improve water quality and the scenic and ecological values of City lakes, wetlands, 
and other aquatic assets. 
Policy 2.1B   
Preserve and improve the recreational resources associated with water by improving water 
quality.   
 
 

63



Goal 2.2  
Initiate and continue collaborations to address, restore, and preserve the water quality of the 
region’s lakes, wetlands, and other aquatic assets. 
Policy 2.2A 
Work with and partner with the RCWD, VLAWMO, and adjacent local governments to protect 
high quality resources. 
Policy 2.2B 
Collaborate with adjacent jurisdictions and agencies to meet TMDL goals and remove 
impaired water bodies from the impaired waters list. 
 
Goal 7.1 
Identify, protect, and preserve the desirable natural areas and ecological and aquatic 
resources of the community. 
Policy 7.1B 
Maintain the partnership of Lino Lakes and RCWD and other groups such as Anoka County to 
maintain, restore, and manage the aquatic, aquatic dependent, and upland areas of the City. 
 
The City contribution to the project would come from the Surface Water Management Fund.  
This fund was created in 1992 to meet administrative, planning, ponding, and water quality 
requirements imposed by State and Federal regulations.  These funds are specifically intended 
for water quality projects.  The City annually plans for water quality improvements to 
implement the Local Water Management Plan goals and policies. 
 
The Environmental Board voted in favor of supporting the Centerville Lake aluminum sulfate 
treatments at their January 31st, 2024 meeting.  
 
The City Council was provided with an overview and background information on the alum 
treatment project at the March 4th, 2024 Work Session, and the April 1st, 2024 Work Session. 
The Council directed staff to provide the Rice Creek Watershed District Board of Managers 
with a recommendation to establish a long-range management plan including potential 
funding sources to prepare for any future treatments for the lake after the initial grant-funded 
alum treatments that will be completed in 2024-2026.  A letter to this effect will be sent with 
the executed agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 24-44, Approving the Centerville Lake Alum 
Treatment Cost-share Agreement with Rice Creek Watershed District. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Resolution No. 24-44 
2. Cost-share Agreement for Centerville Lake Internal Phosphorous Load Reduction Project 

 

64



CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-44 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING CENTERVILLE LAKE ALUM TREATMENT COST-SHARE 

AGREEMENT WITH RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT 
 

 

WHEREAS, poor water quality impacting recreational uses and ecological health of Centerville 
Lake has been attributed to internal phosphorous loading; and   

WHEREAS,  the Rice Creek Watershed District (RCWD) has acquired $954,500 from the State of 
Minnesota Clean Water Fund grant to be used for an aluminum sulfate treatment on 
Centerville Lake to improve water quality; and  

WHEREAS, the grant requires a 10% local match; and  
  
WHEREAS, RCWD has proposed a cost-share agreement between RCWD, the City of Centerville, 
Anoka County, and the City of Lino Lakes to help cover the required local grant match; and 

WHEREAS, each partner is being asked to contribute 22.6% of the local match, or $35,000, 
whichever is lower; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that the 
Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to enter into a cost-share agreement with 
Rice Creek Watershed District to facilitate an alum treatment for Centerville Lake. 

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

65



 

 

COST‐SHARE AGREEMENT 

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT and CITY OF LINO LAKES 

 
Centerville Lake Internal Phosphorus Load Reduction Project 

 
A. The Rice Creek Watershed District (“RCWD”) and the City of Lino Lakes (“City”) enter into this 
agreement to facilitate RCWD performance of the Centerville Lake Internal Phosphorus Load 
Reduction Project (“Project”), intending it to be legally binding. 

 
B. The Project will provide for the in‐lake application of aluminum sulfate (“alum”) to Centerville Lake, in 
order to reduce sediment‐phosphorus release within the lake and improve water quality and clarity. The 
Project plan provides for two applications, in 2024 and 2026. Between the two applications, RCWD will 
collect sediment cores and use sediment chemistry data to refine the second dose. RCWD estimates that 
the activity will reduce phosphorus loading to Centerville Lake by 178 pounds annually, and will allow 
the lake to transition from impaired to unimpaired status. 

 
C. RCWD applied to the State of Minnesota for a competitive Clean Water Fund (CWF) grant for the 
Project, and has been awarded a grant in the amount of $954,500. The grant requires a local match in 
the amount of 10 percent of the grant award. The City finds the Project to be in the public interest, and 
wishes to contribute a part of the local match in order to advance the Project. 

 
D. RCWD has retained a qualified and experienced engineering firm to determine dosage and prepare 
specifications for the Project and to monitor the application. RCWD is prepared shortly to issue a request 
for quotes and to contract for application in Spring 2024. 

 
ACCORDINGLY: 

 
1. RCWD will maintain contracts with the engineer and applicator, and will be responsible to implement 
the Project, make all judgments in the performance of the Project, and make all payments due to the 
engineer and applicator. RCWD will be responsible to conform to the CWF grant agreement and will 
receive all payments thereunder for Project use. 

 
2. When the work under the applicator’s contract is completed, RCWD will provide to the City an 
accounting of: (a) RCWD payment under the engineer’s and applicator’s contracts; (b) the amount of 
grant funds received; and (c) the amount of the RCWD payment to the engineer and applicator not 
covered by grant funds (“local share”). Within 30 days of receiving the accounting, the City will 
disburse to RCWD an amount equal to 22.6 percent of the local share or $35,000, whichever is less. 

 
3. This agreement is not a joint powers agreement within the meaning of Minnesota Statutes §471.59 
and neither party agrees to be responsible for the acts or omissions of the other party within the 
meaning of subdivision 1a(a) of that statute. Each party is responsible for its own acts and omissions to 
the extent authorized by law. This agreement creates no right in any third party, and waives no 
immunity, defense or liability limit with respect to any third party or the other party to the agreement. 
Only contractual remedies are available for the failure of a party to fulfill the terms of the agreement. 

66



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands. 
 
 
CITY of LINO LAKES 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
   
Its: _______________________________ 
 
Dated: ________________________ 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
   
Its: _______________________________ 
 
Dated: _________________________ 
 
 
 
 

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 
Its: _______________________________ 
 
Dated: ________________________ 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 
Its: _______________________________ 
 
Dated: ________________________ 
 
 

 

67



CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 6B 
 

 
STAFF ORIGINATOR:  Andy Nelson, Environmental Coordinator 
  
MEETING DATE: April 22th, 2024 
  
TOPIC:  Resolution No. 24-42, Accepting Quotes and Awarding Contract, 

2024 Spring Boulevard Tree Planting 
   
VOTE REQUIRED:  Simple Majority 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Staff is requesting authorization to accept quotes and award a contract for the 2024 Spring 
Boulevard Tree Planting.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City requires new boulevard trees to be planted in all new residential subdivisions in 
accordance with Chapter 1007.043 (17), the landscaping section of the Zoning Ordinance.  Both 
the Environmental Board and the City Council have also supported replacing boulevard trees 
that die in order to maintain the many benefits that these trees provide to the community.  The 
trees planted for new residential properties are purchased with developer funds collected as 
part of development agreements.  The replacements for trees that die are purchased with City 
forestry funds.   
 
Each spring, City staff coordinates these tree plantings to ensure that the trees and planting 
methods used meet City standards to ensure high quality plantings that will maximize the 
benefits provided by trees while minimizing long-term maintenance costs.   
 
The 2024 spring boulevard tree planting includes the installation of 72 boulevard trees.  13 of 
these trees will be installed on new residential lots, 59 will be replacements for trees that have 
died from emerald ash borer, other pests and pathogens, storm damage, or other structural 
problems that led to their removals.   
 

CONTRACTOR CITY TREES DEVELOPER TREES TOTAL QUOTE 
Hoffman and McNamara $28,787.00 $6,422.00 $35,209.00 
Midwest Landscapes $31,106.00 $6,601.00 $37,707.00 
Margolis Company $38,055.00 $7,740.00 $45,795.00 

 
 
 
 

68



 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 24-42, accepting quotes and awarding a contract 
for boulevard tree planting in the amount of $35,209.00 to Hoffman and McNamara. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Resolution No. 24-42 
 
 

69



CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-42 

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING QUOTES AND AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR 2024 

SPRING BOULEVARD TREE PLANTING 
 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to a request for quotes for boulevard tree planting to take place in the 
spring of 2024, quotes were received and tabulated: 

CONTRACTOR CITY TREES DEVELOPER 
TREES 

TOTAL QUOTE 

Hoffman and McNamara $28,787.00 $6,422.00 $35,209.00 
Midwest Landscapes $31,106.00 $6,601.00 $37,707.00 
Margolis Company $38,055.00 $7,740.00 $45,795.00 

 
 
WHEREAS, it appears that Hoffman and McNamara is the lowest responsible bidder; and 
  
WHEREAS, the funding for the project is from the General Fund Forestry Budget and boulevard 
tree funds collected as part of development agreements for residential subdivisions; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that the 
Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to enter into a contract with Hoffman and 
McNamara for boulevard tree plantings in the amount of $35,209.00. 

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

70



1 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 6C 
 

STAFF ORIGINATOR:  Veronica Kubicek, PE Project Engineer 
 
MEETING DATE:  April 22, 2024 
 
TOPIC: Consider Resolution 24-37, Accepting Bids, Awarding a 

Construction Contract for the 2024 Rejuvenator Project 
 
VOTE REQUIRED:  3/5 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Staff is requesting Council approval to accept bids and award a construction contract for the 
2024 Rejuvenator Project.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On March 25th, 2024 the City Council ordered the project and authorized the advertisement for 
bid for the 2024 Rejuvenator Project.   

The Street Maintenance Project includes applying a maltene-based asphalt rejuvenator.  
Rejuvenators are a product many Cities are using in lieu of seal coating.  The City has completed 
three rejuvenator projects the past.  As part of this project, the maltene-based product will be 
placed on the streets, followed by a sand so vehicles can still drive over it.  The rejuvenator 
maintenance project includes the following: 

Area A:  4th Ave  
Area B:  Forsham Lake Dr, Stage Coach Tr, Post Rd  
Area C:  W Shadow Lake, Shadow Ct , Sandpiper Dr, 
Area D:  Fox Rd  
Area E:  Joyer Ln, Karth Rd, Talle Ln, Canfield, Gaage Ln  
Area F:  Dogwood St, Ivywood Ave, Butternut St  
Area G: 21st Ave, Crane Dr, Balsam Way, Diamond Ln, Forest, Eden Cir, Emily Cir, 
Watermark Way, Harriet Ln, Geneva Ct, Itasca Cir, Johanna Cir, Cass Dr, Ada Dr, Bay Dr, 
Jasper Ct, Island Ct, Heron Ct, Gull Dr, Dora Dr, Elmo Ct, Fall Dr  

 

Bids were received on Wednesday, April 17, 2024.  A total of 2 bids were received and are 
summarized in the following table:   

71



2 
 

 

Contractor Base Bid 

  
Allied Blacktop Company $110,464.00  

Corrective Asphalt Materials  $191,109.00  

 

The low bid was submitted by Allied Blacktop Company in the base bid amount of $110,464.00 
which is within the planned budget and is being recommended for award.  Allied Blacktop 
Company successfully completed the City’s 2023 Crack Fill and Seal Coat Project.   

The estimated total project cost including contingency and overhead is $140,000. The project is 
funded through the Pavement Management Funds.  

The substantial completion date which includes sweeping and site cleanup is August 2, 2024 and 
the final completion date for this project is August 30, 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. 24-37, Accept Bids and Awarding a 
Construction Contract for the 2024 Rejuvenator Project. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. Resolution No. 24-37 
2. Project Location Map 
3. Bid Summary 
 
 

72



CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-37 

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPT BIDS, AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT, 2024 

REJUVENATOR PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an advertisement for bids for the construction of the 2024 
Rejuvenator Project, bids were received, opened and tabulated according to law, and the 
following bids were received complying with the advertisement; and  
 

Contractor Base Bid 

  
Allied Blacktop Company $110,464.00  

Corrective Asphalt Materials  $191,109.00  

 
WHEREAS, it appears that Allied Blacktop Company is the lowest responsible bidder; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it would be in the best interest of the city to 
proceed with the project, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that: 
 

1. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to enter into a contract with 
Allied Blacktop Company in the amount of $110,464.00 by the name of the City of Lino 
Lakes for the construction of the 2024 Rejuvenator Project according to the plans and 
specifications approved by the City Council and on file in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to return forthwith to all bidder the Bid 
Bonds made with their bids, except that the deposits of the successful bidder and the next 
lowest bidder shall be retained until a contract has been signed.  
 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 
 
 

___________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

73



OTTER LAKE

BALD EAGLE
LAKE

AMELIA
LAKE

BALDWIN
LAKE

WARDS LAKE

SHERMAN
LAKE

RESHANAU LAKE

RICE LAKE

CENTERVILLE
LAKE

MARSHAN
LAKE

GEORGE
WATCH LAKE

PELTIER LAKE

RONDEAU
LAKE

CEDAR LAKE

WILKINSON
LAKE

RICE CREEK
MARSH %&d(

RICE CREEK
CHAIN OF LAKES
PARK RESERVE

RICE CREEK
CHAIN OF LAKES
PARK RESERVE

County Hwy 14

C
ou

nt
y 

H
w

y 
23

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

w
y 

21

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

w
y 

54

County Hwy 34

%&d(

%&c(

%&c(

GnWX

GwWX

GwWX

GnWX

GnWX

GÀWX

GÀWX

GkWX

G¦WX

G¦WX

G»WX

GuWX

G¤WX

G̀WX

C
ity o

f B
lain

e

City of
Circle Pines

C
it

y 
o

f 
H

u
g

o

City of
Centerville

City of Shoreview City of North Oaks White Bear TownshipWhite Bear Township

City of Columbus

City of
Lexington

ST041

Area B

Area C

Area D

Area E

Area G

Area F

Area A

D
ocum

ent P
ath: M

:\024622-000\G
IS

\M
aps\2024 R

eclam
ite\2024 R

eclam
ite.aprx D

ate S
aved: 2/8/2024 11:22 A

M

¯
1 inch = 3,500 Ft

0 3,500
FeetGeneral Layout

City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota

2024 Reclamite Project

Reclamite

Parcel Boundaries

City Boundary

Sheet 2

2024 Rejuvenator

CRF

74



PROJECT:

OWNER:
City of Lino Lakes, MN

WSB PROJECT NO.: 
024622-000

Bids Opened:  Wednesday, April 17, 2024, at 9:00 am

Contractor Bid Security (5%)  Total Bid

1 Allied Blacktop Company X $110,464.00

2 Corrective Asphalt Materials LLC X $191,109.00

Engineer's Opinion of Cost $202,300.00

Denotes corrected figure

Veronica Kubicek, Project Manager

BID TABULATION SUMMARY

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct tabulation of the bids as received on April 17, 2024.

2024 Rejuvenator Project

M:\024622-000\Admin\Construction Admin\Bidding\024622-000 Bid Summary 041724

75



CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 6D 

STAFF ORIGINATOR: Michael Grochala, Community Development Director 

MEETING DATE: April 22, 2024 

TOPIC:  Consider Resolution No. 24-38 Approving Joint Powers 
Agreement with the City of Shoreview for the Roundabout 
Landscaping and Storm Sewer Maintenance at the CSAH 49 
(Hodgson Rd) and CSAH 32 (County Road J) Roundabout 

VOTE REQUIRED: 3/5 
_______________________________________________________________
_ 

INTRODUCTION 

Staff is requesting approval of the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with the City of Shoreview 
for the Roundabout Landscaping and Storm Sewer Maintenance at the CSAH 49 (Hodgson Rd) 
and CSAH 32 (County Road J) Roundabout. 

BACKGROUND 

The CSAH 49 (Hodgson Rd) and CSAH 32 (County Road J) intersection is under construction. 
The project is led by Anoka County in coordination with Ramsey County and the Cities of Lino 
Lakes and Shoreview.   Under the terms of the Anoka County JPA, construction of the 
roundabout landscaping, and ongoing  maintenance of landscaping and storm sewer 
improvements is the responsibility of the Cities.  Accordingly, staff has drafted a JPA to 
address maintenance responsibilities between Lino Lakes and Shoreview.   

Under terms of the JPA Lino Lakes and Shoreview will equally split the roundabout 
landscaping construction cost.   Lino Lakes will be responsible for maintenance and irrigation 
of the roundabout landscaping.  50% of inspection and maintenance costs will be charged to 
Shoreview annually. 

Lino Lakes will be responsible for inspection and maintenance of the storm sewer (except 
catch basins and leads), and the filtration basin.  50% of inspection and maintenance costs will 
be charged to Shoreview annually. 

76



RECOMMENDATION 

Staff is recommending adoption of Resolution No. 24-38 approving the Joint Powers Agreement 
with the City of Shoreview for the Roundabout Landscaping and Storm Sewer Maintenance at 
the CSAH 49 (Hodgson Rd) and CSAH 32 (County Road J) Roundabout. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 24-38
2. Joint Powers Agreement

77



CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-38 

APPROVING THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF 
SHOREVIEW, MINNESOTA FOR ROUNDABOUT CENTER LANDSCAPING 

AND STORM WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE OF THE CSAH 49 (HODGSON 
ROAD) AND CSAH 32 (COUNTY ROAD J) ROUNDABOUT  

WHEREAS, the CSAH 49 (Hodgson Rd) and CSAH 32 (County Road J) intersection is being 
reconstructed with a roundabout. The project is led by Anoka County in coordination 
with Ramsey County and the Cities of the Lino Lakes and Shoreview, and, 

WHEREAS, County Road J is a border road between Lino Lakes and Shoreview; and, 

WHEREAS, the project includes roundabout landscaping and storm sewer improvements 
that are the responsibility of the Cities’ to maintain; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree that it is in their best interest that the roundabout 
landscaping installation cost and maintenance costs be shared; and 

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 471.59 authorizes political subdivisions of the state to enter 
into joint powers agreements for the joint exercise of powers common to each. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by The City Council of The City of Lino Lakes 
approves the Joint Powers Agreement with the City of Shoreview for the Roundabout 
Landscaping and Storm Sewer Maintenance at the CSAH 49 (Hodgson Rd) and CSAH 32 
(County Road J) Roundabout.  The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute 
the agreement on behalf of the City. 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 

______________________________  
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

78



JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT FOR 
ROUNDABOUT CENTER LANDSCAPING AND STORM WATER SYSTEM 

MAINTENANCE OF THE CSAH 49 AT RAMSEY COUNTY CSAH 1 / ANOKA COUNTY 
CSAH 32 ROUNDABOUT 

 
 
 This Agreement made and entered into this ______ day of _________, 2024, by and between the 
City of Lino Lakes, 600 Town Center Parkway, Lino Lakes, MN 55014, hereinafter referred to as “Lino 
Lakes” and the City of Shoreview, 4600 Victoria Street North, Shoreview, MN 55126, hereinafter referred 
to as “Shoreview”. 
 
WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, Anoka County and Ramsey County are reconstructing the intersection of  County 
State Aid Highway 49 (Hodgson Road), hereinafter referred to as CSAH 49,and Anoka County State Aid 
Highway 32 (Ash Street)/ Ramsey County State Aid Highway 1 (County Road J), hereinafter referred to 
as CSAH 32/CSAH 1which is a shared border between Lino Lakes and Shoreview, the  “Cities”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cities consider it mutually desirable to divide the cost equally for the installation 

of a landscaped roundabout center island; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Anoka County and Ramsey County policies and the Joint Powers 

Agreement between Anoka and Ramsey Counties and the Cities, the maintenance of the storm sewer 
(except catch basins and leads), filtration basin, and landscaped roundabout center island is the 
responsibility of the Cities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Cities also consider it mutually desirable to divide the cost equally for the 
maintenance of the storm sewer (except catch basins and leads), filtration basin, landscaped roundabout 
center island; and 

 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes Section 471.59 authorizes political subdivisions of the State to 

enter into joint powers agreements for the joint exercise of powers common to each. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY STIPULATED AND AGREED: 
 
I. PURPOSE 
 

The Cities have joined together for the purpose of sharing the installation cost of the 
landscaped roundabout center. The City of Lino Lakes will bid the landscaping project 
and Shoreview will reimburse the City of Lino Lakes as outlined within. 
 
The Cities will share the maintenance cost of the storm sewer (except catch basins and 
leads), filtration basin, and landscaped roundabout center island at the roundabout at 
CSAH 49 at Ramsey County CSAH 1/Anoka County CSAH 32.  

 
II. METHOD AND COSTS 

 
Roundabout Landscaping Cost 
The estimated construction costs and City cost shares for the CSAH 49 at Ramsey 
County CSAH 1/Anoka County CSAH 32 landscaped roundabout center are shown in 
Exhibit C. Actual costs will vary and those will be the costs for which the relevant parties 
will be responsible.  The total estimated roundabout landscaping cost is $49,423.50. The 
City of Lino Lake’s cost share is $25,888.50 and the City of Shoreview’s cost share is 
$23,535.00. 
 
After award of the contract, the City of Lino Lakes shall receive from Shoreview ninety 
percent (90%) of its estimated share of the project cost within 60 days of award of a 

79



construction contract.  Prior to billing this estimate will be updated by Lino Lakes to reflect 
actual bid prices as awarded.   An updated cost estimate shall be provided to Shoreview 
at the time of billing.   
 
Upon final completion of the project, Shoreview’s share of the cost will be based upon 
actual costs incurred.  If necessary, adjustments to the initial ninety (90%) charged will be 
made in the form of credit or additional charges to Shoreview’s  remaining ten percent 
(10%) share of the project costs.  Final payment shall be due within 30 days of billing by 
Lino Lakes.   
 
 
Roundabout Landscaping Maintenance 
Lino Lakes will maintain and irrigate the roundabout center landscaping per the enclosed 
schedule, Exhibit A. Shoreview will reimburse Lino Lakes for one half of inspection and 
maintenance costs annually. Lino Lakes will coordinate with Shoreview prior to incurring 
costs. Each City agrees to pay the other maintenance costs as are billed to it within 30 
days of receipt of an invoice. 
 

 
Storm Sewer and Filtration Basin Maintenance 
Lino Lakes will inspect and maintain the storm sewer (except catch basins and leads) 
and the filtration basin, Exhibit B, The filtration basin is located at the northeast corner of 
CSAH 49 at Ramsey County CSAH 1/Anoka County CSAH 32 intersection. The facilities 
will be maintained in accordance with the Lino Lakes’ Programmatic Maintenance 
Agreement in place with Rice Creek Watershed District and enclosed schedule. 
Shoreview will reimburse Lino Lakes for one half of inspection and maintenance costs 
annually. Lino Lakes will coordinate with Shoreview prior to incurring costs. Each City 
agrees to pay the other maintenance costs as are billed to it within 30 days of receipt of 
an invoice. 
  

III. STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
 A strict accounting shall be made of all bills received by each City and shall be made 

upon request by either party. 
  
IV. NOTICE 
 
 For purposes of delivery of any notices hereunder, the notice shall be effective if 

delivered to the City Manager of Shoreview, 4600 Victoria Street North, Shoreview, MN 
55126, and the City Administrator of Lino Lakes, 600 Town Center Parkway, Lino Lakes, 
MN 55014. 

 
V. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 Lino Lakes and Shoreview agree to mutually indemnify and hold each other harmless 

from any claims, losses, costs, expenses or damages resulting from the acts or 
omissions of the respective officers, agents, or employees relating to activities conducted 
by either party under this Agreement. 

  
VI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT REQUIREMENT OF WRITING 
 
 It is understood and agreed that the entire agreement of the parties is contained herein 

and that this Agreement supersedes all oral agreements and all negotiations between the 
parties relating to the subject matter thereof, as well as any previous agreement presently 
in effect between the parties to the subject matter thereof. Any alterations, variations, or 
modifications of the provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only when they have been 
reduced to writing and duly signed by the parties. 

 

80



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties of this Agreement have hereunto set their hands on the 
dates written below. 
 
 
CITY OF SHOREVIEW     CITY OF LINO LAKES 
 
 
By:       By:       
 Sue Denkinger      Rob Rafferty 
 Mayor       Mayor 
 
Dated:       Dated:       
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
By:       By:       
 Brad Martens      Jolleen Chaika 
 City Manager      City Clerk 
 
Dated:       Dated:       
 
  

81



EXHIBIT A 
 

Activity Frequency  
Remove and replace dead plants and reseed empty 
patches 

As needed (for first 12 month after 
installation)  

Mow Grow Low Fescue Grass Each fall  
Remove garbage and debris  Each spring and fall  
Remove weeds from river rock and mulched areas Twice during growing season 
Prune trees Later winter / early spring  
Top dress hardwood mulch  Each spring  
Inspect up-light units Annually  
Repair/adjust irrigation spray heads As needed  
Repair/adjust landscape edging As needed  

 
  

82



26 Walker's Low Catmint
#1 CONT.

3 American Hophornbeam
1.5" Cal B&B

LOW GROW FESCUE GRASS SEED MIX WITH
EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (TYP)

3" - 6" DIA. RIVER ROCK (TYP)

LANDSCAPE EDGER (TYP)

TYPE 6 DOUBLE SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH

LANDSCAPE BOULDER (TYP)

IRRIGATION LINE

UPLIGHT (TYP), SEE LIGHTING PLAN

TREES QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT

3 OSTRYA VIRGINIANA / AMERICAN HOPHORNBEAM 1.5" CAL B&B

PERENNIAL QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE

26 NEPETA X FAASSENII 'WALKER'S LOW' / WALKER'S LOW CATMINT #1 CONT.

PLANT SCHEDULE

K:
\0

21
39

7-
00

0\
C

ad
\P

la
n\

02
13

97
-0

00
-L

P-
PL

N
T-

PL
AN

.d
w

g

FEET

0
H:

INSCALE

10 20

N

ROUNDABOUT
LANDSCAPE PLAN

L3

SCALE:

PLAN BY:

DESIGN BY:

CHECK BY:

SHEET

WSB PROJECT NO.

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
, S

PE
C

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
,

O
R

 R
EP

O
R

T 
W

AS
 P

R
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y 

M
E 

O
R

 U
N

D
ER

 M
Y

D
IR

EC
T 

SU
PE

R
VI

SI
O

N
 A

N
D

 T
H

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 L
AN

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E
LA

W
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

ST
AT

E 
O

F 
M

IN
N

ES
O

TA
.

LI
C

. N
O

:
D

AT
E:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
O

.
D

AT
E

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

JO
R

D
AN

 G
ED

R
O

SE
, P

LA

58
25

4
3/

18
/2

02
4

021397-000

H
O

D
G

SO
N

 R
O

AD
 A

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
AD

 J
LA

N
D

SC
AP

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
LI

N
O

 L
AK

ES

AS SHOWN JG

JG CA

LOW GROW FESCUE SEED MIXTURE:
(SEEDING RATE 250 LBS PER ACRE)
25% BLUE MESA SHEEP FESCUE
25% NANOOK HARD FESCUE
25%INTRIGUE CHEWINGS FESCUE
25% CELESTIAL CREEPING RED FESCUE

83



EXHIBIT B 
 

Activity Frequency 
Check for failure/erosion at inlet After rainfall >0.5” (for first 6 months of 

BMP) 
Remove and replace dead plants, reseed empty patches As needed (for first 12 months of BMP) 
Remove trash/debris from BMP Monthly during rainy months 
Weed and remove invasives Twice during growing season 
Check for ponding/clogging in BMP Semi-annually 
Cut back vegetation Each spring 
Remove leaf buildup Each fall 
Check for and remove excess sediment, repair eroded 
areas 

Annually 

Repair/replace broken pipes As needed 
Supplemental watering of vegetation As needed during dry periods 
Media regeneration/replacement As needed (likely 5-10+ years of 

operation) 
 

  

84



85

diane.hankee
Highlight

diane.hankee
Highlight



86

diane.hankee
Highlight

diane.hankee
Highlight



87



EXHIBIT C 
 

88



Qty Unit Unit Cost Total Cost
% Lino Lakes 

Funded City of Lino Lakes
% Shoreview 

Funded City of Shoreview

2021.501 MOBILIZATION 1                   LS $2,353.50 $2,353.50 100% $2,353.50 0% $0.00

2511.602 LANDSCAPE BOULDER 6                   EA $500.00 $3,000.00 50% $1,500.00 50% $1,500.00

2540.603 LANDSCAPE EDGER 160              LF $20.00 $3,200.00 50% $1,600.00 50% $1,600.00

2571.502 DECIDUOUS TREE 1.5" CAL B&B 3                   EA $500.00 $1,500.00 50% $750.00 50% $750.00

2571.507 PERENNIAL NO 1 CONT 26                 EA $30.00 $780.00 50% $390.00 50% $390.00

2575.508 GROW LOW FESCUE GRASS 875              SF $6.00 $5,250.00 50% $2,625.00 50% $2,625.00

2575.513 MULCH MATERIAL TYPE 6 2                   CY $95.00 $190.00 50% $95.00 50% $95.00

2573.503 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET CATEGORY 30

2575.607 RIVER ROCK 10                 CY $300.00 $3,000.00 50% $1,500.00 50% $1,500.00

2575.507 BOULEVARD TOPSOIL BORROW 1.5               CY $100.00 $150.00 50% $75.00 50% $75.00

2571.507 IRRIGATION SYSTEM 1                   LS $30,000.00 $30,000.00 50% $15,000.00 50% $15,000.00

Total: $49,423.50 $25,888.50 $23,535.00

Qty Unit Unit Cost Total Cost

2021.501 MOBILIZATION 1                   LS $10,146.00 $10,146.00

2545.602 FURNISH AND INSTALL LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL A 6                   EA $12,000.00 $72,000.00

2545.602 FURNISH AND INSTALL LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL B 8                   EA $13,000.00 $104,000.00

2545.0602 FURNISH AND INSTALL UPLIGHT UNIT AND BASE 3                   EA $3,000.00 $9,000.00

2545.502 SERVICE CABINET TYPE L1 1                   EA $5,500.00 $5,500.00

2545.502 SERVICE EQUIPMENT 1                   EA $1,200.00 $1,200.00

2545.503 0.75" NMC 40                 LF $4.00 $160.00

2545.503 UNDERGROUND WIRE 1/C 8 AWG 8,800           LF $1.20 $10,560.00

IRRIGATION CONTROLLER POWER SUPPLY 1                   EA $500.00 $500.00

Total: $202,920.00

 

2504.602 WATER SERVICE TAP & HOOKUP 1                   EA $9,000.00 $9,000.00

2504.602 2" CORPORATION STOP 1                   EA $650.00 $650.00

2504.602 2" CURB STOP & BOX 1                   EA $800.00 $800.00

2504.603 2" TYPE K COPPER PIPE 256              LF $65.00 $16,640.00

Total: $27,090.00

Project Total: $279,433.50

Hodgson and County Road J 

LIGHTING AND ELECTRICAL BID

WATER SERVICE LINE QUOTE

ROUNDABOUT LANDSCAPING AND IRRIGATION QUOTE

89

diane.hankee
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 6E 

STAFF ORIGINATOR: Michael Grochala, Community Development Director 

MEETING DATE: April 22, 2024 

TOPIC:  Consider Resolution 24-39, Order Project, Approve Plans, 
Authorize AFB, Decorative Lighting for the CSAH 49/CRJ 
Roundabout Project 

VOTE REQUIRED: 3/5 
___________________________________________________________________ 

INTRODUCTION 

Staff is requesting Council approval to authorize the ad for bid for the decorative lighting for the 
CSAH 49/CRJ roundabout project.   

BACKGROUND 

The City’s Gateway Design for the CSAH 49 (Hodgson Road) and CR J (Ash Street) improvement 
project includes decorative lighting.  The estimated construction cost is $203,000.00.  The 
project is funded through a combination of developer contributions and municipal state aid 
streets funds. 

The estimated schedule for the project is as follows: 

Order Improvement, Approve Plans and Specs, and Authorize Ad for Bids April 22. 2024 
City Council Awards Contract May 28, 2024 
Construction Begins  June, 2024 
Completion  September 31, 2024 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. 24-39, Order Project, Approve the Plans and 
Specifications and Authorize the Ad for Bid for the decorative lighting, CSAH 49/CRJ roundabout 
project. 

ATTACHMENTS 

90



1. Resolution No. 24-39
2. Construction Plan

91



 

CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-39 

 
ORDER PROJECT, APPROVE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS, AND AUTHORIZE 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR DECORATIVE LIGHTING FOR THE CSAH 49/CR J 
ROUNDABOUT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Engineer has prepared plans and specifications for the Decorative Lighting for 
the CSAH 49/CRJ Roundabout Project. Project plans and specifications have been presented to 
the City Council for approval;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes: 
 

1. Such plans and specifications, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, 
are hereby approved. 

 
2. The City Clerk shall prepare and cause to be inserted in the official paper and in Finance 

and Commerce an advertisement for bids for the making of such improvement under 
such approved plans and specifications.  The advertisement shall be published for two 
weeks, shall specify the work to be done, shall state that bids will be received by the 
Clerk, at which time they will be publicly opened at the City Hall by the City Clerk and 
Engineer, will then be tabulated, and will be considered by the Council at 6:30 p.m. on 
May 28, 2024, in the Council chambers of the City Hall.  Any bidder whose responsibility is 
questioned during consideration of the bid will be given an opportunity to address the 
Council on the issue of responsibility.  No bids will be considered unless sealed and filed 
with the Clerk and accompanied by a cash deposit, cashier’s check, bid bond or certified 
check payable to the Clerk for five (5) percent of the amount of such bid.  

 
Adopted by the Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 

_______________________________          
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________                                     
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 
 
 

92



SCALE:

PLAN BY:

DESIGN BY:

CHECK BY:

SHEET

WSB PROJECT NO.

L
A

W
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

 O
F

 M
IN

N
E

S
O

T
A

. 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

D
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
 U

N
D

E
R

 T
H

E
 

D
IR

E
C

T
 S

U
P

E
R

V
IS

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

H
A

T
 I

 A
M

 A
 D

U
L

Y
 

O
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 W
A

S
 P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 M

E
 O

R
 U

N
D

E
R

 M
Y

 

I 
H

E
R

E
B

Y
 C

E
R

T
IF

Y
 T

H
A

T
 T

H
IS

 P
L

A
N

, 
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
, 

L
IC

. 
N

O
:

D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

AS SHOWN XXX

XXXXXX

S
E

A
N

 D
E

L
M

O
R

E
, 

P
E

3
/1

8
/2

0
2

4
4
0
9
4
5

021397-000

H
O

D
G

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

 J

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

IN
O

 L
A

K
E

S

MH

MH

MH

BTM

COUNTY RD J/ ASH ST
COUNTY RD J/ ASH ST

H
O

D
G

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D

B

8

B

7

B

6

B

5

B

4

B

14

B

13

B

12

B

11

B

10

B

9

B

1

B

2

B

3

LEGEND

X

X

IN EXISTING CONDUIT

3-1/C 8 AWG AND 1-1/C 8 AWG GR.

LIGHTING UNIT ID

FEEDPOINT

LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL C

LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL B

LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL A

B

16

B

15

B

17

K
:\

0
2
1
3
9
7
-0

0
0
\C

a
d
\P

la
n
\0

2
1
3
9
7
-0

0
0
-L

P
-L

IG
H

T
-L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
.d

w
g

FEET

0

H:
INSCALE

N

LIT1 10

50 100

FEEDPOINT B WIRING DIAGRAM

120/240 VOLT

   FD. PT. B

1

B

2

B

3

B

9

B

10

B

11

B

12

B

13

B

14

B

4

B

5

B

6

B

7

B

6

B

R
W

B R
W

B R
W

B R
W

B

GROUND NOT SHOWN
W DENOTES NEUTRAL CONDUCTOR
B AND R DENOTE CURRENT CARRYING CONDUCTORS

3-1/C 8 AWG

2" RSC & 3-1/C 2 AWG TO GROUND OR POLE MOUNTED TRANSFORMER
FEED POINT (B) 120/240v (METERED XCEL ENERGY)

PAD MOUNTED SERVICE CABINET TYPE L1

15

B

16

B

17

B

EXISTING HANDHOLE

EXISTING HANDHOLE

3-1/C 8 AWG IN 0.75" NMC

EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION LAMP SOURCE MOUNTING OPTICS MANUFACTURER & SERIES #

LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL 1

PENDANT SYLE LUMINAIRE ON ROUND TAPERED

ALUMINUM POLE

18' POLE W/

CONCRETE

BASE

LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL 2

PENDANT SYLE LUMINAIRE ON ROUND TAPERED

ALUMINUM POLE

18' POLE W/

CONCRETE

BASE

LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL 3

DESIGNER FLOODLIGHT WITH STANCHION

AND CUTOFF HOOD

4300 LUMENS

HORIZONTAL

FLOOD

SIGNIFY:DFC7-RM-16L-700-NW-G2-BZ-F1

STREET LIGHTING TABULATION N

ITEM ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT TOTAL

2545.502    LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL A EACH 6

2545.502    LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL B EACH 8

2545.502    LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL C EACH 3

2545.502    SERVICE CABINET TYPE L1 EACH 1

2545.502    SERVICE EQUIPMENT EACH 1

2545.503    0.75" NMC LIN FIT 40

2545.503    UNDERGROUND WIRE 1/C 8 AWG LIN FT 8600

93



SCALE:

PLAN BY:

DESIGN BY:

CHECK BY:

SHEET

WSB PROJECT NO.

L
A

W
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

 O
F

 M
IN

N
E

S
O

T
A

. 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

D
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
 U

N
D

E
R

 T
H

E
 

D
IR

E
C

T
 S

U
P

E
R

V
IS

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

H
A

T
 I

 A
M

 A
 D

U
L

Y
 

O
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 W
A

S
 P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 M

E
 O

R
 U

N
D

E
R

 M
Y

 

I 
H

E
R

E
B

Y
 C

E
R

T
IF

Y
 T

H
A

T
 T

H
IS

 P
L

A
N

, 
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
, 

L
IC

. 
N

O
:

D
A

T
E

:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

AS SHOWN XXX

XXXXXX

S
E

A
N

 D
E

L
M

O
R

E
, 

P
E

3
/1

8
/2

0
2

4
4
0
9
4
5

021397-000

H
O

D
G

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

 J

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

IN
O

 L
A

K
E

S

K
:\

0
2
1
3
9
7
-0

0
0
\C

a
d
\P

la
n
\0

2
1
3
9
7
-0

0
0
-L

P
-L

IG
H

T
-L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
.d

w
g

LIT2 10

LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL A DETAIL LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL B DETAIL

LIGHTING UNIT TYPE SPECIAL C DETAIL

MEDALLION COLOR DETAIL

2. COORDINATE INSTALLATION WITH ROADWAY CONTRACTOR
1. CONCRETE FOOTING AND CONDUIT PROVIDED BY OTHERS
NOTES:

94



1 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 6F 
 

STAFF ORIGINATOR:  Katie Larsen, City Planner 
 
MEETING DATE:  April 22, 2024 
 
TOPIC:    440 Park Court (Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility) 

i. Consider Resolution No. 24-34 Approving Conditional Use 
Permit for Two (2) or More Principal Buildings 

ii. Consider Resolution No. 24-35 Approving Parking 
Deferment Agreement 

iii. Consider Resolution No. 24-36 Approving Site 
Improvement Performance Agreement 

VOTE REQUIRED:  Simple Majority 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Staff is requesting Council consideration of the above noted items. 
 

Complete Application Date: February 8, 2024 

60-Day Review Deadline: April 8, 2024 but formally 
extended by applicant 

Environmental Board Meeting: February 28, 2024 
Park Board Meeting: N/A 

Planning & Zoning Board Meeting: March 13, 2024 

 City Council Work Session: April 22, 2024 
 City Council Meeting: April 22, 2024 

 
The applicant, Lariat Companies, Inc., is proposing to construct a 36,000 sf multi-tenant 
industrial and indoor self-storage building on the south half of property located at 440 Park 
Court. The north half of the site is the existing Lino Lakes Storage. 
 
The Land Use Application is for the following: 
 

• Conditional Use Permit for two (2) or more principal buildings 
• Site and Building Plan Review 

 

95



2 
 

This staff report provides a comparison of the March 13, 2024 Planning & Zoning staff report 
with the revised plans.  Changes in the plans are either narratively described or shown as 
strikethrough (deletions) or underline (additions).   
 
This staff report is based on the following information: 
 

• Applicant Narrative dated January 8, 2023 
• Architectural Plan Set prepared by Amcon dated January 26, 2024 March 25, 2024 
• Civil and Landscape Plan Set prepared by Elan Design Lab dated January 25, 2024 March 

26, 2024 
• Photometric Plan and Lighting Details prepared by AID Electric Corporation dated 

January 4, 2024 
• ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey prepared by E.G. Rud & Sons, Inc. dated January 26, 2024 
• Stormwater Management Plan prepared by Elan Design Lab dated January 26, 2024 

March 12, 2024 
• Wetland Delineation Report prepared by Jacobson Environmental, PLLC dated May 11, 

2023 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
History 
 
On September 10, 2018, the City Council passed Resolution No. 18-103 approving a conditional 
use permit for the mini self-storage facility located on Phase I, the north half of the 440 Park 
Court site. Phase II, the south half of the site, was contemplated for additional mini self-storage 
facilities; however, in January 2023, the new zoning ordinance was adopted and mini self-
storage facilities are no longer allowed in the LI, Light Industrial zoning district.  
 
The applicant is proposing to construct an industrial building with eleven (11) multi-tenant 
industrial units to be used by construction related businesses. The building will also have an 
indoor self-storage facility. See the attached applicant’s narrative for a detailed project 
description. 
 
Existing Site 
 
The 5.74 acres site is legally described as Lot 4, Block 1, Marshan Lake Industrial Park. The north 
half of the site has 12 mini self-storage facilities. 
 
In August 2018, a Response Action Plan/Contingency Action Plan (RAP/CCP) was completed by 
American Engineering Testing, Inc. summarizing the actions proposed to manage the impacted 
fill soil/concrete debris and construction materials encountered during redevelopment of the 
site. The RAP/CCP was approved by MPCA in October 2018. The remediation work was 

96



3 
 

completed in December 2021. The applicant shall has submitted an MPCA RAP Implementation 
approval letter confirming the site was properly remediated prior to City Council decision. 
 
Zoning and Land Use 
 
The subject site is zoned LI, Light Industrial. Construction related business and indoor self-
storage are permitted uses; however, a conditional use permit is required to allow for two (2) 
or more principal buildings on site (existing mini-storage facilities and industrial 
building/storage). 
 

Current Zoning LI, Light Industrial 

Existing Land Use Industrial 

Future Land Use per 2040 Comp Plan Industrial 

Utility Staging Area 1A=2018-2025 
 
Only permitted uses listed in the LI, Light Industrial zoning district shall be allowed to operate in 
the multi-tenant industrial building units. Conditional uses would not be allowed. 
 

1. For example, automobile repair-major or minor would not be allowed. 
 
Indoor self-storage or storage of personal items in the multi-tenant industrial building units 
shall not be allowed.  
 

1. The intent of the units is to provide a location for smaller industrial users to operate. 
2. Per City Code Section 1007.001 Definitions, outdoor access to individual units is 

prohibited for indoor self-storage. 
 
SELF-STORAGE, INDOOR. A fully enclosed, climate-controlled building that contains 
separate, individual and private storage spaces of varying sizes, leased or rented on an 
individual basis for the storage of personal property. Individual renters’ control and access 
individual storage spaces and each unit must be directly accessed from the interior of the 
building via its own access door. Outdoor access to individual units is prohibited. Ancillary retail 
sales of related items, such as moving supplies, and facility offices may also be included. Such 
facilities to be used for storage only. 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use 
 

Direction Zoning Existing Land Use Future Land Use 

North LI, Light Industrial  Vacant Industrial Industrial 

South LI, Light Industrial Industrial Industrial 

97



4 
 

East Low Density 
Residential 

Single Family 
Residential 

Low Density 
Residential 

West PSP, Public and 
Semi-Public School Civic/Institutional 

 
This general area west of Lake Drive has been zoned for light industrial use since at least the 
1987 zoning map. This general area east of Lake Drive has been zoned for residential use since 
at least the 1987 zoning map. 
 
Site and Building Plan Review 
 
Site Plan 
 
The total site is 5.74 acres.  The Phase II area is approximately 2.5 acres. Per the Sheet A011, 
Site Plan, the 36,000 sf building contains: 
 

• Eight (8) 26’ x 58’ 56’(1,500 1,450 sf) industrial units on the north side 
• Three (3) 25’ x 40’ (1,000sf) industrial units on the east side  
• Indoor self-storage area = 110’ x 165’ (19,997 sf)  

 
The industrial units have individual bathrooms. The mechanical room and trash enclosure is 
located inside the building.  
 
Access to Phase II is proposed through the Phase I mini self-storage private driveways. No 
additional access onto CSAH 23(Lake Drive) is allowed.  
 
Fence 
 
A six (6) foot high wood fence currently extends from the southeast corner of the mini self-
storage building 80ft along Lake Drive. It then extends 300ft west along the southside of the 
existing mini self-storage buildings. The wood fence is weathered and in need of maintenance. 
The fence currently provides perimeter control around the mini self-storage buildings. 
 
The applicant is proposing to relocate the south section of fence to Lake Drive in front of the 
new building. The wood fence would then extend 300+ft along Lake Drive.  
 
This proposed 6ft fence in the Lake Drive yard is not allowed. Per City Code Section  
 
1007.043(18) Fences and Retaining Walls: 

(a) Business and Industrial District Fences.   (See Diagram 3) 
 
Diagram 3 

98



5 
 

 
 

1. A fence not exceeding four (4) feet in height may be located in any yard. 
 

2. A fence not exceeding eight (8) feet in height may be located 
parallel to the front lot line from a front corner of a principal building to a side 
lot line that is not adjacent to a street. 

 
City code does not require a fence for perimeter control.  The applicant may is installing a 4ft 
high black chain link fence along Lake Drive similar to the fence along Park Court if for 
perimeter control is desired. The existing 6ft wood, weathered fence shall will be removed from 
the entire property. 
 
Lot Size and Setbacks 
 
The front lot line is along Park Court. Lot size, lot width and setback requirements are met. 
 

 LI Requirements Lot 1 

Min. Lot Size 1 acre 5.7 acres 

Min Lot Width 100 ft 420 ft 

   

Setbacks-Street Required Proposed 

Principal Building-Park Court 
 (local street) 30 ft 265 ft 

Principal Building-Lake Drive  
(arterial street) 50 ft  58 ft 

99



6 
 

Parking Lot 15 ft  50 ft 

   

Setbacks-Rear Lot Line  
(south lot line)  Required Proposed 

Principal Building 15 ft 15 ft 

Accessory Building 10 ft NA 

Parking Lot/Driveway 5 ft 15 ft 

   

Setbacks-Side Lot Line  
(west lot line)  Required Proposed 

Principal Building 10 ft 171.6 ft 

Accessory Building 10 ft NA 

Parking Lot/Driveway 5 ft 123.5 ft 

 
Architectural Plans and Exterior Building Materials 
 
Per the building elevations, the proposed exterior materials consist of smooth integral colored 
CMU (cream), smooth colored accent concrete brick flint (slate), hollow metal doors (black 
frames), and prefinished overhead doors. Each unit has a window. The exterior materials, 
colors, and percentages are compliant with performance standards. 
 
The proposed building height is 18’ 2” to the top of the wall. The proposed height is less than 
the maximum allowed 45ft. 
 
The trash & recycle room is located inside the building. 
 
Mechanical equipment is located inside the mechanical room. Any proposed or future rooftop 
mounted or ground units may require screening. 
 
Per Sheet A101, Floor Plan, an automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout the 
building for fire suppression. 
 
A building permit for change of use is required for any new tenant that occupies an industrial 
unit. 

 
Outdoor Lighting 
 

100



7 
 

Per City Code Section 1007.043(6)(d), no light source shall exceed 1.0 foot candle onto right of 
way or 0.4 foot candle onto adjacent property.  Per Sheet E-0.1, no light sources exceed 1.0 
foot candle along Park Court and Lake Drive. No light sources exceed 0.4fc along the west or 
rear lot line.  
 
The parking lot light pole is 20ft tall which is less the 45ft maximum allowed. The parking lot 
light fixture is down lit and cutoff as required by city code. Downlit wall pack mounted lights are 
provided on the exteriors of the building. 
 
The outdoor lighting performance standards are met. 
 
Off-Street Parking Requirements 
 
Per City Code Section 1007.044(6) and using Sheet A011, Site Plan: 
 

Use Number of Parking 
Spaces Required Total Spaces Required Total Spaces 

Provided 
Light 

Manufacturing 
1 space for each 500sf 

gross floor area 
8 units: 12,000 sf/500 = 24 

3 units: 3,000sf/500 = 6  

Warehousing 
(Indoor Self-

Storage) 

1 space for each 
2,000sf gross floor area 19,997sf/2,000 = 10  

 TOTAL = 40 31 constructed 
11 deferred 

 
Sheet C-101, Site Plan indicates 29 paved parking stalls and 2 ADA parking stalls for a total of 31 
parking stalls. The applicant is proposing 11 proof of parking spaces on the west side of the 
building. City Code Section 1007.044(7) 1007.052 details requirements for Parking Deferment 
as follows:   
 
  (7)   Parking deferment. The city may reduce the number of required off-street parking spaces 
for business, industrial, and institutional uses by administrative permit provided that: 
 
      (a)   The applicant must demonstrate that the proposed use will have a peak parking 
demand less than the required off-street parking under division (6) above of this section. 
Factors to be considered when reviewing the proposed parking demand shall include, but not 
be limited to: 
         1.   Size of building. 
         2.   Type and use. 
         3.   Number of employees. 
         4.   Projected volume and turnover of customer traffic. 
         5.   Projected frequency and volume of delivery or service vehicles. 
         6.   Number of company-owned vehicles. 
         7.   Storage of vehicles on site. 

101



8 
 

 
Per the applicant, “the owner has several other properties with the same use and the parking 
needed per leased space is typically 1 owner vehicle & maybe 1 employee. For the indoor 
storage spaces- it is rare to have more 3 vehicles at the building at any one time accessing the 
storage. So if every leased space had the need for 2 stalls, plus 3 vehicles for the storage area, 
all at the same time, that still would only be 25 parking stalls.”  
 
      (b)   In no case shall the amount of off-street parking provided be less than one-half of the 
amount of parking required by ordinance. 
 
Off-street parking requirements are 40 spaces. Thirty-one (31) spaces are being constructed and 
11 spaces are deferred. 
 
      (c)   The site has sufficient property under the same ownership to accommodate the 
expansion of the parking area to meet the minimum requirements of this ordinance if the 
parking demand exceeds on site supply. 
 
The deferred parking area is located to the west of the building. 
 
      (d)   Off-street parking shall only occur in areas designed and constructed for parking in 
compliance with this chapter. 
    
Off-street parking spaces are compliant. 
 
   (e)   The applicant and city enter into an agreement, to be recorded against the subject 
property, which includes a clause requiring the owner to install the additional off-street parking 
spaces, upon a finding of the Community Development Director that such additional parking 
spaces are necessary to accommodate the use. 
 
A Parking Deferment Agreement has been drafted and shall be executed and recorded. 
    
   (f)   A change of use will necessitate compliance with the applicable Zoning Ordinance 
standard for off-street parking. 
 
The applicant shall has detailed compliance with these requirements. 
 
Personal vehicles and delivery trucks cannot access, load, or turnaround near the 3 units on the 
east/southeast side of the building. The staging area for the indoor self-storage building also 
conflicts this area. The drive aisle in the east/southeast corner of the site accessing the staging 
area and 3 units shall be a minimum of 47ft wide has been revised to accommodate a 24ft wide 
drive aisle and 23ft deep parking stall per discussion at the Planning & Zoning Board meeting. 
This matches what is provided on the north side of the building.  
 

102



9 
 

An ADA accessible route shall be provided to all units.  The route cannot be behind parking 
stalls. Vehicles parking in the stalls in front of the unit doors cannot block accessibility.  
 
Grading Plan and Stormwater Management 
 
Per the City Engineer Memo dated March 6, 2024 April 10, 2024:  
 
The stormwater management for the Lino Lakes Tech Center consists of the installation of 
storm sewer structures and pipes to convey the site’s runoff to a new BMP (basin) on the west 
side of the parcel.  The runoff is generated from the one 36,040 square foot storage building 
and associated driveway and parking that is proposed to be constructed on the site. The 
development of the site will result in 0.156 acres of reconstructed impervious, and 1.329 acres 
of new impervious for a total of 1.485 acres of total impervious. 
 

Pre- and Post- Development Discharge Rates (cfs) 

Condition 2-Year 10-Year 100-Year 10-Day Snowmelt 

Existing 0.02 
0.6 

0.53 
0.9 

5.88 
5.1 Not provided 

Proposed 0.00 
0.1 

0.59 
0.9 

5.17 
4.9 Not provided 

 
Public Utilities 
 
The site is municipally served by a 12” watermain located along Park Court. An 8” sanitary 
sewer main will be installed along CSAH 23 (Lake Drive) and service the building. 
 
Tree Preservation and Mitigation Standards 
 
The Environmental Coordinator and Environment Board reviewed the tree preservation and 
landscaping requirements.  The following comments are from the February 28, 2024 
Environmental Board staff report. Additional comments are provided in the attached March 5, 
2024 April 2, 2024 memo. 
 
A tree survey was performed that identified: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In addition to the 56 large trees planted for the site, there will be 10 trees spaded and moved, 
and 50 trees preserved with Tree Protection Fence. 

Total Trees Removed    37 
Trees Preserved    60 
Trees Planted     56 
Total Trees Planted or 
Preserved 

 116 

103



10 
 

The majority of the trees planned for removal are in the Basic Use Area, not in Environmentally 
Sensitive Areas, and will not require mitigation trees.   
 
Tree Preservation and Mitigation Standards have been met. 
 
Open Areas Landscape Standards 
 
The purpose of these standards is to provide general site beautification and high aesthetic 
quality with a mix of plant materials in open areas.  Open area landscape standards call for 1 
large tree and 2 large shrubs per 2500 sf.  
 
Required for 29,175 square feet of open space: 12 large trees 
       24 large shrubs 
       Or 24 large trees 
 
Provided: 125 large trees  
 
Total provided trees includes 35 planted in open space and 37 existing trees along the west 
perimeter provide approximately 90 large trees of credit for this category.     
 
Open Areas Landscape Standards have been met. 
     
Buffer and Screen Standards 
 
The purpose of this requirement is to separate and buffer different land use types, screen roads 
and parking, and screen utility and loading areas.  Continuous, year-round planting screens 
require, at the minimum, a double row of plants with triangulated spacing.   
 
A 6-foot high continuous planting screen will be required for the east perimeter (along Lake 
Drive).  This requirement will be met with a combination of 4-foot berm, trees and shrubs 
planted in triangulated double row, and a fence on the downslope side of the berm closer to 
the parking lot.  
 
Buffer and Screen Standards have been met. 
 
Canopy Cover 
 
Canopy cover standards call for a minimum of 40% canopy coverage.  Canopy coverage values 
are calculated per tree based on the anticipated size 15 years after planting, and the distance to 
hardscape edge from the planting location. 
 
Vehicular hardscape planned:  21,765 sq. ft.  
Canopy cover requirement:     8,706 sq. ft. 
Canopy cover provided:    7,200 sq. ft. 

104



11 
 

 
Canopy cover credit is given for 7 deciduous trees along the east parking lot perimeter and 5 
deciduous trees along the perimeter of the proof of parking area. 
 
Replacing the 3 conifers on the east parking lot perimeter and 2 conifers on the proof of parking 
area perimeter with deciduous tree species will provide additional canopy cover credit to meet 
the standard.  These changes were made. 
 
Canopy cover requirements have not been met.   
 
Foundation Landscaping 
 
The purpose of these standards is to soften and enhance building architecture, define access 
points, add color and seasonal interest, and to blend buildings in with the natural environment.  
These standards apply to building fronts and sides facing public or private streets. 
 
2 large trees and 6 large shrubs are required per 100 linear feet of building.  These plants 
should be within 30 feet of the building. 
 
The following substitutions are allowable: 
1 large tree = 1.5 medium or 2 small trees 
1 large shrub = 1.5 medium or 3 small shrubs 
 
Also, one large tree may be substituted for every 2 large shrubs in lieu of the shrub requirement 
at the discretion of the City. 
 
The applicable building faces requiring foundation landscaping for this project are the north and 
east sides. 
 

 Large Trees Large Shrubs (or equivalents) 
Required-North 2 6 
Provided-North 2 6 
Required-East 2 5 
Provided-East 2 6 

 
The north building face (the front) will have 5 large trees planted near the northwest corner of 
the building.  This will provide the 2 large trees required, with the remaining 3 large trees 
substituting for the required 6 large shrubs. 
 
The east building face (along Lake Drive) will have 5 large trees planted near the southwest 
building corner.  This will provide the 2 large trees required, with the remaining 3 large trees 
substituting for the 6 large shrubs. 
 

105



12 
 

The foundation landscape requirements have been met. 
 
Sod and Ground Cover Standards 
 
All areas not otherwise improved in accordance with the approved site plans shall have a 
minimum depth of 4 inches of topsoil and be sodded including boulevard areas.  Seed may be 
provided in lieu of sod in certain cases, including when the area is adjacent to natural areas or 
wetlands. 
 
The grading and landscape plans note the following cover types and quantities for disturbed 
areas: 
 

Sod 4,350 sf 
Turf at proof of parking area 6,280 sf 
No Mow Fescue Mix 21,805 sf 
Native Seeding 7,257 sf 
Stormwater Seeding 4,185 sf 

 
The stabilization plan includes 76% either native species or low-maintenance alternative turf 
varieties.  This includes Mn DOT 33-261 for the stormwater basin area, a mesic prairie mix for 
the upland areas around the stormwater basin, and a low-maintenance fescue mix for the berm 
that runs along Lake Drive. 
 
A cover type should be specified for the proof of parking area. 
 
The landscape plan notes irrigation in front of buildings and boulevard areas. 
 
Signage 
 
A Comprehensive Sign Plan as required by City Code Chapter 1010 has been submitted as Sheet 
A302, Comprehensive Sign Plan.  
 
A separate Sign Permit Application with detailed sign information is required for the proposed 
signage and any future permanent, replacement, or temporary signage installation. 
 
Impervious Surface Coverage 
 
The east portion of the parcel is located in the Shoreland Management Overlay District of 
Marshan Lake. A maximum of 60% impervious surface is allowed.  The remainder of the site 
allows for 75% impervious surface coverage per the LI, Light Industrial zoning district.  During 
site plan review for Phase I, Sheet EX3, Shoreland District indicated a total of 3.98 acres of 
impervious surface is allowed for the entire 5.73 acre site.  Per Sheet C-101, Site Plan, the 
proposed impervious surface of the entire Phase I + Phase II site is 3.39 acres.   Impervious 
surface requirements are met. 

106



13 
 

 
Impervious Surface Coverage 

Total Parcel Size 249,763 sf 5.73 acres 

Allowed Impervious Surface 173,368 sf 3.98 acres 

Phase I + II Impervious Surface 147,885 sf 3.39 acres 
 
Traffic Study 
 
A trip generation statement was prepared by Traffic Impact Group, LLC dated June 13, 2023. 
The analysis estimates 165 daily trips. CSAH 23 (Lake Drive) is an A-Minor Arterial Reliever and 
has capacity for these additional trips.  Level of Service is not impacted. 
 
Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) 
 
An EAW is not required for the 36,000 sf industrial building. 
 
Wetlands 
 
A Wetland Delineation Report was completed by Jacobson Environmental, PLLC in May 2023. 
The wetland boundaries have changed since the first Wetland Delineation Report completed in 
August 2017.  
 
RCWD has not issued a formal Notice of Decision (NOD) approving the new delineation on 
March 7, 2024. There appear to be are no wetland impacts proposed with the Phase II 
industrial building.  An official RCWD NOD is required prior to City Council action on the 
Conditional Use Permit and Site & Building Plan Review. 
 
Drainage and utility easements at least 10ft from the approved wetland delineation boundary 
are required. The existing easements do not appear to cover the minimum 10ft.  A separate 
Drainage & Utility Easement Agreement shall be recorded. 
 
Shoreland Management Overlay 
 
As previously discussed, the east portion of the parcel is in the Shoreland District of Marshan 
Lake (Natural Environment). The amount of impervious surface allowed in the Shoreland 
District is 60 % and the LI, Light Industrial District is 75%.  The impervious surface requirements 
are met as discussed under Impervious Surface above. 
 
Floodplain Management 
 
There is no FEMA floodplain on site. 
 

107



14 
 

Additional City and Government Agency Review Comments 
 
Anoka County Highway Department 
 
Anoka County Highway Department reviewed the site plan and provided comments in their 
February 12, 2024 email. A right-of-way permit from the County is required. 
 
Public Safety Comments 
 
Lino Lakes Public Safety Department-Fire Division notes concerns regarding access to the 
westside of the building and possible blocked exit door by the snow storage pile have been 
addressed. 
 
Lino Lakes Public Safety Department-Police Division reviewed the site & building plans and had 
no comments. 
 
Environmental Board 
 
The Environmental Board reviewed the development proposal at their February 28, 2024 
meeting and noted some with minor revisions are needed. These are summarized in the 
attached March 5, 2024 Environmental Coordinator memo. 
 
Planning and Zoning Board 

The Planning & Zoning Board held a public hearing on March 13, 2024.  There were no public 
comments.  The Board recommended approval with a 6-0 vote with conditions detailed in 
Resolution No. 24-34. One of those conditions includes the re-establishment of the existing 
berm along CSAH 23 (Lake Drive).  This condition and comment has been added to Sheet L-102, 
Landscape Plan. 

Agreements 
 
Stormwater Maintenance Agreement  
 
The stormwater facilities will be privately maintained and a Declaration for Maintenance of 
Stormwater Facilities will be required.  
 
Site Improvement Performance Agreement 
 
A Site Improvement Performance Agreement is required and will be drafted by the City. 
 
Comprehensive Plan  
 
 

108



15 
 

Land Use Plan 
 
The Comprehensive Plan guides this property for industrial use.  The proposed multi-tenant 
industrial and indoor self-storage building is consistent with industrial land use.  
 
Housing Plan 
 
The goals and policies of Housing Plan are not negatively impacted by the multi-tenant 
industrial and indoor self-storage building. 
 
Economic Development Plan 
 
The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building promotes the goal of the 
Economic Development Plan to expand existing businesses in Lino Lakes. 
 
Transportation Plan 
 
Goals of the Transportation Plan are to ensure that street and roads are as safe as possible and 
to reduce unnecessary traffic. The multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building does 
not change the level of service along CSAH 23/Lake Drive or Park Court.  Customers will 
egress/ingress the site from Park Court to CSAH 23/Lake Drive.  CSAH 23 (Lake Drive) is an “A” 
minor reliever road and has capacity to handle minimal traffic volumes created by the 
development. 
 
Local Water Management Plan 
 
The purpose of the water management program is to protect, preserve, and use natural surface 
and groundwater storage and retention systems and prevent erosion of soil into surface water 
systems. 
 
The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building protects the natural 
surface and groundwater storage with the construction of stormwater management BMP’s 
such as curb, gutter, and infiltration basin. Erosion and sediment control practices will also be 
implemented. 
 
Sanitary Sewer and Water Supply Plan 
 
An 8” sanitary sewer main will be installed along CSAH 23 (Lake Drive) and service the multi-
tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building. A 12” watermain located along Park Court 
will also service the building. 
 
The sanitary sewer and water supply systems have capacity for the proposed industrial building. 

Parks, Greenways and Trails 

109



16 

The Parks, Greenways and Trails system is not negatively impacted by the proposed multi-
tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building. 

Community Facilities 

Community Facilities are not negatively impacted by the multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-
storage building. 

Findings of Fact 

Council Resolution No. 24-34 details the findings of fact. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning & Zoning Board recommended approval of the Conditional Use Permit and Site & 
Building Plan Review for 440 Park Court (Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility). 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Rendered Building Elevations
2. Site Plan and Landscape Plan
3. City Engineer Memo dated April 10, 2024
4. Resolution No. 24-34
5. Resolution No. 24-35
6. Parking Deferment Agreement
7. Resolution No. 24-36
8. Site Improvement Performance Agreement

110



EAST ELEVATION1
A301 SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION2
A301 SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION3
A301 SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION4
A301 SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

MATERIAL & COLOR LEGEND

MATERIAL CALC

MATERIAL CALC

MATERIAL CALC

MATERIAL CALC

COMBINED MATERIAL CALC

A301

©
 

ISSUES / REVISIONS:

D
ES

IG
N

/B
U

IL
D

  |
  C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
 | 

 G
EN

ER
AL

 C
O

N
TR

AC
TI

N
G

61
21

 B
AK

ER
 R

O
AD

, S
U

IT
E 

10
1

M
IN

N
ET

O
N

KA
, M

IN
N

ES
O

TA
 5

53
45

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-3
79

-9
09

0
FA

X:
 6

51
-3

79
-9

09
1

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

LI
N

O
 L

AK
ES

 T
EC

H
 C

EN
TE

R
 A

N
D

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

44
0 

PA
R

K 
C

O
U

R
T,

 L
IN

O
 L

AK
ES

, M
N

 5
50

14

ST
O

R
AG

E 
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

Attachment 1:  Rendered Building Elevations
111



35,477 SF +/-

15' REAR YARD SETBACK

50
' F

RO
NT

 Y
AR

D 
SE

TB
AC

K

EXISTING
INFILTRATION

BASIN

BUILDING

(12,043 SF)

 10
' S

ID
E 

YA
RD

 S
ET

BA
CK

8-~26'X56' BAYS

3 BAYS
(3,071 SF)

MECH RM

INFILTRATION
BASIN

30' FRONT YARD SETBACK

 10' SIDE YARD SETBACK

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

4

1116

EXISTING
PRETREATMENT

BASIN

11

XX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

TR

33.4'

23
'

17
0'

15
'

9'

18'

24
'

DRAINAGE & UTILITY
EASEMENT

WETLAND

10' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT

20
' D

RA
IN

AG
E 

& 
UT

ILI
TY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T

50.67'

TY
P

211.2'

24'
3.2'

18'

17' WIDE DOUBLE
SWING GATE

TY
P9'

61.5'
170.6'

( C
. S

. A
. H

  
N

O
.  

 2
3

)

PARK   COURT

LA
KE

   D
RI

VE

10' WETLAND
BUFFER

SN
OW

 S
TO

RA
GE

HEAVY DUTY
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

SECTION (TYP)

E1
C-501

3' TRANSITION FROM
6" TO 4" CURB

B612 CURB &
GUTTER (TYP)

B5
C-501

LIGHT DUTY
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT
SECTION (TYP)

E2
C-501

B612 CURB &
GUTTER (TYP)

B4
C-501

WALL MOUNTED
ACCESSIBLE SIGNAGE

(TYP)

C5
C-501 8'

20'
4'

24'

8'
8'

R3.67'

9'

6'

MODULAR BLOCK
RETAINING WALL

9' 7' 10'
TYPTYPTYP

18
.5'

4.5
'

PROOF OF PARKING

CURB
MODIFICATION
AT CATCH BASIN
(TYP)

A1
C-501

R3.29'

4'

8' HIGH CHAIN LINK
SECURITY FENCE

4' WIDE GATE

REINSTALL
STOP SIGN

REINSTALL
SIGN

15.67'

24.7'

DRAINAGE & UTILITY
EASEMENT
CONCRETE STOOP
SEE ARCH (TYP)

CONCRETE STOOP
SEE ARCH (TYP)

CONCRETE STOOP
SEE ARCH (TYP)

SIDEWALK
JOINT (TYP)

C1
C-501

EXISTING FENCE

CONCRETE WALKWAY
PAVEMENT SECTION

(TYP)

E5
C-501

CONCRETE PAVEMENT
JOINT (TYP)

C2
C-501

3' TRANSITION FROM
6" TO 4" CURB

D412 CURB &
GUTTER (TYP)

123.5'

171.6'

B612 CURB &
GUTTER (TYP)

MAX 6" GAP
BETWEEN FENCE &
EXISTING BUILDING

3' TRANSITION FROM
6" TO 4" CURB

D412 CURB & GUTTER
TAPER LAST 5' OF GUTTER
TO MATCH BLDG CORNER

40
'

D412 CURB &
GUTTER (TYP)

B4
L-501

B4
L-501

FDC
TRASH & RECYCLE

ROOM

TURF AT PROOF OF
PARKING

E6
C-501

R50'

24.6'

3' TRANSITION FROM
6" TO 4" CURB

SN
OW

ST
OR

AG
E

SNOW STORAGE IF PROOF
OF PARKING IS BUILT

PRIMARY SNOW STORAGE

NOTE: EACH TENANT SPACE HAS THE POTENTIAL
FOR AN ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALL IN FRONT OF

THEIR SPACE UTILIZING THE AREA IN FRONT OF THE
OVERHEAD DOOR AND CROSS HATCHED ACCESS

AISLE IN FRONT OF THE MAN-DOOR.

CONCRETE AT BUILDING
SEE ARCH (TYP)

26.3'

36.1'

20'

4' WIDE CURB
OPENING

4' HIGH CHAIN LINK
SECURITY FENCE
(TYP)

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

. S
. A

. H
  

N
O

.  
 2

3
)

PARK   COURT

LA
KE

   D
RI

VE

260' FIRE HOSE
FROM NORTH

285' FIRE HOSE
FROM EAST

9030

SCALE IN FEETKnow what's  below.
       Call before you dig.

      R

A1 SITE PLAN
1" = 30'

C-101
SITE PLAN

LEGEND
HEAVY DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT

LIGHT DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

SITE PLAN NOTES
1. VERIFY ALL FIELD CONDITIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION/CONSTRUCTION.

IF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR UNKNOWN UTILITIES ARE FOUND THAT IMPACT DESIGN OR IMPAIR
CONSTRUCTION, THE ENGINEER AND OWNER SHOULD BE IMMEDIATELY NOTIFIED.

2. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE TO FACE OF CURB AND EXTERIOR FACE OF BUILDING
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

3. MEET AND MATCH EXISTING CONDITIONS.  PROVIDE TRANSITION AS NECESSARY.

4. ON-SITE CURB TO BE B612  AND D412 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER.  RIGHT-OF-WAY CURB TO BE
B618 CURB & GUTTER.

5. ALL CURBS TO HAVE 3/4" EXPANSION JOINTS AT A MAXIMUM OF 100'-0" AND CONTROL JOINTS AT A
MAXIMUM OF 10'-0".

6. ALL PARKING STALLS TO BE PAINTED WITH A 4" WIDE WHITE STRIPING.  ACCESSIBLE SYMBOLS TO
BE PAINTED IN WHITE AND ACCESSIBLE ACCESS AISLES TO BE PAINTED WITH A 4" WIDE WHITE
PAINTED STRIPE 18 INCHES ON CENTER AND AT 45 DEGREE ANGLES TO STALL, WITH 'NO PARKING'
MARKED.  REFLECTORIZED PAINT SHALL COMPLY WITH MNDOT 3592.

AMC23004
PROJECT  NO.

SHEET

CERTIFICATION

D E S I G N
C I V I L  E NG I N E E R I N G  |  L A N D S C A PE  A R C H I T EC T U R E

310 4TH AVE SOUTH, SUITE 1006
M I N N E A P O L I S ,  M N  5 5 4 1 5

www.elanlab.comp  612.260.7980
f  612.260.7990

1 2 3 4 5 6
E

D
C

B
A

I hereby certify that this plan, specification or report
was prepared by me, or under my direct supervision,
and that I am a duly Licensed Professional Engineer
under the laws of the state of MINNESOTA.

Stephen M. Johnston
18914 01/25/2024

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REGISTRATION NO.
DATE

RESPONSE TO CITY
COMMENTS

01/25/2024

LINO LAKES
INDUSTRIAL AND
STORAGE CENTER

LINO LAKES, MINNESOTA

ISSUE DATE

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT

AMCON
6121 BAKER RD, SUITE 101

MINNETONKA, MINNESOTA 55345
651-379-9090

LARIAT COMPANIES INC.
8345 Crystal View Rd. #200

Eden Prairie, Minnesota, 55344

OWNER

ZONED: L - I LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

SITE 249,763 SF ( 5.73 AC)
       EXISTING PROPOSED

 
IMPERVIOUS 89,931 SF. (36%) 148,274 SF. (59%)
(75% MAX.ALLOWANCE)

BUILDING            40,682 SF. (16%)       40,682 SF. (16%)
PHASE II BUILDING  35,477 SF. (14%)
PARKING, WALK, & TRASH 49,249 SF. (20%)     66,215 SF. (27%)
PROOF OF PARKING    5,900 SF. ( 2%)
NOT PROPOSED TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT THIS TIME

PERVIOUS AREA             159,832 SF. (64%)    101,489 SF. (41%)

SETBACKS              REQUIRED        PROPOSED

FRONT 50' LAKE DRIVE 61.5' (LAKE DRIVE)
50' (EXISTING)

30' PARK COURT 42.8' (EXISTING)
SIDE 10' 170.6' (BUILDING), 123.5' (PARKING)
REAR 15' 15'

PARKING SUMMARY

REQUIRED 40 STALLS
LIGHT MANUFACTURING 8 UNITS: 12,000 SF/ 500 = 24 STALLS
(1/ 500 GFA) 3 UNITS: 3,000 SF/ 500 = 6 STALLS
WAREHOUSING 19,997 SF/ 2,000 = 10 STALLS
(1/ 2,000 GFA)

PROPOSED   31 CONSTRUCTED STALLS +  11 PROOF OF PARKING STALLS
2 - 9' X 18' ACCESSIBLE STALLS
29 - 9' X 18' STANDARD STALLS

(1 STANDARD STALLS WILL BE LOST TO BUILD PROOF OF PARKING)

ADDITIONAL 11 STALLS COULD BE BUILT IF NEEDED TO MEET THE DEMAND OF THE BUILDING USERS.
THESE STALLS WILL NOT BE BUILT UNLESS THERE IS THE DEMAND.

PROJECT SUMMARY

A6 FIRE TRUCK CIRCULATION (37.5' SPARTAN GLADIATOR AERIAL)
1" = 80'

PERVIOUS AREA

TURF AT PROOF OF PARKING1

WATERSHED / CITY COMMENTS          03/08/20241

2

2

2

CITY COMMENTS                                    03/26/2024

1

2

2

2

NO PARKING AREA STRIPING2

2

Attachment 2: Site Plan and Landscape Plan 112

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



( C
. S

. A
. H

  
N

O
.  

 2
3

)

PARK   COURT

LA
KE

   D
RI

VE

DECIDUOUS TREE
PLANTING

(TYP)

D1
L-501

CONIFEROUS TREE
PLANTING

(TYP)

A1
L-501

SHRUB
PLANTING
(TYP)

D3
L-501

EDGING AT
PLANTING
BED (TYP)

A3
L-501

MAINTENANCE STRIP
(TYP)

E3
L-501

EXISTING FENCE

4' HIGH BERM

4' HIGH BERM

SPADE
EDGE
(TYP)

A5
L-501

TREE REPLACEMENT
SEE SHEET L-010 TREE

PRESERVATION PLAN FOR
SUMMARY (TYP)

TREE REPLACEMENT
SEE SHEET L-010 TREE
PRESERVATION PLAN
FOR SUMMARY

EXISTING TREES

 REPLACED SHRUBS

SNOW
STORAGE

SNOW
STORAGE

TREE REPLACEMENT
SEE SHEET L-010 TREE PRESERVATION

PLAN FOR SUMMARY

MODULAR BLOCK
RETAINING WALL

B4
L-501

8' CHAIN LINK
SECURITY FENCE
(TYP)

B4
L-501

ROCK STRIP BETWEEN CURB
AND RETAINING WALL

SNOW STORAGE IF PROOF
OF PARKING IS BUILT

PRIMARY SNOW STORAGE

SPADED TREES
FROM EXISTING
VEHICULAR
HARDSCAPE
(TYP)

SPADED TREES
FROM BUFFER &
SCREEN (TYP)

REPLACED
SHRUBS
(TYP)

FILL STUMP GRILDING AREAS
WITH SOIL AS NEEDED.

APPLY TOPSOIL & RESEED.

BERM RE-ESTABLISHMENT
SPOT TREATMENT ALL NOXIOUS WEEDS

USING APPROVED BOARDLEAF HERBICIDE.
DO NOT DISPOSE NOXIOUS WEEDS.

REPAIR & OVERSEED BERM WITH NO MOW
LAWN SEEDING

4' CHAIN LINK
SECURITY FENCE

(TYP)

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

XX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

9030

SCALE IN FEET
   

Know what's  below.
       Call before you dig.

      R

A1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
1" = 30'

L-102
LANDSCAPE PLAN

AMC23004
PROJECT  NO.

SHEET

CERTIFICATION

D E S I G N
C I V I L  E NG I N E E R I N G  |  L A N D S C A PE  A R C H I T EC T U R E

310 4TH AVE SOUTH, SUITE 1006
M I N N E A P O L I S ,  M N  5 5 4 1 5

www.elanlab.comp  612.260.7980
f  612.260.7990

1 2 3 4 5 6
E

D
C

B
A

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

I hereby certify that this plan was prepared by me, or
under my direct supervision, and that I am a duly
Licensed Landscape Architect under the laws of the
state of MINNESOTA.

Pilarsinee Saraithong
REGISTRATION NO. 01/25/2024

DATE
45059

RESPONSE TO CITY
COMMENTS

01/25/2024

LINO LAKES
INDUSTRIAL AND
STORAGE CENTER

LINO LAKES, MINNESOTA

ISSUE DATE

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT

AMCON
6121 BAKER RD, SUITE 101

MINNETONKA, MINNESOTA 55345
651-379-9090

LARIAT COMPANIES INC.
8345 Crystal View Rd. #200

Eden Prairie, Minnesota, 55344

OWNER

LEGEND

SOD 3,975 SF.

NO MOW LAWN SEEDING 27,435 SF.

NATIVE SEEDING 7,925 SF.

LANDSCAPE NOTES
1. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FINISHED GRADING AND

POSITIVE SURFACE DRAINAGE IN ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS. LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR MUST ENSURE THAT THE FINAL GRADES ARE MET AS
SHOWN ON GRADING PLAN.  IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND,
IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR RESOLUTION.

2. ALL PLANT MATERIALS ARE TO CONFORM WITH STATE & LOCAL
CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND THE CURRENT ADDITION OF THE
AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN STANDARDS.  ALL PLANT
MATERIALS ARE TO BE HEALTHY, HARDY STOCK, AND FREE FROM ANY
DISEASES, DAMAGE, AND DISFIGURATION.

3. QUANTITIES OF PLANTS LISTED ON THE PLAN ARE TO GOVERN ANY
DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THE QUANTITIES SHOWN ON THE PLANT
SCHEDULE AND PLAN. PLACE PLANTS IN PROPER SPACING FOLLOWING
LAYOUT FIGURES.

4. TOPSOIL TO BE MNDOT 3877.2B  LOAM TOPSOIL BORROW  FOR
LANDSCAPED AREAS AND PLANTING BEDS.  PROVIDE ROOTING TOPSOIL
BORROW MNDOT 3877.2E FOR PLANT RESTORATION, WATER QUALITY, AND
FILTRATION PLANTING.

5. PLANTING SOIL TO BE CONSISTED OF 50% SELECT TOPSOIL BORROW
(MNDOT 3877) AND  50% GRADE 2 COMPOST (MNDOT 3890).  PLANTING SOIL
TO HAVE A  PH BETWEEN 6.5-7.5, BE FREE OF CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS,
DEBRIS, LARGE ROCKS GREATER THAN 1/ 2" DIAMETER, AND FRAGMENTS
OF WOOD.  SUBSOIL SHALL BE SCARIFIED TO A DEPTH OF 4" BEFORE
PLANTING SOIL IS SPREAD.

6. SPREAD PLANTING SOIL AT MINIMUM EIGHTEEN (18) INCH DEEP IN ALL
PLANTING BEDS PRIOR TO PLANTING.   THOROUGHLY WATER TWICE TO
FACILITATE CONSOLIDATION PRIOR TO PLANTING.  DO NOT OVERLY
COMPACT SOIL.

7. MULCH TO BE SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH (MNDOT 3882 TYPE 6),
CONSISTED OF RAW WOOD MATERIAL FROM TIMBER AND BE A PRODUCT
OF A MECHANICAL CHIPPER, HAMMER MILL, OR TUB GRINDER. THE
MATERIAL SHALL BE SUBSTANTIALLY FREE OF MOLD, DIRT, SAWDUST, AND
FOREIGN MATERIAL AND SHALL NOT BE IN AN ADVANCED STATE OF
DECOMPOSITION. THE MATERIAL SHALL NOT CONTAIN CHIPPED UP
MANUFACTURED BOARDS OR CHEMICALLY TREATED WOOD, INCLUDING,
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WATER BOARD, PARTICLE BOARD, AND CHROMATED
COPPER ARSENATE (CCA) OR PENTA TREATED WOOD. THE MATERIAL
SHALL BE TWICE-GROUND/ SHREDDED, SUCH THAT; NO INDIVIDUAL PIECE
SHALL EXCEED 2 INCHES IN ANY DIMENSION.

8. APPLY FOUR (4) INCH DEPTH OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH IN
FOUR (4) FOOT DIAMETER RING AROUND ALL TREES.

9. EDGE ALL SHRUB BEDS WITH 3/16" X 5.5" MILL FINISHED ALUMINUM EDGING
WITH STAKES.  ALL EDGING TO BE COMMERCIAL GRADE.

10. APPLY FOUR (4) INCH DEPTH OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH IN
ALL SHRUB  AREAS.  PRIOR TO MULCHING, APPLY PRE-EMERGENT
HERBICIDE TO ALL PLANTING BEDS.

11. APPLY PRE-EMERGENT TO MULCH IN PLANTING AREAS TO PROHIBIT WEED
GROWTH.  APPLICATION RATE TO BE PER MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS.  IF WEEDS APPEAR IN TREATED AREAS DURING THE
FIRST YEAR, LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE ALL WEEDS AT NO
ADDITIONAL COST.

12. APPLY THREE (3) INCH DEPTH OF 2-3 INCH TRAP ROCK MULCH OVER WEED
BARRIER FABRIC IN MAINTENANCE AREAS INDICATED ON PLAN.

13. WEED BARRIER FABRIC TO BE BLACK POLYPROPYLENE SHEET 5 OZ/SQ.YD.
TENSILE STRENGTH PER ASTM D-4632, PRODUCT BY DEWITT COMPANY OR
APPROVED EQUAL.

14. SOD SHOWN ON LANDSCAPE PLAN TO BE INSTALLED BY LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR.  SOD TO BE MNDOT 3878.2A, DENSE, AND OF UNIFORM
TEXTURE, FREE OF WEEDS AND DISEASE.  APPLY MINIMUM SIX (6) INCHES
OF SELECT TOPSOIL BORROW AND THOROUGHLY APPLY  FERTILIZER TO
TOP TWO (2) INCHES BEFORE LAYING SOD.   LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO
MAINTAIN SODDED AREAS IN HEALTHY CONDITION UNTIL FIRMLY ROOTED.

15. LANDSCAPE AREAS IN FRONT OF BUILDINGS AND BOULEVARD AREAS
SHALL BE IRRIGATED WITH AN UNDERGROUND IRRIGATION SYSTEM.  NO
WATER IS ALLOWED ON ANY PAVEMENT, PARKING, WALKWAY, AND
BUILDING.  THE IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR IS TO DESIGN AND SUBMIT SHOP
DRAWING OF IRRIGATION DESIGN AND CALCULATIONS TO LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT FOR REVIEW 5 DAYS PRIOR TO PURCHASING AND
INSTALLATION.  IRRIGATION DESIGN IS TO MEET ALL CITY AND STATE
PLUMBING CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.

16. FOLLOW LANDSCAPE DETAILS FOR ALL INSTALLATION, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

17. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN PLANTS IN HEALTHY
CONDITION THROUGHOUT WARRANTY PERIOD.  THE WARRANTY PERIOD IS
TWO FULL YEARS FROM DATE OF PROVISIONAL ACCEPTANCE UNTIL FINAL
ACCEPTANCE.  WARRANTY PERIOD FOR PLANT MATERIAL INSTALLED
AFTER JUNE 1ST SHALL COMMENCE THE FOLLOWING YEAR.

STORMWATER SEEDING 4,185 SF.

SEE SHEET C-203 FOR SEEDING NOTES
SEE SHEET L-101 FOR PLANT SCHEDULE

TURF AT PROOF OF PARKING 6,280 SF.

WATERSHED / CITY COMMENTS          03/08/20241

2

2

WATERSHED / CITY COMMENTS          03/08/20241

1

CITY COMMENTS                                    03/26/20242

1

1

2

113

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING



1
7

8
 E

 9
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
  

| 
 S

U
IT

E
 2

0
0

  
| 

 S
A

IN
T

 P
A

U
L,

 M
N

  
| 

 5
51

0
1

  
| 

 6
5

1
.2

8
6.

8
4

5
0

  
| 

 W
S

B
E

N
G

.C
O

M
 

Memorandum 

To: Katie Larsen, Lino Lakes City Planner 

From: Diane Hankee PE, Lino Lakes City Engineer 

Date: April 10, 2024 

Re: Lino Lakes Tech Center  
Conditional Use Plan Review 
023187-000 

WSB reviewed the Conditional Use plans for the Lino Lakes Tech Center site in Lino Lakes, MN, 
received March 27, 2024. The site is 2.34 acres and located at 440 Park Court west of Lake Drive 
(CSAH 23). The lot has frontage along Lake Drive (CSAH 23). Comments were made on the 
following documents:  

• Lino Lakes Tech Center plans prepared by Amcon, dated March 26, 2024

The following review comments should be responded to in writing by the applicant.  There are 
additional redline comments on the plan set that should be responded to as well.  Not all redline 
comments are in the review memo. 

Amcon (11/13/2023) responses in red. 
WSB (11/29/2023) responses and new comments in blue. 
Amcon (2/6/2024) responses in green. 
WSB (3/6/2024) responses and new comments in orange. 
Elan (3/26/2024) responses and new comments in purple 
WSB (4/5/2024) responses and new comments in light blue. 

Engineering 

• Grading

A grading plan for the proposed parking lot, storm water basins, and tech center has 
been provided.  

The area proposed for the Lino Lakes Tech Center has previously been identified to 
contain construction debris materials buried underneath the existing site.  A Response 
Action Plan (RAP) and Contingency Construction Plan (CCP) have been drafted to 
include that grading of the site proposes capping or necessary removal of the debris as 
part of the site preparation. 

An infiltration basin is proposed on the south side of the existing pond to provide 
treatment and storage for the site.  This expansion will need to remain outside the 
delineated wetland. 

Comments: 
1. Provide a grading plan meeting City requirements.

Attachment 3: City Engineer Memo dated April 10, 2024

114



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 2 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

(Amcon 11/13/2023) Understood, Civil drawings will be provided for the full Site & 
Building Plan Submittal after this Concept Submittal approval. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) To be reviewed at the time of full submittal 
(WSB 3/6/2024) Submitted 
 

2. The applicant shall note that site grading work shall be done in accordance with the 
approved MPCA Response Action Plan (RAP) and Contingency Construction Plan 
(CCP). Provide updated documentation regarding the current state of the RAP. 
(Amcon 11/13/2023) A copy of the RAP & CCP document, dated Aug. 27, 2018 is 
included for your review. The owner did have the site cleaned up, please refer to City 
of Lino Lakes Permit #2021-02485.  Junk & debris that had been dumped on the site 
was removed & existing concrete debris was properly recycled. 
Amcon (2/6/2024) We have engaged Braun Intertec to perform a Soil Vapor 
Investigation.  We are requesting that the Planning Commission & City Council have 
this as a condition of approval. See attached EXHIBIT #3 to review Braun Intertec’s 
proposal and timing to perform this work. 
(WSB 3/6/2024) the RAP & CCP MPCA approvals should be provided to the City 
prior to City Council approval. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) A note has been added to C-201. The status of the cleanup will be 
provided by Braun. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 
 

3. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to revise slopes on BMP to a maximum of 3:1. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The slopes shown at 2:1 are in areas that will not be mowed. A 2:1 
slope is stable. It is not possible to flatten these slopes to 3:1 and maintain sufficient 
pond volume. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Per City design standards, slopes are to be a maximum 3:1 ratio. 
This is consistent with MN Stormwater Manual and Nationwide Urban Runoff 
Program (NURP) design standards. 
 

4. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to call out EOFs of all low points to ensure appropriate 
freeboard is provided to proposed and existing structures. 

a. Minimal freeboard (1') between FFE (903.50) and EOF (902.5) for the catch 
basin on the east side of the building. 

i. Care will need to be taken that this area is not blocked with snow 
(shown as snow storage) during thawing/ periods of heavier rain. 

(Elan 3/26/2024) The grades have been adjusted to provide an overflow to the south 
at elevation 902.5. Snow storage should occur behind the curb. The D412 curb and 
lack of landscape materials is intended to make it easier to push the snow into the 
area adjacent to the berm. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete - Caution will need to be taken care of to keep the EOF 
route clear of snow in case the catch basin backs up and water levels could get over 
904 
 

5. (WSB 3/6/2024) Correct the direction of the flow arrows shown on the storm sewer 
pipes. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The line type (direction of flow) has been corrected. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 
 

6. (WSB 3/6/2024) Verify the amount of drainage being contributed from the existing 
storage area to the north of the site. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) See stormwater narrative for existing drainage map based on 
current survey. 

115



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 3 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete. 
 

7. (WSB 4/5/2024) (Redline comment from previous plans) Show EOFs for catch basins 
north of the building.  Provide minimum required freeboard from lowest openings of 
both existing and proposed buildings. 
 
 

 
• Stormwater Management  

  
The stormwater management for the Lino Lakes Tech Center consists of the installation of 
storm sewer structures and pipes to convey the site’s runoff to a new BMP (basin) on the 
west side of the parcel.  The runoff is generated from the one 36,040 square foot storage 
building and associated driveway and parking that is proposed to be constructed on the site. 
The development of the site will result in 0.144 acres of reconstructed impervious, and 1.341 
acres of new impervious for a total of 1.485 acres of total impervious. 

 
 

Comments: 
1. The applicant shall provide an updated Stormwater Management Report 

demonstrating the appropriate sizing and treatment for the expansion.  
(Amcon 11/13/2023) Understood, Civil drawings will be provided for the full Site & 
Building Plan Submittal after this Concept Submittal approval. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) To be reviewed at the time of full submittal. 
(WSB 3/6/2024) Updated report matches plans for new impervious and BMP grading. 
Further comments are provided below.  
 

 
 

2. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to clarify BMP type. It is referenced as both a biofiltration 
basin and an infiltration basin at various points. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) This has been cleaned up in the report. The facility has undergone 
numerous changes resulting in disparities. The basin is an infiltration basin. 
 

3. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to specify access route to proposed BMP. The current site 
plan appears to require access through an existing BMP or down a retaining wall. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The retaining wall just east of the basin overflow is zero feet high. 
Small tracked equipment such as a skid steer or excavator can cross the curb here to 
access the outlet control device. The basin is also accessible in a similar manner at 
the south end of the proof of parking area. 
 

4. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to revise CN of disturbed pervious cover in accordance 
with RCWD Rule C.4(b). 
(Elan 3/26/2024) This change was requested by RCWD and has been made. The 
change had limited impact on the HWL or peak discharge rates. 

 

116



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 4 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

5. (WSB 3/6/2024) It is recommended to model the downstream BMP in order to 
understand potential tailwater effects and impacts to high water levels. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The plan has been modified since your last review. The outlet is 
now directed to the wetland. We would be happy to look at the tailwater condition if 
you are able to provide a hydrograph for the wetland. We could also create an 
assumed synthetic hydrograph if the HWL is known. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Based on wetland size and elevation, this tailwater effect is not a 
concern. 
 

6. (WSB 3/6/2024) Exfiltration is not allowed in modeling in order to more conservatively 
estimate high water levels. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) This comment is not understood. The required WQ volume is met 
without discharge. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Correct, WQ volume is not a concern with this comment. Infiltration 
BMPs are requested to be modeled without exfiltration outletting in the case of long-
term clogging to ensure rate control and HWLs are still within allowable ranges. 

 
7. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to model the constructed BMP overflow. Current modeling 

indicates that this overflow would be used and impact outflow rates in 100-yr event. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The overflow continues to be directed to the existing basin with an 
overflow elevation equal to the calculated HWL. No discharge via the overflow is 
intended for the 100-year or lesser events. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) HydroCAD modeling shows a 100-yr HWL of 901.99 and the EOF 
on sheet C-201 is called out as 901.75, meaning it would see discharge for the 100-
yr event. Additionally, more flows could be routed over it based on the exfiltration 
outlet removal of Comment 6. 

 
8. (WSB 3/6/2024) This review finds the minor increase in outflow rates during 10-year 

storm event is within modeling error. However, the City will defer to RCWD 
comments if they find this increase unacceptable. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) Runoff is reduced in all events in the updated model submitted to 
RCWD. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) This comment remains open based on the items discussed in 
Comments 6 and 7. 
 

 
9. (WSB 3/6/2024) Based on pervious area berm flowing to CB 4, a Tc of 10 minutes is 

more appropriate and might ease pipe capacity limitations. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The pipes are sized for a 10-year event with a 5 minute Tc. There is 
no capacity issue. 
 

 
10. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to confirm constructability of CB 4. Current rim and inverts 

don’t appear to leave enough concrete leg above pipe cutout. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The storm sewer system has been renumbered since there was a 
STMH 4 and CB4. CB 4 is now CB 5. It is a 2’ x 3’ structure with 2.06’ of cover over 
the pipe. This structure is constructable. 
 

 
11. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to confirm constructability of V-notch in BMP OCS. Detail 

appears to indicate notch continues up to structure rim, which would impact mounting 
of skimmer grate. 

117



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 5 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

(Elan 3/26/2024) The 20° notch, as measured from vertical has a 1.25’ rise resulting 
in a width of 11” at the top of the structure. The 27” diameter structure has an inside 
circumference of 85 inches. The PS27-33S grate utilizes 4 mounting slots 21” apart, 
leaving enough room to attach the grate to the structure. 
 

 
12. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to correct mismatch between V-notch invert shown on 

plans and model. Plans show invert of 899.5, while modeling has invert of 899.75. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The plans updated for the watershed show a consistent 899.5 
elevation for the bottom of the notch. 
 

 
13. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to include air gap between roof leader and drainage pipe 

routing to BMP on the west side of the building. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The runoff from the roof will be collected in a system internal to the 
building connected to the pipe shown on the plan. Please explain where and why you 
want this air gap. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Air gap requirement to be determined by the City Building 
Department review. 
 

 
14. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to shift CBMH 1 and CBMH 2 away from retaining wall in 

order to allow for proper compaction around structures. Recommended distance is 
1.5x structure build height to allow for 1.5:1 compaction. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) These structures will be installed prior to constructing the retaining 
walls and will be located within the reinforcement grid for the wall which will be hand 
compacted. They will be moved if deemed necessary by the wall designer. Otherwise 
we chose to keep them in their present location adjacent to the curb. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Confirmation with the wall designer is requested. 
 

 
15. (WSB 3/6/2024) Ductile iron pipe is recommended for storm sewer runs with less 

than 2’ of pipe cover in order to ensure pipe longevity. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) All pipes have at least two feet of cover. 
 

 
16. (WSB 3/6/2024) Applicant to check utility conflicts between storm sewer and 

watermain. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) Elevations at all crossings have been added to the plan. 
 

 
• Water Supply  

  
Water is shown being supplied for the site by connecting to the water line of the existing 
storage site to the north.  An additional connection may be made across Lake 
Drive/CSAH 23 if the single 6” stub is found to be inadequate for the requirements of the 
site. 

 
Comments: 
1. Applicant to provide a utility plan for the site meeting City requirements. 

(Amcon 11/13/2023) Understood, Civil drawings will be provided for the full Site & 
Building Plan Submittal after this Concept Submittal approval. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) To be reviewed at the time of full submittal 

118



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 6 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

(WSB 3/6/2024) Submitted 
 

2. We recommend that the City Deputy Director of Public Safety-Fire Division review the 
proposed plan when submitted 
(Amcon 11/13/2023) Understood. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) To be reviewed at the time of full submittal 
(WSB 3/6/2024) Fire official to review updated submittal including fire coverage 
shown with hoses 

 
3. (WSB 3/6/2024) Show gate valve installed with wet tap 

(Elan 3/26/2024) Gate valve has been shown on plan. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 
 

4. (WSB 3/6/2024) 6" PE pipe proposed for directionally drilled water service across 
Lake Drive/ right of way. 

a. The City requires PVC C900 in the right of way 
(Elan 3/26/2024) PE was chosen to allow for directional drilling. Directional drilling C-
900 is not feasible. The cost of jack/boring a casing pipe is prohibitive and open 
cutting the busy road would be a mistake. We request permission for the alternative 
material which has been used in similar situations for decades. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Call out on plans as HDPE SDR 18 
 
 

5. (WSB 3/6/2024) Clarify whether this is the 'relocated' hydrant from the Removals 
sheet 

a.  Fire Official to review whether a new hydrant is required 
i. If acceptable call out as install salvaged hydrant (assembly) 

(Elan 3/26/2024) The hydrant that exists on site is less than 5 years old. 
There is no reason why, if carefully removed, that it should not be 
suitable for reuse. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Call out on existing conditions as ‘salvage existing 
hydrant’; Call out as ‘install salvaged hydrant and furnish and install 6” 
gate valve’ on utility plan. 

 
 

6. (WSB 3/6/2024) Existing 6" hydrant valve to remain is located in a proposed private 
parking space 

a. Fire Official to review and confirm access to gate valve 
b. Consider cutting back and installing a new shutoff valve to the north and the 

existing hydrant assembly (including valve) would be installed by the building 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The valve serves no real purpose other than allowing the existing 
line to remain active during construction and avoiding the need for this project’s 
contractor to pressure test the existing system along with the new. The valve’s 
location is immaterial. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 
 

7. (WSB 4/5/2024) Verify minimum separation (18”) between sanitary sewer main and 
proposed looping water service.  Offset water service under sanitary sewer as 
required to maintain minimum depth. 
 

8. (WSB 4/5/2024) Clarify that the connection to the existing 12” watermain should not 
shut down the active line.  Tapping sleeve will need to meet City requirements. 

 

119



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 7 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

 
 

• Sanitary Sewer  
  

Sanitary sewer service is shown being supplied for the site by extending an 8” sanitary 
sewer main along the west side of Lake Drive/CSAH 23 to the southern site limits.  A 6” 
sanitary sewer service will be connected to the sanitary sewer main at a proposed 
manhole. 

 
Utilities are not proposed or shown for the site. Sanitary sewer maybe required 
depending on use. 
(Amcon 11/13/2023) Understood, Civil drawings will be provided for the full Site & Building 
Plan Submittal after this Concept Submittal approval. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) Based on the proposed use of bathrooms, sanitary sewer will be 
required to be extended along Lake Drive to the site 
(WSB 3/6/2024) Submitted 

 
Comments: 

 
1. (WSB 3/6/2024) Field verify size and depth of sanitary sewer stub 

a. Initially assume 8" PVC SDR 26 per as-built 
b. Sanitary sewer main to be SDR 26 

(Elan 3/26/2024) The elevation of the new line will be adjusted as needed based on 
the elevation of the existing stub. The plans have been changed to SDR 26. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 

 
2. (WSB 3/6/2024) Sanitary sewer service pipe to be Schedule 40 

(Elan 3/26/2024) The sewer service pipe is called out in the sheet notes to be 
Schedule 40. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 
 

3. (WSB 3/6/2024) Outside drop should reference City Standard Detail Plate SAN-4 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The detail has been changed to plate SAN-4 and is referenced on 
C-301.  
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 
 
 
 

• Transportation  
  

Lino Lakes Tech Center proposes connecting to the existing storage site to the north for 
access off of Park Court with paved private access to each of the units throughout the 
site. The 2003 EAW analyzed this parcel as a light industrial user with two (2) 
professional office buildings totally 28,800 sf.  The existing mini self-storage facility 
together with the Tech Center will produce less traffic than two professional office 
buildings and therefore, is consistent with the EAW findings. No adverse traffic impacts 
are anticipated and a traffic study is not required. 
 
There should be no site access off of Lake Drive per Anoka County Access Policy. 

 
Comments: 

120



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 8 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

1. Vehicle access through the existing storage facility is a concern. We recommend 
additional evaluation. 
(Amcon 11/13/2023) No site access from Lake Drive is allowed per Anoka County 
Access Policy (WSB review, dated 7/5/23), so this property is landlocked.  The only 
access is through the existing storage buildings/ phase I entrance from Park Court. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) Fire vehicle turning movements provided.  Turning movements for 
delivery and garbage vehicle exhibits will need to be provided with full submittal.  
Access details for the site owners and users utilizing the current secure storage 
access should be provided with full submittal.  
(WSB 3/6/2024) Turning movements for delivery and garbage vehicles not provided 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The turning movement for a fire truck is shown on C-101. This 
vehicle is larger than a typical delivery or garbage truck. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) 
  

2. The applicant shall provide a pavement removal/replacement and site plans 
(Amcon 11/13/2023) Understood, Civil drawings will be provided for the full Site & 
Building Plan Submittal after this Concept Submittal approval. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) To be reviewed at the time of full submittal 
(WSB 3/6/2024) Submitted 
 

3. The applicant shall note if curb & gutter will be used  
(Amcon 11/13/2023) Incomplete sentence from WSB review, dated 7/5/23.  Curb & 
gutter is shown in the proposed site plan. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) Label curb and gutter style and identify areas of tipout curb with 
full submittal 
(WSB 3/6/2024) Complete 

 
4. (WSB 3/6/2024) There is limited turning movements and access for all potential 

vehicles to the 3 bays at the south end of the parking area 
a. Stop the parking area shorter and extend a sidewalk down for the remaining 

bays. 
b. Shift the south eastern snow storage to the newly created green space out of 

the current EOF route 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The plan shows the driveway being widened to 24 feet as discussed 
at the planning commission meeting. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 

 
5. (WSB 3/6/2024) The curb transition location in the northeast corner of the site is not 

practical for snow storage considering its proximity to the existing building. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The snow storage area has shifted south. The northern end remains 
somewhat difficult to access with a truck but remains accessible for a skid steer 
which would likely be used on site during years of significant snow fall. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 
 

6. (WSB 3/6/2024) Consider wheel stops for parking against the building without curb. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) Wheel stops make snow removal very difficult. Each stall in 
question is there for the benefit of the occupant. We will leave this decision to the 
building owner. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete 

 
7. (WSB 3/6/2024) Identify ADA access to the north side of the building. 

(Elan 3/26/2024) As noted on the updated plan each parking space on the side of the 
building is reserved for the tenant including the driveway which combined with the 

121



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 9 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

crosshatched area in front of the door exceeds the requirement for an accessible 
stall. If the tenant requires an accessible stall, they will be able use the area directly 
adjacent to their space. The slopes have been adjusted to comply with ADA. This is 
deemed a better solution than showing an accessible route from the designated stalls 
across the stoops of each space to the northeast corner of the building.  
(WSB 4/5/2024) City to verify ADA access requirements are met 
 

 
• Wetlands and Mitigation Plan  

  
Wetlands are shown on the existing survey for the site.   
 
Comments: 
1. The existing wetland is not in the Wetland Mapping Corridor (WMC) 
2. The minimum (10’) wetland buffer is shown on the site plans. 
3. Grading for the stormwater pond is proposed within the minimum wetland buffer, to 

be revegetated with a native seed mix. 
 
  

• Landscaping  
 
Landscaping plans were not provided as part of the submittal. The City’s Environmental 
Coordinator to review landscaping and provide in-depth comments when provided 
(Amcon 11/13/2023) Understood, Civil & Landscape drawings will be provided for the full 
Site & Building Plan Submittal after this Concept Submittal approval. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) To be reviewed at the time of full submittal 
(WSB 3/6/2024) Comments to be provided by the City’s Environmental Coordinator 

 
Comments: 
1. (WSB 3/6/2024) No landscaping is allowed in the basin’s High Water Level HWL 

(901.75) 
(Elan 3/26/2024) The trees in this area are located on the wetland side of the berm. 
(WSB 4/5/2024) Complete. 

 
• Floodplain  

  
No floodplain impacts are proposed on site. 

 
 

• Drainage and Utility Easements  
  

Drainage and utility easements are required for stormwater systems. 
(Amcon 11/13/2023) Understood, Civil drawings will be provided for the full Site & Building 
Plan Submittal after this Concept Submittal approval. 
(WSB 11/29/2023) To be reviewed at the time of full submittal 
(WSB 3/6/2024) Easements to be provided and approved prior to City Council approval. 
(Elan 3/26/2024) Understood 

 
 

• Development Agreement  
  

A Development Agreement will not be required.  

122



Ms. Katie Larsen 
04/10/2024 
Page 10 

Lino Lake Tech Center Engineering Review 

  
 

• Grading Agreement  
  

A Grading agreement is not required.  
 
 

• Stormwater Maintenance Agreement  
 

The stormwater facilities will be privately maintained and a Declaration for Maintenance of 
Stormwater Facilities will be required. Both the Rice Creek Watershed District (RCWD) and 
the City of Lino Lakes shall be parties to the Declaration.  

(Elan 3/26/2024) understood 
 
• Permits Required  

 
1. NPDES General Construction Permit 
2. City of Lino Lakes Zoning Permit for construction 
3. Rice Creek Watershed Permit  
4. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency – approved 

RAP and CCP 
5. Anoka County Right-of-Way Permit if grading work extends into their right of way. 

(Elan 3/26/2024) The county permit will be required for the sanitary sewer 
extension 
 

 
If you or the applicant have any questions regarding these comments, please contact Kris 
Keller at (612) 419-3083 or kkeller@wsbeng.com. You may also contact Diane Hankee at (651) 
982-2430 or dhankee@linolakes.us. 
 

123



1 

CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-34 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 
440 PARK COURT (LINO LAKES TECH CENTER & STORAGE FACILITY) 

WHEREAS, on February 8, 2024, the City received a land use application for a 
conditional use permit for two (2) or more principal buildings at 440 Park Court (Lino Lakes Tech 
Center & Storage Facility) and hereafter referred to as “Development”; and 

WHEREAS, the March 13, 2024 Planning & Zoning Board Staff Report and the April 22, 
2024 Council Staff Report provide supporting narrative and documentation to the land use 
application; and 

WHEREAS, the property is zoned LI, Light Industrial and allows for two (2) or more 
principal buildings on site (existing mini-storage facilities and industrial building/storage) with 
an approved conditional use permit; and  

WHEREAS, the legal description of the property is Lot 4, Block 1, Marshan Lake 
Industrial Park; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has completed a review of the land use application based on the 
following plans: 

• Applicant Narrative dated January 8, 2023
• Architectural Plan Set prepared by Amcon dated March 25, 2024
• Civil and Landscape Plan Set prepared by Elan Design Lab dated March 26, 2024
• Photometric Plan and Lighting Details prepared by AID Electric Corporation dated

January 4, 2024
• ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey prepared by E.G. Rud & Sons, Inc. dated January 26, 2024
• Stormwater Management Plan prepared by Elan Design Lab dated March 12, 2024
• Wetland Delineation Report prepared by Jacobson Environmental, PLLC dated May 11,

2023; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Planning & Zoning Board on March 13,
2024 and the Board recommended approval of the conditional use permit. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
Per City Code Section 1007.016(3): 

Attachment 4:  Resolution No. 24-34
124



2 

(e) The Planning and Zoning Board shall hold the public hearing and consider possible
adverse effects of the proposed conditional use. Its judgement shall be based upon, but not 
limited to, the following factors: 

1. The proposed development application has been found to be consistent with the
design standards listed in City Code Section 1007.020(4). 

See below. 

2. Will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and conditions
of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare because of 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building will not involve activities 
detrimental to any person, property, or the general welfare. 

3. Will not result in the destruction, loss, or damage of a natural, scenic or historic
feature of major importance. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building will not result in the 
destruction of a natural, scenic, or historic feature of major importance. 

Per City Code Section 1007.020: 

(4) Performance Standards.  Plans which fail to meet the following criteria shall not be
approved. 

(a) The proposed development application must be consistent with the policies and
recommendations of the Lino Lakes Comprehensive Plan. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building is consistent with 
industrial land use.  

(b) The proposed development application is compatible with present and future
land uses of the area. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building is compatible with present 
and future land uses of the area. 

(c) The proposed development application conforms to performance standards
herein and other applicable City Codes. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building conforms to City Code 
performance standards with minor revisions as noted in this resolution. 

125



3 

(d) Traffic generated by a proposed development application is within the
capabilities of the City when: 

1. If the existing level of service (LOS) outside of the proposed development is A or
B, traffic generated by a proposed development will not degrade the level of service more than 
one grade. 

2. If the existing LOS outside of the proposed development is C, traffic generated by
a proposed development will not degrade the level of service below C. 

3. If the existing LOS outside of the proposed development is D, traffic generated
by a proposed development will not degrade the level of service below D. 

4. The existing LOS must be D or better for all streets and intersections providing
access to the proposed development.  If the existing level of service is E or F, the developer 
must provide, as part of the proposed project, improvements needed to ensure a level of 
service D or better. 

5. Existing roads and intersections providing access to the proposed development
must have the structural capacity to accommodate projected traffic from the proposed 
development or the developer will pay to correct any structural deficiencies. 

6. The traffic generated from a proposed development shall not require City street
improvements that are inconsistent with the Lino Lakes Capital Improvement Plan.  However, 
the City may, at its discretion, consider developer-financed improvements to correct any street 
deficiencies. 

7. The LOS requirements in paragraphs 1. to 4. above do not apply to the I-
35W/Lake Drive or I-35E/Main St. interchanges.  At City discretion, interchange impacts must 
be evaluated in conjunction with Anoka County and the Minnesota Dept. of Transportation, and 
a plan must be prepared to determine improvements needed to resolve deficiencies.   This plan 
must determine traffic generated by the proposed development project, how this traffic 
contributes to the total traffic, and the time frame of the improvements.  The plan also must 
examine financing options, including project contribution and cost sharing among other 
jurisdictions and other properties that contribute to traffic at the interchange. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building is within the capabilities of 
the City. CSAH 23 (Lake Drive) is an “A” minor reliever road and has capacity to handle minimal 
traffic volumes created by the development. Level of service is not impacted. 

126



4 

(e) The proposed development shall be served with adequate and safe water
supply. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building will be municipally served 
by a 12” watermain located along Park Court and will have an adequate water supply. 

(f) The proposed development shall be served with an adequate or safe sanitary
sewer system. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building will be municipally served 
by an 8” sanitary sewer main installed along CSAH 23 (Lake Drive) and will have an adequate 
sanitary sewer system. 

(g) The proposed development shall not result in the premature expenditures of
City funds on capital improvements necessary to accommodate the proposed development. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building does not require City 
funds. 

(h) Fire prevention and fighting equipment acceptable to the Board of Fire
Underwriters and City Council shall be readily available when any activity involving the handling 
or storage of flammable or explosive materials is carried on. 

The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building does not involve any 
activity involving the handling or storage of flammable or explosive materials. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the following specific performance standards of City Code 
Section 1007.140(9) have also been met: 

(g) Two (2) or more principal buildings on same lot provided such buildings relate to a
permitted or conditional use that is operated as a single business or enterprise.

The Phase I-Lino Lake Storage mini self-storage facility and Phase II multi-tenant industrial and 
indoor self-storage building shall be operated as a single business or enterprise. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the conditional use permit for two (2) or more principal 
buildings on same lot for 440 Park Court Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility is approved 
subject to the following conditions: 

1. Permitted uses listed in City Code Section 1007.140(7), LI, Light Industrial zoning district
shall be allowed to operate in the multi-tenant industrial building units.

2. Conditional uses as listed in City Code Section 1007.140(9), LI, Light Industrial zoning
district shall not be allowed to operate in the multi-tenant industrial building units.

127



5 

3. Indoor self-storage or storage of personal items in the multi-tenant industrial building
units shall not be allowed.

4. The Phase I-Lino Lake Storage mini self-storage facility and Phase II multi-tenant
industrial and indoor self-storage building shall be operated as a single business or
enterprise as required per City Code Section 1007.140(9)(g).

5. A Parking Deferment Agreement shall be recorded.
a. If the proof of parking area is constructed in the future, the parking spaces in
front of the west unit shall be striped “No Parking” to allow for a 24ft wide drive
aisle

6. A Site Improvement Performance Agreement shall be executed.
7. A Declaration for Maintenance of Stormwater Facilities in favor of RCWD and the City

shall be recorded.
8. A Permanent Drainage and Utility Easement 10ft above the delineated wetland

boundary, 10ft above the stormwater pond 100 year HWL, and over the sanitary sewer
pipe shall be granted to the City and recorded.

9. If installed, rooftop or ground mounted mechanical equipment shall be screened per
City Code Section 1007.043(2)(d)14.

10. Annual inspections may be conducted by the City to ensure City Code compliance.
11. A separate sign permit application shall be submitted and approved by the City prior to

any permanent, replacement, or temporary signage installation.
12. A building permit application for change of use shall be submitted for any new tenant

that occupies a multi-tenant industrial building unit.
13. An Anoka County right-of-way permit is required.
14. Conditions of Resolution No. 18-103 still apply.
15. Failure to comply with any of the listed conditions may result in revocation of the

conditional use permit.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the following items shall be addressed prior to issuing a
zoning permit for grading: 

1. All comments from the City Engineer memo dated April 10, 2024.
2. The applicant shall draft the following documents for City review and approval:

a. Permanent Drainage and Utility Easement with exhibit 10ft above the delineated
wetland boundary, 10ft above the stormwater pond 100 year HWL, and over the
sanitary sewer pipe

b. Declaration for Maintenance of Stormwater Facilities with exhibit
3. An ADA accessible route shall be provided to all units.

a. Revised plans shall be submitted to the City for review and approval.
4. Applicant shall submit to the City a MN DNR Natural Heritage letter along with applicant

response to any recommendations detailed in the letter.
5. The Site Improvement Performance Agreement shall be executed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the following information shall be submitted to the City prior
to issuing a building permit: 

128



6 

1. Certified Compaction Testing as required by Building Department.
2. Sheet A101, Floor Plan and Sheet A302:

a. Staff will determine building and unit addresses.  Addresses on the plan sheets
will then need to be revised accordingly.

3. Recorded copies
a. Parking Deferment Agreement
b. Declaration for Maintenance of Stormwater Facilities
c. Permanent Drainage and Utility Easement

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 

___________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

129



CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-35 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 440 PARK COURT 
PARKING DEFERMENT AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a conditional use permit for 440 Park Court with 
Resolution No. 24-34 on April 22, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the legal description of the property is Lot 4, Block 1, Marshan Lake 
Industrial Park; and 

WHEREAS, 440 Park Court requested a reduction in the number of required parking 
spaces pursuant to the parking deferment provisions of City Code Section 1007.052(7); and 

WHEREAS, the City agrees to reduce the number of required stalls provided all 
requirements of City Code Section 1007.052(7) remain satisfied. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that 
the Parking Deferment Agreement between Lariat Companies, Inc. is approved and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are authorized to execute such agreement on behalf of the City. 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 

_______________________________  
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

Attachment 5:  Resolution No. 24-35
130



1 

PARKING DEFERMENT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Lino Lakes, a Minnesota 
municipal corporation, and Lariat Companies, Inc, a Minnesota business corporation, effective 
______________, 2024. 

Recitals 

1. Lariat Companies, Inc. is constructing a new facility (Facility) at 440 Park Court, Lino
Lakes, MN 55014.

2. The legal description of the property (Property) is Lot 4, Block 1, Marshan Lake Industrial Park.

3. Lariat Companies, Inc. requested a reduction in the number of required parking spaces
pursuant to the parking deferment provisions of City Code Section 1007.052(7).

4. The City agrees to reduce the number of required spaces provided all requirements of
City Code Section 1007.052(7) are, and remain, satisfied.

Agreement 

1. The City agrees to defer the parking space requirements set forth in City Code Section
1007.052 for the Property subject to the following conditions:

a. Lariat Companies, Inc. shall install a minimum of 31 improved parking spaces and
shall provide for a minimum of 11 deferred parking spaces.  This number shall
not be decreased without written permission from the City.

b. On-site parking only occurs in areas designed and constructed for parking in
accordance with the City Code.

c. Additional parking shall be installed by the Property owner if the City Community
Development Director finds that such additional spaces are necessary to
accommodate the use of the Facility.  Any additional spaces shall be constructed
in accordance with the ordinance requirements existing as of the date of this
Agreement.

d. Any change in the use of the Property requires compliance with the then-current
Zoning Code standards for parking.

2. Lariat Companies, Inc., its employees, successors and assigns, agrees to adhere to these
conditions in consideration for receipt of the parking deferral.

3. This Agreement may only be modified in a writing signed by both parties.

Attachment 6: Parking Deferment Agreement

131



2 
 

CITY OF LINO LAKES 
 
By _________________________ 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST 
     
By _________________________ 

City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF ANOKA  ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________ day of ____________, 2024, 
by Rob Rafferty as Mayor of the City of Lino Lakes on behalf of said City. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF ANOKA  ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________ day of ____________, 2024 
by Hannah Lynch as City Clerk of the City of Lino Lakes on behalf of said City. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
  

132



3 
 

DEVELOPER      
 
By ______________________   

Edward F. Flaherty      
 
Its ______________________    

Chief Executive Officer    
       
 
 On this _______ day of _______________, 2024, before me, a Notary Public within and 
for said County, personally appeared ____________, __________________ of 
___________________ (Developer), who executed the foregoing instrument.   
 
 
 ______________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 
 
 

This instrument drafted by: 
 
City of Lino Lakes 
600 Town Center Parkway 
Lino Lakes, MN  55014 
 

133



CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-36 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 440 PARK COURT 
SITE IMPROVEMENT PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, the City has completed review of the site and building plans for 440 Park 
Court; and 

WHEREAS, the legal description of the property is Lot 4, Block 1, Marshan Lake 
Industrial Park; and 

WHEREAS, City Code Section 1007.020(6) requires the execution of a site improvement 
performance agreement prior to issuance of a building permit. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that 
the Site Improvement Performance Agreement between the City of Lino Lakes and Lariat 
Companies, Inc. is approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute such 
agreement on behalf of the City. 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 

_______________________________  
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

Attachment 7:  Resolution No. 24-36

134



Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 1 of 11 

CITY OF LINO LAKES, MINNESOTA 
SITE IMPROVEMENT PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made this _______ day of _______________, 2024, is by 
and between the City of Lino Lakes, a municipal corporation organized under the laws 
of the State of Minnesota, and Lariat Companies, Inc., (“Developer”). 

WHEREAS, the Developer has received approval of Site Development Plans, 
hereinafter called the "Plans", by the City of Lino Lakes on the 22nd day of April, 2024, 
and in accordance with the Plans all of which are made a part hereof by reference.  In 
consideration of such approval, the Developer, its successors and assigns, does covenant 
and agree to perform the work as set forth in the Plans, in the aforesaid approval, and as 
hereinafter set forth upon the real estate (hereinafter referred to as "Property") described 
as follows:   

LOT 4 BLOCK 1 MARSHAN LAKE INDUSTRIAL PARK, SUBJ TO EASE OF REC 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties made 
herein, 

IT IS AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO:  

I. DESIGNATION OF IMPROVEMENTS.

A. Improvements on the project site to be installed at the Developer’s
expense by the Developer as hereinafter provided are hereinafter referred
to as “On-site Work”.

B. Improvements off the project site to be installed at the Developer’s
expense, if any, by the Developer as hereinafter provided are hereinafter
referred to as “Off-Site Work”.

C. The Developer shall be credited for the sanitary sewer trunk oversizing.
The Developer will be reimbursed by the City upon completion of the
trunk sewer installation, the City’s inspection and approval of the work,
and submittal of evidence, acceptable to the City, that the Developer has
paid contractors for the trunk line work.

D. Developer shall enter into a Declaration for Maintenance of Stormwater
Facilities.

II. ON-SITE WORK.

A. On-Site Work.  The On-site Work shall consist of the improvements
described in the approved Plans, to include any approved subsequent
amendments, and shall be in compliance with all applicable statutes, codes
and ordinances of the City.  The Work includes all on-site exterior

Attachment 8:  Site Improvement Performance Agreement

135



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 2 of 11 

amenities as shown on the approved Plans and as required by the plan 
approval, such as, but not limited to:  landscaping, private driveways, 
parking areas, sanitary sewer extension, water system extension, storm 
drainage systems, curbing, lighting, fencing, fire lanes, sidewalks, exterior 
building architectural design and building elements, site grading and 
erosion control measures.   

 
Such improvements shall be completed in accordance with Section IV 
herein.   

 
B. Cost Estimates.  The Developer shall provide the City with a written 

estimate of all applicable costs of the On-Site Work, itemized by type; the 
estimates shall be based upon the actual estimates provided by the 
contractors who are to do the Work.  Said cost estimates shall be reviewed 
by the City, and the City shall establish the actual amount of the financial 
guarantee.  The description and estimated cost of Developer's On-site 
Work are as follows: 

 
 Description of Improvements Estimated Costs 

1. Lighting $ 33,456.00 
2. Fences / Screen Structures $ 30,000.00 
3. Trash Disposal Structures $ 0.00 
4. Curbing / Islands / Delineators $ 17,800.00 

5. Storm Drainage Systems / Sewers / Catch Basins / 
Culverts / Swales $ 44,500.00 

6. Public Trails and / or Sidewalk $ 0.00 
7. Private Trails and / or Sidewalk $ 0.00 
8. Driveway / Curb cut / Parking Lot / Fire Lane $ 75,000.00 
9. Water mains / Hydrants / Sanitary Sewers $ 146,000.00 
10. Landscaping $ 25,000.00 
11. Site Grading $ 140,000.00 
12. Erosion Control $ 6,000.00 
 Total Estimated Cost of Developer Improvements $ 517,756.00 
 Security Requirement (Total * 35%) $ 181,215.00 

 
III. DEVELOPER FEES 
 

A. Trunk Sanitary Sewer Connection Fees  
 
The City established trunk utility connection fees to uniformly distribute 
the costs of public trunk sanitary sewer infrastructure. The Trunk Utility 

136



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 3 of 11 

Connection Fee consists of two components; a Trunk Charge and an 
Availability Charge. 
  
Trunk Charge 
 
The trunk charge shall be paid at the time of subdivision approval or at the 
time of hook-up, whichever is first.  The Sanitary Sewer Trunk Charge is 
$1,737.00 per unit. Commercial/Industrial/Institutional (CII) trunk charges 
are based on a factor of 2.92 units per acre.   
 
Availability Charge 
 
For residential properties, the availability charge shall be paid at the time 
of subdivision approval or at the time of hook-up, whichever is first.  
Commercial/Industrial/Institutional availability charges shall be paid at the 
time of building permit.  Fees are based on the number of sanitary access 
charge (SAC) units assigned by Metropolitan Council Environmental 
Services (MCES).   
 

City Sewer (CSAC)  $1,626.00 Per SAC Unit 
 

Trunk sewer unit charges addressed under this paragraph are in addition to 
any SAC charges imposed by Metropolitan Council Environmental 
Services.   

B. Trunk Water Connection Fees 

The City established trunk utility connection fees to uniformly distribute 
the costs of public trunk water infrastructure.  The Trunk Utility 
Connection Fee consists of two components; a Trunk Charge and an 
Availability Charge. 

Trunk Charge 
 
The trunk charge shall be paid at the time of subdivision approval or at the 
time of hook-up, whichever is first.  The Water Trunk Charge is $2,496.00 
per unit. Commercial/Industrial/Institutional (CII) trunk charges are based 
on a factor of 2.92 units per acre.  
 
Availability Charge 
 
For residential properties, the availability charge shall be paid at the time 
of subdivision approval or at the time of hook-up, whichever is first.  
Commercial/Industrial/Institutional availability charges shall be paid at the 
time of building permit.  Fees are based on the number of sanitary access 
charge (SAC) units assigned by Metropolitan Council Environmental 

137



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 4 of 11 

Services (MCES).   
 

City Water (CWAC) $1,570.00 Per SAC Unit 
 

C. Surface Water Management Area Charges 
 
The City established a trunk area charge to uniformly distribute the costs 
of public trunk surface water infrastructure and water quality 
improvements. The Surface Water Management Charge shall be based on 
developable acreage. 
 

  Acre Fee 
1. Sanitary Sewer Trunk Unit Fee ($1,737/unit; 2.92 units/Acre)  Paid 
2. City Sewer Availability Fee ($1,626/SAC Unit)  Due w/ Building 

Permit 
3. Water Trunk Unit Fee ($2,496/unit; 2.92 units/Acre)  Paid 
4. City Water Availability Fee ($1,570/SAC Unit)  Due w/ Building 

Permit 
5. City Surface Water Management Fee (/Acre)  Paid 
 Total Estimated (Budget) Developer Fees  $0.00 

 
D. Metropolitan Council Environmental Services (MCES) Sewer Availability 

Charges (SAC) are in addition to the fees referenced above and shall be 
determined by MCES, and shall be paid with the Building Permit. 

 
IV. RECORD DRAWINGS  
 

A. Upon project completion, Developer shall submit record drawings, in 
electronic format, of all public and private infrastructure improvements, 
including grading, sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer facilities, and 
roads, constructed by Developer. The as-built survey must include, but is 
not limited to, proposed and final contours with adequate elevation shots 
to show conformance, property irons (to be exposed in field), low floor 
and low opening elevations, and the 100-Year High Water Level (HWL) 
of all ponds, lakes, and wetland areas. The files shall be drawn in Anoka 
County NAD 83 Coordinate system and provided in both AutoCAD .dwg 
and Adobe .pdf file formats.  The plans shall include accurate locations, 
dimensions, elevations, grades, slopes and all other pertinent information 
concerning the complete work.  The Developer shall also submit certified 
compaction testing results for the site grading operations. 

B. A summary of the record plan attribute data for the storm sewer, water 
main, and sanitary sewer structures and pipes shall be submitted in the 
form of an Excel Spreadsheet as provided by the City Engineer. 

138



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 5 of 11 

C. No securities will be fully released until all record drawings have been 
submitted and accepted by the City Engineer. 

V. COMPLETION DATE. 
 

If the activities authorized by site and building plan approval are not initiated 
within twelve (12) months from the final execution of this agreement, then 
Developer will need to start the site and building plan approval process from 
the beginning.    

 
VI. GUARANTEE.  
 

A. The Developer will fully and faithfully comply with all terms and 
conditions of any and all contracts entered into by the Developer. 
Concurrently with the execution hereof by the Developer, the Developer 
will furnish to, and at all times thereafter maintain with the City, a cash 
deposit, certified check, or Irrevocable Letter of Credit, based on thirty-
five (35%) percent of the total estimated cost of Developer's On-site 
Work.  An Irrevocable Letter of Credit shall be for the exclusive use and 
benefit of the City of Lino Lakes and shall state thereon that the same is 
issued to guarantee and assure performance by the Developer of all the 
terms and conditions of this Development Contract, construction of all 
required improvements in accordance with the ordinances and 
specifications of the City and guarantees the workmanship and materials 
for the landscape improvements for a period of one year following the 
City’s acceptance of the landscape improvements.  The City reserves the 
right to draw, in whole or in part, on any portion of the Irrevocable Letter 
of Credit for the purpose of guaranteeing the terms and conditions of this 
contract, if Developer has been found to be in default of this agreement 
and only after providing Developer with written notice and opportunity to 
cure any default.  The Irrevocable Letter of Credit shall be automatically 
extended for additional periods of one year from present or future 
expiration dates unless sixty (60) days prior to such the City Clerk or 
Administrator is notified in writing by certified mail or overnight mail that 
the Letter of Credit will not be renewed.  
 

B. Upon written request, The City will grant a reduction of the Letter of 
Credit, or cash deposit based on prepayment or the value of the completed 
improvements at the time of the requested reduction. The Developer may 
make such requests three times throughout the life of this agreement, with 
the third and/or final request being at the completion of the project.  The 
City will respond to such request within 30 days time.  Prior to the final 
acceptance of the Developer’s Improvements the City shall require a 
Letter of Credit or Cash Escrow to cover the warranty provisions of the 
agreement.  The amount shall be agreed to by the City Engineer and 
Developer and Developer may use the Letter of Credit discussed in 
Section V.A above. 

139



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 6 of 11 

 
VII. REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS. 
 

A. The Developer agrees to establish a non-interest bearing escrow account 
with the City in an amount established by the City Engineer or his 
designee for the payment of all City fees and costs incurred by the City 
related to the On-site Work, including, but not limited to, the following: 
   

1. Site Plan Review Fee $3,500.00 

2. Administration 
(Legal, Engineering, Planning and Contract Administration) $18,800.00 

3. Negative Short Term Escrow Balance $112.41 
 Total Estimated (Budget) Costs for Escrow Account $22,412.41 

 
B. If it appears that the actual costs incurred will exceed the estimate or that 

the actual costs incurred will be less than the estimate, then Developer and 
City shall review the costs required to complete the project.  In such case, 
if the actual costs exceed the estimate, then Developer shall promptly pay 
the additional sums to the City to pay for the agreed upon increase.  
However, in such case where the actual costs are less than the estimate, 
the City shall promptly reimburse to Developer any amounts overpaid by 
the Developer.  The Developer may request a statement of the account 
each month for review. 

 
C. Intentionally Deleted.  

 
VIII. REMEDIES FOR BREACH 
 

A. The City shall give prior written notice to the Developer of any default 
hereunder before proceeding to enforce such financial guarantee or before 
the City undertakes any work for which the City will be reimbursed 
through the financial guarantee.  If within twenty (20) days after receipt of 
such written notice to it, the Developer has not notified the City by stating 
in writing the manner in which the default will be cured and the time 
within which such default will be cured, the City will proceed with the 
remedy it deems reasonably appropriate. 

 
B. At any time after the completion date and any extensions thereof, if any of 

the work is deemed incomplete, the City may proceed in any one or more 
of the following ways to enforce the undertakings herein set forth, and to 
collect any and all expenses reasonably incurred by the City in connection 
therewith, including, but not limited to, engineering, legal, planning and 
litigation costs and expense.  The enumeration of the remedies hereunder 
shall be in addition to any other remedies available to the City.   

 

140



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 7 of 11 

1. Specific Performance.  The City may in writing direct the surety or 
the Developer to cause the Work to be undertaken and completed 
within a specified reasonable time.  If the Developer fails to cause 
the Work to be done and completed in a manner and time 
reasonably acceptable to the City, the City may proceed to bring an 
action for specific performance to require work to be undertaken.   

 
2. Completion by the City.  The City, after written notice, may enter 

the premises and proceed to have the Work done either by contract, 
by day labor or by regular City forces. The Developer may not 
question the manner of doing such work or the letting of any such 
contracts for the doing of any such work; provided that all such 
work is performed in a reasonable manner, the costs are reasonable 
and the work is completed in a good and workman-like manner 
and in accordance with the approved plans and specifications.  
Upon completion of such work, the Developer shall promptly pay 
the City the full cost thereof as aforesaid. 

 
3. Deposit of Financial Guarantee.  In the event the financial 

guarantee has been submitted in the form of a Letter of Credit, the 
City may draw on the Letter of Credit the sum equal to the 
reasonably estimated cost of completing the Work, plus the City's 
reasonably estimated expenses as defined herein, including any 
other reasonable costs, expenses, and damages for which the surety 
may be liable hereunder, but not exceeding the amount set forth on 
the Letter of Credit.  The money shall be deemed to be held by the 
City for the purpose of reimbursing the City for any reasonable 
costs incurred in completing the Work as hereinafter specified.  
Any funds remaining after completion of the project shall be 
promptly returned to the Developer.   

 
IX. OCCUPATION OF PREMISES 
 

The Developer agrees that it will not cause to be occupied any portion of the 
building or improvements to be constructed upon the premises until completion of 
the building and site improvements as more fully described in the approved plans 
and following issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
X. INSURANCE 
 

Developer or its general contractor shall take out and maintain until one year after 
the City accepted the Developer Improvements, public liability and property 
damage insurance covering personal injury, including death, and claims for 
property damage which may arise out of the Developer's or general contractor’s 
work, as the case may be, or the work of its subcontractors or by one directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them.  Limits for bodily injury and death shall be 

141



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 8 of 11 

not less than Five Hundred Thousand and no/100 ($500,000.00) Dollars for one 
person and One Million and no/100 ($1,000,000.00) Dollars for each occurrence; 
limits for property damage shall be not less than One Million and no/100 
($1,000,000.00) Dollars for each occurrence; or a combination single limit policy 
of Two Million and no/100 ($2,000,000.00) Dollars or more. The City, its 
employees, its agents and assigns shall be named as an additional insured on the 
policy, and the Developer or its general contractor shall file with the City a 
certificate evidencing coverage prior to the City signing the plat.  The certificate 
shall provide that the City must be given ten days advance written notice of the 
cancellation of the insurance. The certificate may not contain any disclaimer for 
failure to give the required notice. 

 
XI. REIMBURSEMENT FOR LITIGATION EXPENSES 

 
The City and Developer agree that the prevailing party in any litigation pertaining 
to the enforcement of this Agreement shall be entitled to reimbursement from the 
non-prevailing party for all reasonable costs incurred by said prevailing party 
including court costs and reasonable engineering and attorneys' fees.  

 
XII. VALIDITY 
 

If a portion, section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph or phrase in this 
Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect or void any of the other provisions of 
the Site Improvement Performance Agreement.   

 
XIII. GENERAL 
 

A. Binding Effect.  The terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon 
and inure to the benefit of the heirs, representatives, successors and 
assigns of the parties hereto and shall be binding upon all future owners of 
all or any part of the Property and shall be deemed covenants running with 
the land.   

 
B. Notices.  Whenever in this Agreement it shall be required or permitted that 

notice or demand be given or served by either party to this Agreement to 
or on the other party, such notice or demand shall be delivered personally 
or (i) mailed by United States mail by certified mail (return receipt 
requested) or (ii) sent by nationally recognized overnight carrier to the 
addresses hereinbefore set forth on Page 1.  Such notice or demand shall 
be deemed timely given when delivered personally or when deposited in 
the mail or the overnight carrier in accordance with the above.  The 
addresses of the parties hereto are as set forth on Page 1 until changed by 
notices given as above. 

 

142



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 9 of 11 

C. Incorporation by Reference.  All plans, special provisions, proposals, 
specifications and contracts for the improvements furnished and let 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be and hereby are made a part of this 
Agreement by reference as fully as if set out herein in full.   

 
D. Hours of Construction Activity.  Construction activity shall be limited to 

the hours set out as follows: 
 

Monday through Friday 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  
Saturday 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
Sunday and Holidays   No working hours allowed 

 
XIV. VIOLATIONS/BUILDING PERMITS 
 

In the event that Developer violates any of the covenants and agreements 
contained in this Site Improvement Performance Agreement and to be performed 
by the Developer, the City, at its option, and after providing written notice and 
opportunity to cure to Developer in addition to the rights and remedies as set out 
hereunder may refuse to issue building permits to any property within the 
development and/or stop building construction within the development until such 
time as such default has been corrected to the satisfaction of the City.   
 

  

143



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 10 of 11 

CITY OF LINO LAKES 
 
By _________________________   

Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
By_________________________   
 City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF ANOKA ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________ day of 
____________, 2024, by Rob Rafferty as Mayor of the City of Lino Lakes on behalf of 
said City. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF ANOKA ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________ day of 
____________, 2024 by Hannah Lynch as City Clerk of the City of Lino Lakes on behalf 
of said City. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 
  

144



 Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility Site Performance Agreement page 11 of 11 

DEVELOPER      
 
By ____________________________   

Lariat Companies, Inc.   
 
       
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ANOKA ) 
 
 On this _______ day of _______________, 2024, before me, a Notary Public 
within and for said County, personally appeared, _______________________________, 
who executed the foregoing instrument.   
 
 
 ______________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
 
City of Lino Lakes 
600 Town Center Parkway 
Lino Lakes, Minnesota 55014 

145



440 Park Court
(Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility)

City Council Meeting
April 22, 2024



Land Use Application
• Applicant: Lariat Companies Inc

• 36,000 sf multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building

• Land Use Application
• Conditional Use Permit for two (2) or more principal buildings
• Site and Building Plan Review

• Previous Review-Concept Plan
• July 12, 2023: Planning & Zoning Board
• August 7, 2023 and December 4, 2024: Work Session

2



3

History

• September 10, 2018: CUP for mini self-storage 
facility approved

• Phase I (north): mini self-storage facility

• Phase II (south): potential future mini self-
storage facility

• January 2023: 
• New zoning ordinance adopted
• Mini self-storage no longer allowed in LI
• Indoor self-storage facility is allowed

• Total site = 5.74 acres       Phase II = 2.5 acres 

• Zoning = LI, Light Industrial
• Construction related business and indoor 

self-storage are permitted uses
• Only LI permitted uses allowed in 

units/bays.
• No CUP uses e.g. auto repair, outdoor 

storage



4

Site & Building Plan Review

• Access to Phase II through the 
Phase I mini self-storage private 
driveways. 

• No access Lake Dr. allowed.

• Setbacks are met
• Lake Dr = 50ft
• Park Ct = 30ft

• 40 parking stalls required
• 31 parking spaces  +
• 11 proof of parking provided

• Stormwater Management
• New infiltration basin

• 12” watermain exists Park Ct
• 8” sanitary sewer installed Lake Dr

• Impervious Surface: 
• 3.39ac proposed < 3.98 ac allowed

Proof of 
Parking

New 
SW 
Pond

Existing 
SW Pond



5

Site & Building Plan Review

• Total building is 36,000sf 

• Multi-tenant industrial
• 8 units on north side
• 3 units on east side

• Indoor Self Storage (19,997sf)

• Trash and mechanical inside

• Trip generation statement: 
• 165 daily trips
• CSAH 23 = A-Minor Arterial

• Performance Standards Met 
except for ADA routes required to 
all units

• Cannot be behind parking 
spaces 

• Parked vehicles cannot block 

Staging 
Area



6

Landscaping and Lake Drive Screen

• 4ft berm
• Landscaping 
• 4ft high chain link fence similar to that along Park Court

• Tree Preservation, Mitigation, Open Area, Buffer & Screen 
Standards, Foundation Plantings, and Canopy Cover 
requirements have been met.

• Required to re-establish existing berm landscaping



7

Architectural Plans

• Smooth integral colored 
CMU (cream)

• Smooth colored accent 
concrete brick flint (slate) 

• Hollow metal doors (black 
frames) 

• Prefinished overhead 
doors.

• Each unit has a window. 

• Height: 18’2” < 45’

• Restrooms = Yes

• Rooftop Mechanical shall 
be screened.



8

Smoothface CMU vs Splitface CMU 



9

Indoor Storage Photos

• Storage Unit Sizes:
• 5’x10’, 10’x10’, 10’x20’ 



Planning & Zoning Board
• March 13, 2024: P&Z held public hearing.

• There were no public comments.

• P&Z recommended approval with 6-0 vote.

• Added condition that existing berm be re-established

10



Council Action
• Resolution No. 24-34 details Findings of Fact

• Consider Resolution No. 24-34 Approving Conditional Use Permit 
for Two (2) or More Principal Buildings

• Consider Resolution No. 24-35 Approving Parking Deferment 
Agreement

• Consider Resolution No. 24-36 Approving Site Improvement 
Performance Agreement

11



Unused slides

12



13

Wetland

• May 2023: Wetland 
Delineation Report completed 
by Jacobson Environmental 

• Wetland boundaries have 
changed since first August 
2017 delineation

• RCWD has not issued a formal 
Notice of Decision (NOD) 

• There appear to be no wetland 
impacts proposed with the 
Phase II industrial building.  

• RCWD NOD is required prior to 
City Council action

•



Comprehensive Plan
• Resource Management System 

• Land Use Plan

• Housing Plan

• Transportation Plan

• Sanitary Sewer and Water Supply Plan
14



Findings of Fact-CUP Administrative
1. The proposed development application has been found to be consistent
with the design standards listed in City Code Section 1007.020(4).

• Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
• Compatible with present and future land uses
• Conforms to performance standards
• Traffic
• Adequate and safe water supply
• Adequate and sage sanitary sewer supply
• No expenditure of City funds
• No activity involving the handling or storage of flammable or explosive 

materials

15



Findings of Fact-CUP Administrative

2. Will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the 
general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, 
glare, or odors.

• The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building will not 
involve activities detrimental to any person, property, or the general welfare.

16



Findings of Fact-CUP Administrative

3. Will not result in the destruction, loss, or damage of a natural, scenic or 
historic feature of major importance.

• The proposed multi-tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building will not 
result in the destruction of a natural, scenic, or historic feature of major 
importance.

17



Findings of Fact - CUP 2 Principal Buildings
City Code Section 1007.120(9) must also be met:

(g) Two (2) or more principal buildings on same lot provided such buildings 
relate to a permitted or conditional use that is operated as a single business or 
enterprise.  

• The Phase I-Lino Lake Storage mini self-storage facility and Phase II multi-
tenant industrial and indoor self-storage building shall be operated as a single 
business or enterprise.

18



1 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 6G 

STAFF ORIGINATOR: Katie Larsen, City Planner 

MEETING DATE: April 22, 2024 

TOPIC:  Jansen Addition 
i. Consider Resolution No. 24-40 Approving Final Plat

ii. Consider Resolution No. 24-41 Approving Development
Agreement

VOTE REQUIRED:  Simple Majority 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

INTRODUCTION 

Staff is requesting Council consideration of the above noted items. 

Complete Application Date: March 5, 2024 
60-Day Review Deadline: May 4, 2024 

120-Day Review Deadline: July 3, 2024 
Environmental Board Meeting: N/A 

Park Board Meeting: N/A 
Planning & Zoning Board Meeting: April 10, 2024 

 City Council Work Session: April 22, 2024 
 City Council Meeting: April 22, 2024 

The applicant, Boulder Contracting Inc, is proposing to subdivide the existing parcel located at 
523 Lois Lane into three (3) single family lots for the purpose of constructing two (2) new single 
family homes.  The lot is 1.11 gross acres (48,510 sf). 

The Land Use Application is for the following: 

• Final Plat
o 3 lots

This staff report provides updates to the February 12, 2024 Council staff report related to the 
preliminary plat.  Changes are either narratively described or shown as strikethrough 
(deletions) or underline (additions).   

146



2 
 

This staff report is based on the following information: 
 

• Certificate of Survey and Resource Inventory Map prepared by EG Rud & Sons, Inc. 
dated December 7, 2023 February 14, 2024 

• Landscape Plan prepared by Plowe Engineering dated December 7, 2023February 27, 
2024 

• Preliminary Plat prepared by EG Rud & Sons, Inc. dated December 7, 2023 February 14, 
2024 

• Tree Inventory/Removals prepared by EG Rud & Sons, Inc. dated December 7, 2023 
February 14, 2024 

• Civil Plan Set prepared by Plowe Engineering dated December 7, 2023 February 29, 2024 
• Soil Boring Data prepared by ITCO Allied Engineering Company dated December 18, 

2023 
• Site Drainage Narrative and Calculations prepared by Plowe Engineering, Inc. dated 

December 7, 2023 February 29, 2024 
 

Previous Council Actions: 
  

• February 12, 2024:  Resolution No. 24-11 approving Preliminary Plat 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Existing Site Conditions 
 
The residential lot contains an existing house, attached garage, deck, fence, and detached shed.  
The house was built in 1982.  The Certificate of Survey indicates Zimmerman Fine Sand and 
Soderville Fine Sand.  Groundwater was encountered at approximately 7.5 to 9 feet.   
 
Zoning 
 

Current Zoning R-1, Single Family Residential 

Current Land Use Rural Residential 

2040 Comp Plan Land Use Low Density Sewered Residential 

Utility Staging Area 1A=2018-2025 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use 
 

Direction Zoning Current Land Use Future Land Use 

North R-1  Single Family 
Residential 

Low Density Sewered 
Residential 

147



3 
 

South R-1 Rural Residential Low Density Sewered 
Residential 

East R-1 Single Family 
Residential 

Low Density Sewered 
Residential 

West R-1 Rural Residential Low Density Sewered 
Residential 

 
Density and Land Area Calculations 
 
The following chart implements Met Council’s formula for calculating net density.  
 

Gross Area (acres) 1.11 

Wetlands & Water Bodies 0.00  

Public Parks & Open Space 0.00  

Arterial ROW 0.00 

Other (Utility Transmission Easement) 0.00  

Other (Wetland Buffer Area) 0.00  

Net Area (acres) 1.11 

# of Units 3 

Gross Density (units/acre) 2.70 

Net Density (units/acre) 2.70 
 
The parcel is guided low density residential development and allows for 1.6 to 3.0 units per net 
acre.  The proposed net density of 2.70 units per acre is consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
Zoning Requirements 
 
The parcel is zoned R-1, Single Family Residential.  Lot 2 will contain the existing single family 
house.  Lots 1 and 3 are being created for the purpose of constructing two (2) single family 
homes. 
 

148



4 
 

 R-1 Requirements 
Lot 1 

(Proposed 
House) 

Lot 2 
(Existing 
House) 

Lot 3 
(Proposed 

House) 

Min. Lot Size 10,800 sf  10,867 sf 19,425 sf 
11,407 sf 12,075 sfa 

Min. Lot Width      

--Corner Lot 100 ft NA NA NA 

--Interior Lot 80 ft 80.5 ft 84.5 ft 80.0 ft 

Min. Lot Depth  135 ft 135.0 ft 135.0 ft 154 ft 

Building Setback (ft)     
-From Streets 

Lois Lane and Arlo Lane  
(Both Minor Collector) 

 

30 ft 40.0 ft 40.0 ft 40.0 ft 

-Rear Yard     

--Principal 30 ft 30.0 ft 70 ft 30.0 ft 

-Accessory 5 ft Future 50 ft (deck) Future 

-Side Yard     

--Principal 10 ft 10 ft 11.6 ft 10.0 ft 

--Accessory 5 ft 10 ft 10.6 ft 10.0 ft 

Impervious Surface 65% TBD w/ building 
permit 21.3% TBD w/ building 

permit 
 
a Lot Size = Gross Area – Oversized Easements = Net Area (23,835 sf – 11,760sf = 12,075 sf) 
 
The proposed lots meet zoning requirements.   
 
Building Requirements 
 
At the time of building permit, the single family houses proposed on Lots 1 and 3 will be 
reviewed for compliance regarding impervious surface, building footprint area, garage size, and 
design and construction standards. 
 
Subdivision Ordinance 
 
The legal description of the parcel is Lot 2, Block 1, Mar Don Acres and was platted in 1978.  
Similar residential subdivisions of Mar Don Acres lots have been approved in previous years 
(Cavegn Estates-2006, Hailey Manor-2007, Isabell Estates-2014 and Golden Acre-2017). 

149



5 
 

Conformity with the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code 
 
The preliminary plat and final plat are consistent with the comprehensive plan for low density 
residential development and zoning code requirements for R-1, Single Family Residential as 
discussed above. 
 
Blocks and Lots 
 
The final plat contains Lots 1-3, Block 1, Jansen Addition.  As noted above, Lot 2 contains the 
existing house and Lots 1 and 3 propose new single family homes. 
 
Streets and Alleys 
 
Lots 1 and 2 are served by Lois Lane which is a minor collector road.  The existing road right-of-
way width is 60 ft which is consistent with previously approved plats in the area.  No additional 
road right-of-way is needed. 
 
Lot 3 is served by Arlo Lane which is a minor collector road.  The existing road right-of-way 
width is 60 ft which is consistent with previously approved plats in the area.  No additional road 
right-of-way is needed. 
 
Staff evaluated the need to extend the 30ft wide road right-of-way along the entire north lot 
line to potentially serve 511 Lois Lane and determined it wasn’t feasible. An additional 30ft of 
road right-of-way would be needed from 7901 Henry Lane and a public street would need to be 
constructed to serve the potential one (1) or two (2) additional lots that could be created at 511 
Lois Lane.   
 
Easements 
 
The Mar Don Acres final plat has existing drainage and utility easements dedicated per the plat. 
These easements will remain in place. 
 
Standard drainage and utility easements at least ten (10) feet wide have been provided along 
all other lot lines.  An oversized drainage and utility easement exists on Lot 3 in the front, side, 
and rear yards over the stormwater management facility. 
 
Storm Water Management and Erosion and Sediment Control 
 
Per the December 18, 2023 RCWD CAPROC, the project includes subdivision of an area 
exceeding one acre, thus triggering Rule C. The single-family residential subdivision does not 
create a new public road nor a private road serving three or more lots; therefore, Rules C.6 and 
C.7 do not apply per Rule C.12(d). An infiltration basin is proposed to meet City requirements. 
The applicant submitted a stormwater drainage report with the application. The proposed BMP 

150



6 
 

and associated stormwater modeling is not required by the District due to the Rule C.12(d) 
exception and has not been reviewed as part of this application.  
 
Utilities 
 
Sanitary Sewer 
 
A 2” pressurized sanitary sewer main exists along this section of Lois Lane and laterals are 
stubbed to the lot line on both Lots 1 and 2.  The existing house is on private septic system and 
shall connect to municipal sanitary sewer. The private septic system shall be removed.  The new 
house proposed on Lot 1 will also be connected to municipal sanitary sewer. 
 
An 8” sanity sewer main exists along Arlo Lane and two (2) sets of laterals are stubbed to the lot 
line on Lot 3. The new house will be connected to municipal sanitary sewer. The other lateral 
shall be removed. 
 
Watermain 
 
An 8” watermain exists along Lois Lane and laterals are stubbed to the lot line on both Lots 1 
and 2.  The existing house is currently on a private well and shall connect to the municipal 
watermain. The private well shall be disconnected from the house.  It may be used for irrigation 
or it shall be abandoned. The new house proposed on Lot 1 will also be connected to the 
municipal watermain. 
 
An 8” watermain exists along Arlo Lane and two (2) sets of laterals are stubbed to the lot line 
on Lot 3. The new house will be connected to the municipal watermain. The other lateral shall 
be removed. 
 
Public Land Dedication 
 
The proposed subdivision is within the Highland Meadow Park neighborhood service area. The 
development is not within the greenway system. Arlo Lane is identified as a future trail corridor 
that is proposed to extend from Highland Meadows Park to Woodduck Trail and eventually to 
4th Avenue. 
 
The City will require cash in lieu of land dedication for the two (2) new lots.  Lot 2 with the 
existing house will not be charged a park dedication fee.  
  

Park Dedication Fees 

Total # of Lots = 2 

x 2024 Park Dedication Fee $3,300 

= Total Due $6,600 

151



7 
 

Landscape Plan 
 
Per the December 27, 2023 Environmental Board staff report: 
 
Boulevard Trees 
 
Boulevard trees are required for all new residential subdivisions at a rate of one tree per lot 
frontage. 
 
The existing house has trees in the right-of-way area and will not require an additional boulevard 
tree. 
 
Boulevard trees are shown on the landscape plan for lots 1 and 3.  The tree on Lot 1 must be has 
been moved into the right-of-way area. 
 
Boulevard tree requirements are not currently met. 
 
Tree Preservation and Mitigation Standards 
 
The purpose of these standards is to protect valuable trees and stands of vegetation while not 
interfering with landowners’ reasonable use and development of property.  The goal is to 
minimize unnecessary loss of habitat, biodiversity, and forest resources and to replace removed 
trees in areas where tree cover is most critical. 
 
A tree survey was performed that identified: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Of the 49 total trees in the inventory, 24 trees will be removed, 25 will be preserved. 
 
The 25 trees planned for preservation must have Tree Protection Zones installed in accordance 
with the City Tree Protection Fence Detail.   
 
23 of the tree removals are in the Basic Use Area (BUA).  8 of these are in Environmentally 
Sensitive Area (ESA) and will require mitigation at a rate of one tree planted for four removed. 
15 of the 23 trees in the BUA are in non-ESA and will not require mitigation. 
 
One tree planned for removal is in non-BUA and non-ESA.  This tree will require mitigation at a 
one to one ratio. 
 

Total Trees 49 
Total Trees Removed 24 
Total Trees Preserved 25 
Mitigation Trees Required 3 

152



8 
 

Overall, for the 24 removals, 3 mitigation trees will be required.  These trees must be have been 
added to the Landscape Plan. 
 
Tree Preservation and Mitigation Standards have not been met. 
 
Open Areas Landscape Standards 
 
Open areas standards do not apply to single family residential lots. 

     
Buffer and Screen Standards 
 
The purpose of this requirement is to separate and buffer different land use types, screen roads 
and parking, and screen utility and loading areas.  The project property and surrounding 
properties are zoned R1, so buffer and screen standards do not apply. 
 
Canopy Cover 
 
Canopy cover standards to not apply to single family residential development. 
 
Foundation Landscaping 
 
Foundation landscaping standards do not apply to single family residential development. 
 
Sod and Ground Cover Standards 
 
All areas not otherwise improved in accordance with the approved site plans shall have a 
minimum depth of 4 inches of topsoil and be sodded including boulevard areas.  Seed may be 
provided in lieu of sod in certain cases, including when the area is adjacent to natural areas or 
wetlands. 
 
Mn DOT seed mix (33-261) is noted in the details for the stormwater basin.  The ground cover 
types must be have been added to the Landscape Plan.   
 
Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) 

 
An Environmental Assessment Worksheet is not mandated.  The three (3) unattached 
residential units are under the 250 unattached unit threshold required for a mandatory EAW. 
 
Wetlands 
 
There are no wetlands on site. 
 
Shoreland Management Overlay 
 

153



9 
 

The parcel is not located within a Shoreland Management Overly district. 
 
Floodplain Management 
 
There is no FEMA floodplain on site. 
 
Impervious Surface Coverage 
 
The maximum allowed impervious surface coverage per lot is 65%. Lot 2 (existing house) is at 
21.3% and compliant.  The impervious coverage for Lot 1 and 3 will be evaluated with those 
individual building permits and surveys. 
 
Traffic Study 
 
A traffic study was not required for one (1) new single family lot on the Lois Lane and one (1) 
single family lot on Arlo Lane. Both streets are minor collectors and have capacity for one (1) 
additional single family home on each street. 
 
Title Commitment 
 
The City Attorney reviewed the title commitment and final plat and had no concerns. 
 
Agreements 
 
Stormwater Maintenance Agreement  
 
A stormwater maintenance agreement is not required since a stormwater management plan is 
not required per City Code Chapter 1010. 
 
Development Agreement and Final Plat 
 
The applicant shall has submitted a Land Use Application for final plat after preliminary plat 
approval.  A Development Agreement will then has been prepared by the City as part of the final 
plat application.  
 
Comprehensive Plan 
 
Jansen Addition is consistent with the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan in regards 
to land use, housing, economic development, transportation, local water management plan, 
sanitary sewer, water supply and parks, greenway and trails. 
 
Land Use Plan 
 

154



10 
 

Per the 2040 Comprehensive Plan, the parcel is guided low density residential development and 
allows for 1.6 to 3.0 units per net acre.  The proposed three (3) single family and net density of 
2.70 units per acre is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The site is located in Planning District 2 and is guided for low density residential development.  
There are no specific planning recommendations for this site.   
 
Housing Plan 
 
A goal of the housing plan is to maintain existing housing stock to insure a high-quality 
environment in all residential neighborhoods. It is a policy to encourage in-fill housing where 
appropriate. 
 
Jansen Addition meets the goals of the housing plan by supporting in-fill housing. 
 
Economic Development 
 
The three (3) lot single family residential development does not negatively impact the City’s 
economic development plan. 
 
Transportation Plan 
 
A goal of the transportation plan is to ensure that streets are as safe as possible. Lois Lane and 
Arlo Lane are minor collector roads and they both have capacity to accommodate one (1) new 
single family home. 
 
Local Water Management Plan 
 
The purpose of the water management program is to protect, preserve, and use natural surface 
and groundwater storage and retention systems and prevent erosion of soil into surface water 
systems. 
 
Jansen Addition protects the natural surface and groundwater storage with the construction of 
a stormwater management infiltration basin. Erosion and sediment control practices will also 
be implemented. 
 
Sanitary Sewer Plan 
 
The goal of the sanitary sewer plan is to maintain the city’s residents and businesses with an 
affordable and safe sanitary sewer system. 
 
The existing house and two (2) new houses will be municipally served by 2” pressurized system 
and 8” sanitary sewer main. The existing sanitary sewer system has capacity for three (3) single 
family houses.  

155



11 

Water Supply Plan 

A goal of the water supply plan is to provide residents and businesses with affordable potable 
water that is safe and of high quality for daily consumption and fire demand.   

The existing house and two (2) new houses will be municipally served by 8” watermain. The 
existing water supply system has capacity for three (3) single family houses.  

Parks, Greenways and Trails 

A goal and policy of the parks, greenways and trails plan is to continue to development and 
fund recreational activities in the City.  The City will require cash in lieu of land dedication for 
the two (2) new lots. 

Findings of Fact 

Council Resolution No. 24-40 details the findings of fact. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning & Zoning Board reviewed the Jansen Addition final plat on April 10, 2024 and 
recommended approval with a 6-0 vote. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 24-40
2. Final Plat
3. Resolution No. 24-41
4. Development Agreement

156



1

CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-40 

RESOLUTION APPROVING JANSEN ADDITION FINAL PLAT 

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2024, the City received a land use application for Jansen 
Addition final plat hereafter referred to as Development; and 

WHEREAS, City staff completed review of the proposed Development based on the 
following plans and information: 

• Certificate of Survey and Resource Inventory Map prepared by EG Rud & Sons, Inc.
dated February 14, 2024

• Landscape Plan prepared by Plowe Engineering dated February 27, 2024
• Preliminary Plat prepared by EG Rud & Sons, Inc. dated February 14, 2024
• Tree Inventory/Removals prepared by EG Rud & Sons, Inc. dated February 14, 2024
• Civil Plan Set prepared by Plowe Engineering dated February 29, 2024
• Soil Boring Data prepared by ITCO Allied Engineering Company dated December 18,

2023
• Site Drainage Narrative and Calculations prepared by Plowe Engineering, Inc. dated

February 29, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the City Council the approved the preliminary plat with Resolution No. 24-11 on 
February 12, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Board reviewed and recommended approval of the 
Development on April 10, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed Development is not considered premature and meets the 
performance standards of the subdivision and zoning ordinance; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The final plat substantially conforms to the approved preliminary plat subject to the
conditions listed below.

2. The City Attorney reviewed the status of title/property ownership related to the final
plat.

3. A Development Agreement has been drafted and shall be executed.
4. Conditions attached to approval of the preliminary plat have been fulfilled or secured by

the Development Agreement.

Attachment 1: Resolution No. 24-40

157



2

5. All fees, charges and escrow related to the preliminary or final plat have been paid in
full.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the final plat is approved subject to the following conditions: 

1. The existing house on proposed Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen Addition shall connect to
municipal watermain and municipal sanitary sewer.

2. The private septic system located on proposed Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen Addition shall be
removed.

3. The private well located on proposed Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen Addition shall be capped if it
cannot be used for private irrigation.

4. The new houses on proposed Lots 1 and 3, Block 1, Jansen Addition shall connect to
municipal watermain and municipal sanitary sewer main.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the following items shall be addressed prior to releasing the final 
plat mylars: 

1. All comments from City Engineer Memo dated April 3, 2024.
2. The existing shed shall be removed.
3. The existing fence shall be relocated onto proposed Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen Addition.

a. An approved zoning permit is required to relocate the existing fence.
4. Sheet S2, Preliminary Plat:

a. A note shall be added to the preliminary plat stating, “Lots 1-3 may have limited
ability to construct accessory structures due to oversized drainage and utility
easements.”.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the following items shall be addressed prior to issuing building 
permits for Lot 1 or Lot 3, Block 1, Jansen Addition: 

1. The existing house on proposed Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen Addition shall connect to
municipal watermain and municipal sanitary sewer.

2. Proof that the private septic system on Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen Addition has been properly
removed shall be submitted to the City upon completion.

3. If removed, proof that the private well located on Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen Addition has
been properly capped shall be submitted to the City upon completion.

4. A note shall be added to the certificate of survey submitted with the building permit
applications for Lots 1 and 3 stating, “Lot may have limited ability to construct accessory
structures due to oversized drainage and utility easements.”.

5. Copies of the following executed and recorded documents shall be submitted to the
City:

a. Final Plat
b. Development Agreement

158



3

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April, 2024. 

___________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

159



Attachment 2:  Final Plat
160



CITY OF LINO LAKES 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-41 

RESOLUTION APPROVING JANSEN ADDITION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, on April 22, 2024 the City Council passed Resolution No. 24-40 approving Jansen 
Addition final plat; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s subdivision ordinance and conditions of approval require the execution of 
a development agreement between the Developer and the City of Lino Lakes 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes approves the 
Development Agreement between Boulder Contracting, LLC and the City of Lino Lakes for 
Jansen Addition and authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to execute such agreement on behalf 
of the City 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes this 22nd day of April 2024. 

_______________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

Attachment 3:  Resolution No. 24-41
161



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

Jansen Addition 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this _____ day of ____________, 2024, by and between the City 
of Lino Lakes (“City”), a Minnesota municipal corporation, and Boulder Contracting LLC. 
(“Developer”). 

1. Subdivision.  Developer received preliminary plat approval from the City by Resolution No.
24-11 for a plat known as Jansen Addition (“Subdivision”). Unless otherwise stated, all
terms and conditions of this Agreement relate to work within the Subdivision.

2. Final Plat Approval.  The City’s approval of the final plat of Jansen Addition is contingent
upon execution and delivery of this agreement, all required petitions, bonds, security,
and other documents required by the City, and satisfaction of all conditions of approval
required by Resolution No. 24-40. The Final Plat including 3 lots is attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

3. Phased Development.  Not Applicable.

4. Developer Plans.

a. The Subdivision shall be developed in accordance with the following Developer
Plans, original copies of which are on file with the City Engineer.  The Developer
Plans may be prepared and revised after entering into this Agreement but must
be approved by the City before commencement of any work.  If the plans vary
from the written terms of this Agreement, this Agreement shall control.

b. The Developer Plans as of the date of this Agreement are:

i. Jansen Addition final plat, prepared by E.G. Rud and Sons Inc., received
February 27, 2024.

ii. Jansen Addition Civil Construction plan set containing 6 sheets and
Landscaping Plan containing 1 sheet, prepared by Plowe Engineering Inc.,
revised February 29, 2024, received February 29, 2024.

5. Permits.  The Developer shall be responsible for securing all site grading and
development approvals and all other required permits from all appropriate Federal,
State, Regional and Local jurisdictions prior to the commencement of site grading or
construction and prior to the City awarding construction contracts for public
improvements.

Attachment 4:  Development Agreement
162



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 2 

6. Developer Improvements.  The Developer shall secure a contractor to install the
improvements described in this paragraph, or otherwise required herein to be installed
by Developer, hereinafter referred to as the “Developer Improvements,” which
contractor shall be approved by the City in its absolute and sole discretion.  The
Developer Improvements shall be constructed per the City Standard Specifications for
Construction dated January 2024.

The cost of Developer Improvements is as shown on Exhibit B attached hereto.  All
Developer Improvements shall require City inspection and approval and, where
appropriate, the approval of any other governmental agency having jurisdiction. The
Developer shall construct and install at the Developer's expense the following
improvements according to the following terms and conditions:

a. Site Grading

i. No grading shall commence until all requirements of the Rice Creek
Watershed District (RCWD) have been satisfied.

ii. All site grading shall be conducted in accordance with the grading plan as
approved by the City and in accordance with NPDES and RCWD
requirements.  The Developer shall perform the work in accordance with
a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) pursuant to Minnesota
Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) requirements.

b. Grading and Erosion Control

i. The Developer shall grade the site to within 0.2 foot of the grades shown
on the approved grading plan. No deviations will be allowed unless a
revised plan is submitted and approved in writing by the City and all
other regulatory agencies.

ii. The street right-of-way, storm water storage ponds, and surface water
drainage ways shall be graded prior to commencement of utility
construction. Four inches of topsoil and a City approved seed mix shall be
installed within disturbed areas, and seed mix information shall be
provided to the City. Surface water management systems shall be
maintained by the Developer until they are accepted by the City.

iii. The Developer shall be responsible for ascertaining that site geotechnical
and groundwater conditions are adequate and conforming with the
grading and site improvement as proposed. The Developer shall provide
testing from an approved testing company.

163



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024  

 page 3 

iv. The Developer’s engineer shall certify in writing, with an as-built survey, 
that all grading complies with the approved grading plan prior to issuance 
of any building permits. 

v. The Developer shall promptly clear dirt and debris within public rights-of-
way and drainage and utility easements resulting from construction by 
the Developer, its purchasers, builders and contractors within five (5) 
days after notification by the City.  The Developer shall be responsible for 
all necessary street and storm sewer maintenance, including street 
sweeping, until all home construction is completed, unless otherwise 
released by the City.   Warning signs shall be placed when hazards 
develop in streets to prevent the public from traveling on them, including 
detour signs if necessary.  If and when the streets become impassable, 
such streets shall be barricaded and closed.  The Developer shall maintain 
a smooth, hard driving surface and adequate drainage on all temporary 
streets.  

c. Final street grading, subbase, gravel base, concrete curb and gutter, and 
bituminous base and wear course, street signs and striping – Not Applicable. 

d. Sidewalks, trails and street lighting – Not Applicable. 

e. Storm sewers – Not Applicable. 

f. Sanitary sewer mains, laterals or extensions, including all necessary building 
services and other appurtenances, shall be furnished and installed. 

g. Water mains, laterals or extensions, including all necessary building services, 
hydrants, valves and other appurtenances, shall be furnished and installed.   

h. The Developer shall place iron monuments at all lot, block, and outlot corners 
and at all other angle points on boundary lines consistent with the final plat.  
Iron monuments shall be placed after all street and lawn grading has been 
completed in order to preserve the lot markers for future property owners.  Lot 
corner irons on the back property line shall be installed so that the top of the 
iron corresponds to the finished ground elevation in accordance with the 
approved grading plan. Guard stakes shall be appropriately installed to mark 
these irons. 

i. Landscaping shall be furnished and installed in accordance with the approved 
plans. The landscaping shall be maintained by the Developer until accepted by 
the City’s Environmental Coordinator. 

164



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 4 

Developer shall be responsible for vegetative restoration of ponding areas, 
outlots, wetland mitigation areas, and other native planting areas identified on 
the plans in accordance with City Standard Specifications for Construction.  
Developer shall provide a contract with a qualified firm for the establishment 
and maintenance of all open space / native plant areas. Said contract shall cover 
a minimum of the 3 year establishment period, from the date of planting. 

j. The Developer shall arrange for all gas, telecommunications, cable, internet,
electric, and other necessary private utility services to the Subdivision in
accordance with City Code and State law.  The utilities are required to be located
within a joint trench.

k. The Developer shall install mailboxes in accordance with Federal and Postal
Service regulations.

l. The Developer shall install wetland buffer signs– Not Applicable.

7. Time of Performance.  The Developer shall install all required improvements
enumerated in Paragraph 6 by November 30, 2024. The Developer may request a
reasonable extension of time from the City.  If the extension is granted, it shall be
conditioned upon updating the security posted by the Developer to reflect cost
increases and the extended completion date.

8. City Improvements.  No City installed improvements are proposed to be constructed for
this subdivision. 

9. Record Drawings.

a. Upon project completion, Developer shall submit record drawings, in electronic
format, of all public and private infrastructure improvements, including grading,
sanitary sewer, watermain, storm sewer facilities, and roads, constructed by
Developer.  The files shall be drawn in Anoka County NAD 83 Coordinate system
and provided in both AutoCAD .dwg and Adobe .pdf file formats.  The plans shall
include accurate locations, dimensions, elevations, grades, slopes and all other
pertinent information concerning the complete work.

b. The Developer shall submit certified compaction testing results for the site
grading operations that certify that grading work meets pertinent compaction
requirements for the project.

c. A summary of the record plan attribute data for the storm sewer, watermain,
and sanitary sewer structures and pipes shall be submitted in the form of an
Excel Spreadsheet as provided by the City Engineer.

165



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 5 

d. No securities will be fully released until all record drawings have been submitted
and accepted by the City Engineer.

10. Faithful Performance of Construction Contracts and Security.

a. The Developer will fully and faithfully comply with all terms and conditions of any
and all contracts entered into by the Developer for the installation and construction
of all Developer Improvements. Concurrent with the execution hereof by the
Developer, the Developer will furnish to, and at all times thereafter maintain with
the City, a cash deposit, certified check, or Irrevocable Letter of Credit, based on
one hundred fifty (150%) percent of the total estimated cost of Developer's
Improvements as determined by the City Engineer.

b. Irrevocable Letter of Credit.  If an Irrevocable Letter of Credit is utilized, it shall be
for the exclusive use and benefit of the City of Lino Lakes and shall state that it is
issued to guarantee and assure performance by the Developer of all the terms and
conditions of this Development Agreement and construction of all required
improvements referenced therein in accordance with the ordinances and
specifications of the City.  The letter shall be in a form, and from a bank, as
approved by the City.  The City reserves the right to draw, in whole or in part, on
any portion of the Irrevocable Letter of Credit for the purpose of guaranteeing the
terms and conditions of this agreement.  The Irrevocable Letter of Credit shall be
automatically extended for additional periods of one year from present or future
expiration dates on an annual basis, unless at least sixty (60) days prior to the
expiration date, the Community Development Director and City Engineer, are
notified by certified mail or overnight courier, that the Letter of Credit will not be
extended.

c. Alternatively, the Developer may enter into a Public Improvement Surety
Agreement, subject to City approval.

d. Reduction of Security. The Developer may request reduction of the Letter of Credit
or cash deposit based on prepayment or the value of the completed improvements
at the time of the requested reduction.

11. Warranty.  The Developer warrants all utility work required to be performed by it against
poor material and faulty workmanship for a period of two years after its completion and
acceptance by the City.  All new streets shall be warranted by the developer for a period
of one year from the time the final inspection of the street is completed and accepted
by the City Council. All trees, grass and sod shall be warranted to be alive, of good quality
and disease free for 12 months after planting.  Prior to final acceptance of the Developer
Improvements the City shall require a Surety Bond or Cash Escrow to cover the warranty
provisions of this Agreement.  The amount shall be 20 % of the original cost of construction
identify in Exhibit B.

166



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024  

 page 6 

12. Dedication.  The Developer shall dedicate to the City, at no cost to the City, any 
permanent or temporary easements that may be necessary for the construction and 
installation of the Developer Improvements. All such easements required by the City 
shall be in writing, in recordable form, containing such terms and conditions as the City 
shall determine. 

13. Ownership of Improvements.  Upon completion and City acceptance of the work and 
construction required by this Agreement, the public improvements lying within public 
rights-of-way and easements shall become City property without further notice or 
action unless the improvements are to be deemed private infrastructure. 

14. Recording and Release.  The Developer agrees that the terms of this Development 
Agreement shall be a covenant on any and all property included in the Subdivision.  The 
Developer agrees that the City shall have the right to record a copy of this Development 
Agreement with the Anoka County Recorder to give notice to future purchasers and 
owners.  This shall be recorded against the Subdivision described on Page 1.   

15. Escrow for City’s Costs. 

a. The Developer agrees to establish a non-interest bearing escrow account with 
the City in an amount determined by the City Administrator or their designee for 
the payment of all costs incurred by the City related to the development of the 
Subdivision including, but not limited to, the following (See Exhibit B for 
breakdown of costs): 

i. Planning/ Review 

ii. Administration - 3% of Developer Improvement Costs 

iii. City Engineering and Legal  

iv. Street lighting installation – Not Applicable 

v. Boulevard tree planting 

vi. Street, storm sewer and pond maintenance 

vii. Property Taxes.  Should the recording of the Final Plat occur after July 1st, 
any and all property taxes on any public property dedicated as a part of 
this plat shall be the responsibility of the Developer.   

b. If the above escrow amounts are insufficient, the Developer shall make such 
additional deposits as required by the City.  The City shall have a right to 
reimburse itself from the Escrow with suitable documentation supporting the 
charges. 

167



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 7 

16. Developer Fees.  At the time of execution of this Agreement, the Developer shall pay
the following fees related to the development of the Subdivision (See Exhibit B for
breakdown of costs):

a. Park Dedication

The Park Dedication Fee for this site is calculated as follows: 

2 units x $3,300 per unit = $6,600 

b. The Developer shall pay 15 months of maintenance and energy costs for street
lights – Not Applicable.

c. GIS Mapping Fees

d. Trunk Sewer Connection Fees

The City established trunk utility connection fees to uniformly distribute the
costs of public trunk sanitary sewer infrastructure. The Trunk Utility Connection
Fee consists of two components; a Trunk Charge and an Availability Charge.

Trunk Charge

The trunk charge shall be paid at the time of subdivision approval or at the time of
hook-up, whichever is first.  Residential trunk charges are based on one unit per
dwelling unit.

Sanitary Sewer $1,737.00 Per Unit 

Availability Charge 

For residential properties, the availability charge shall be paid at the time of 
subdivision approval or at the time of hook-up, whichever is first. Residential 
uses shall be assigned one unit per dwelling unit unless otherwise noted by 
MCES. 

City Sewer (CSAC) $1,626.00 Per SAC Unit 

Trunk sewer unit charges addressed under this paragraph are in addition to any 
SAC charges imposed by Metropolitan Council Environmental Services.  An 
estimate of the total charge and the trunk utility credit for developer installed 
trunk oversizing is specified in Exhibit B. 

168



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024  

 page 8 

e. Trunk Water Connection Fees 

The City established trunk utility connection fees to uniformly distribute the 
costs of public trunk water infrastructure.  The Trunk Utility Connection Fee 
consists of two components; a Trunk Charge and an Availability Charge. 

Trunk Charge 
 
The trunk charge shall be paid at the time of subdivision approval or at the time of 
hook-up, whichever is first.  Residential trunk charges are based on one unit per 
dwelling unit. 
 

Water $2,496.00 Per Unit 
 
Availability Charge 
 
For residential properties, the availability charge shall be paid at the time of 
subdivision approval or at the time of hook-up, whichever is first. Residential 
uses shall be assigned one unit per dwelling unit unless otherwise noted by 
MCES. 
 

City Water (CWAC) $1,570.00 Per SAC Unit 
 

An estimate of the total charge and the trunk utility credit for developer installed 
trunk oversizing is specified in Exhibit B. 

f. Surface Water Management Area Charges 

The City established a trunk area charge to uniformly distribute the costs of 
public trunk surface water infrastructure and water quality improvements. The 
Surface Water Management Charge shall be based on developable acreage, in 
the amount specified in Exhibit B. The charge shall be paid at the time of 
subdivision approval. 

17. Assessment of Charges and Waiver of Rights. 

a. In consideration of the construction of City Improvements listed in Section 7 and 
/or provision of sewer, water and storm water services, the Developer agrees 
that the costs of City Improvements together with Trunk Sewer Unit Charge, 
Trunk Water Unit Charge and the Surface Water Management Area Charge 
(collectively, “the Charges”) may be assessed against the Subdivision parcels.  
The Developer hereby waives any and all procedural and substantive objections 
to the special assessments, including notice and hearing requirements, any claim 

169



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024  

 page 9 

that the assessments exceed the benefit to the properties, and any right to 
appeal. 

b. Unless the Developer pays the entire balance owed for the Charges 
contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, the Developer shall 
provide to the City a cash escrow or irrevocable letter of credit in an amount 
equal to 35% of the total assessments for the Charges as estimated by the City 
Engineer (see Exhibit B).  The letter of credit shall be in a form, and from a bank, 
as approved by the City.  The letter of credit or cash escrow may be used by the 
City upon default by Developer in the payment of special assessments.  The cash 
escrow or letter of credit shall remain in place throughout the term of the special 
assessments.  The letter of credit may not be terminated without the City’s 
written consent. 

c. Developer, its heirs, successors or assigns, agrees that within 30 days after the 
date of sale of a lot, the Developer, its heirs, successors or assigns, at its own 
cost and expense, shall pay the entire unpaid charges assessed or to be assessed 
under this Agreement against such property. 

d. If a certificate of occupancy is issued before the special assessments have been 
levied, the Developer, its heirs, successors or assigns shall pay the City the sum 
of cash equal to 120% of the Engineer's estimate of the special assessments for 
such Charges that would be levied against the property.  Upon such payment the 
City shall issue a certificate showing the assessments are paid in full.  
Notwithstanding the issuance of said certificate, the Developer shall be liable to 
the City for any deficiency and the City shall pay the Developer any surplus 
arising from the payment based upon such estimate.   

e. Acceleration of Special Assessments upon Default.  In the event the Developer 
violates any of the covenants, conditions or agreements herein, violates any 
ordinance, rule or regulation of the City, County of Anoka, State of Minnesota or 
other governmental entity having jurisdiction over the plat or development, or 
fails to pay when due any installment of any special assessment levied pursuant 
to this agreement, or any interest thereon, the City at its option, in addition to its 
rights and remedies hereunder, after 10 days written notice to the Developer, 
may declare all of the unpaid special assessments which are then estimated or 
levied pursuant to this agreement due and payable in full, with interest.  The City 
may seek recovery of such special assessments due and payable from the 
security provided herein.  In the event that such security is insufficient to pay the 
outstanding amount of such special assessments plus accrued interest the City 
may certify such outstanding special assessments in full to the County Auditor 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 429.061, subdivision 3, for collection the 
following year.  The City, at its option, may commence legal action against the 

170



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 10 

Developer to collect the entire unpaid balance of the special assessments then 
estimated or levied pursuant hereto, with interest, including reasonable 
attorney's fees, and Developer shall be liable for such special assessments and, if 
more than one, such liability shall be joint and several.  In addition to any other 
rights and remedies upon Developer’s default, the City may refuse to issue 
building permits and/or Certificates of Occupancy for any property within the 
Subdivision until such time as such default has been corrected to the satisfaction 
of the City.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City for all costs incurred by 
the City in the enforcement of this agreement, or any portion thereof, including 
court costs and reasonable engineering and attorneys' fees, if the City prevails in 
any enforcement action. 

18. Building Permits. No building permits shall be issued until:

a. Site grading, certified compaction testing, City sewer, water, storm sewer, and
bituminous base construction of the streets, temporary street signs, gas, electric,
telecommunication, cable and internet are installed and approved by the City,
except as provided below

i. Model Homes: Structures may be installed as model homes consistent
with City ordinance upon approval of the final plat.  A record drawing of
the site grading for the model home lots shall be submitted prior to
issuance of building permits for the model homes.

ii. If any building permits for model homes are issued prior to the
completion and acceptance of public improvements, the Developer
assumes all liability and costs resulting in delays in completion of public
improvements and damage to public improvements caused by the City,
the Developer, its contractors, subcontractors, material men, employees,
agents or third parties.  Any such costs shall be reimbursed from
Developer’s escrow.

19. Special Provisions.

a. The existing house on proposed Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen Addition shall connect to
municipal watermain and municipal sanitary sewer.

b. The private septic system located on proposed Lot 2, Block1, Jansen Addition
shall be removed.

c. The private well located on proposed Lot 2, Block1, Jansen Addition shall be
capped if it cannot be used for private irrigation.

d. The new houses on proposed Lots 1 and 3, Block 1, Jansen Addition shall
connect to municipal watermain and municipal sanitary sewer main.

e. The existing shed shall be removed.
f. The existing fence shall be relocated onto proposed Lot 2, Block 1, Jansen

171



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 11 

Addition. 

20. Hours of Construction Activity.

All construction activity shall be limited to the hours as follows: 
Monday through Friday 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
Sunday and Holidays   No working hours allowed 

21. Insurance.  Developer or its general contractor shall take out and maintain until one
year after the City accepted the Developer Improvements, public liability and property
damage insurance covering personal injury, including death, and claims for property
damage which may arise out of the Developer's or general contractor’s work, as the
case may be, or the work of its subcontractors or by one directly or indirectly employed
by any of them.  Limits for bodily injury and death shall be not less than Five Hundred
Thousand and no/100 ($500,000.00) Dollars for one person and Two Million and no/100
($2,000,000.00) Dollars for each occurrence; limits for property damage shall be not less
than One Million and no/100 ($1,000,000.00) Dollars for each occurrence; or a
combination single limit policy of Two Million and no/100 ($2,000,000.00) Dollars or
more. The City, its employees, its agents and assigns shall be named as an additional
insured on the policy, and the Developer or its general contractor shall file with the City
a certificate evidencing coverage prior to the City signing the plat.  The certificate shall
provide that the City must be given ten days advance written notice of the cancellation
of the insurance. The certificate may not contain any disclaimer for failure to give the
required notice.

22. Developer’s Default.  In the event of default by the Developer as to any of the work to
be performed by it hereunder, the City may, at its option, perform the work and the
Developer shall promptly reimburse the City for any expense incurred by the City,
including but not limited to attorney and engineering fees, provided the Developer is
first given notice of the work in default, not less than 48 hours in advance.  This
Agreement is a license for the City to act, and it shall not be necessary for the City to
seek a court order for permission to enter the land.  When the City does any such work,
the City may, in addition to its other remedies, levy the cost in whole or in part as a
special assessment against the Subject Property.  Developer waives its rights to notice of
hearing and hearing on such assessments and its right to appeal such assessments
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, chapter 429.

23. General.

a. Binding Effect

172



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024  

 page 12 

The terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto and 
shall be binding upon all future owners of all or any part of the Subdivision and 
shall be deemed covenants running with the land, unless otherwise released 
pursuant to section 14 of this Agreement. 

 
b. Validity. 

 
If a portion, section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph or phrase in this 
agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect or void any of the other provisions of 
the Development Agreement. 

 
c. Notices 

 
Whenever in this Agreement it shall be required or permitted that notice or 
demand be given or served by either party to this Agreement to or on the other 
party, such notice or demand shall be delivered personally, or mailed by United 
States mail to the addresses below, or sent by email to the email address below. 
Such notice or demand shall be deemed timely given when delivered personally 
or when deposited in the mail in accordance with the above or when emailed.  
The addresses of the parties are as set forth until changed by notice given as 
above. 
 

Brian Jansen 
Boulder Contracting LLC. 
16522 Wake Street NE 
Ham Lake MN 55304 
brian@bouldercontractingllc.com 

 
   Community Development Director 
   City of Lino Lakes 
   600 Town Center Parkway 
   Lino Lakes, MN 55014 

  mgrochala@linolakes.us 
 

173



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 13 

24. Land Use Controls - Planned Unit Development. - Not Applicable

174



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024  

 page 14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Developer have caused this Development Agreement to be 
executed in their respective corporate names by their duly authorized officers, all as of the date and 
year first written above. 
 
CITY OF LINO LAKES 
 
By _________________________ 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST 
     
By _________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF ANOKA  ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________ day of ____________, 2024, 
by Rob Rafferty as Mayor of the City of Lino Lakes on behalf of said City. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF ANOKA  ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________ day of ____________, 2024, 
by Hannah Lynch as City Clerk of the City of Lino Lakes on behalf of said City. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 

175



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 15 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

176



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 16 

Execution page of the Developer to the Development Agreement, dated as of the date and year 
first written above. 

DEVELOPER  

By ______________________ 

Its ______________________ 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 

On this _______ day of _______________, 2024, before me, a Notary Public within and 
for said County, personally appeared ____________, __________________ of 
___________________. (Developer), who executed the foregoing instrument.   

______________________________ 
Notary Public 

This instrument was drafted by: 

City of Lino Lakes 
600 Town Center Parkway 
Lino Lakes, Minnesota 55014 

177



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 17 

CONSENT AND SUBORDINATION 

_____________________________, the holder of a mortgage dated ___________________, filed 
for record with the County Recorder, Anoka County, Minnesota, on _________________, as 
Document No. _____________________, hereby consents to the recording of this Development 
Agreement and agrees that its rights in the property affected by the Development Agreement 
shall be subordinated thereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, __________________, has caused this Consent and Subordination to 
be executed this _____ day of ______________, 2024. 

______________________________________ 
By:  
Its:  

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 

On this _______ day of _______________, 2024, before me, a Notary Public within and 
for said County, personally appeared _______________________, who executed the foregoing 
instrument.   

______________________________ 
Notary Public 

178



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024 

page 18 

EXHIBIT A 

Final Plat 

179



180



Jansen Additon 
Development Agreement 

April 22, 2024  

 page 19 

EXHIBIT B 

Securities, Escrows & Fees 

181



3/13/2024

EXHIBIT B

Securities, Escrows & Fees

PROJECT: JANSEN ADDITION NUMBER OF REU's: 3
APPLICANT: BOULDER CONTRACTING, LLC NO. OF LOT FRONTAGES 3

AREA (ACRES): 1.11

IMPROVEMENTS COST

DEVELOPER IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Private)
SITE GRADING $10,919
EROSION CONTROL $0
LANDSCAPING $0
PARKING LOT $0
STORM SEWER CONST. $0
SANITARY SEWER CONST. $0
WATERMAIN CONST. $0
LIGHTING $0

Total $10,919
Letter of Credit Amount X 35% $3,822

ESCROW for CITY'S COSTS
PLANNING/ REVIEW $0
ADMINISTRATION $1,000
ENGINEER PLAN REVIEW $1,600
ENGINEER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES $2,200
PROJECT FINAL DOCUMENTS & CITY ENGINEER $2,500
STREET LIGHT INSTALLATION $0
STREET & STORMWATER MAINTENANCE $2,800
PROPERTY TAXES $0
BOULEVARD TREE PLANTING $1,200

Total $11,300

DEVELOPMENT FEES
PARK DEDICATION $6,600
PARK DEDICATION CREDIT $0

Subtotal Park Dedication Fee $6,600

AUAR $0
GIS MAPPING FEE $180
STREET LIGHTING OPERATION $0

Total $6,780

TRUNK SANITARY SEWER
TRUNK CHARGE PER (ACRE OR UNIT) $5,211
AVAILABILITY CHARGE PER SAC UNIT $4,878
SANITARY LATERAL 80' ARLO LN ($77.20/FT) $6,176
SANITARY ASSESSMENT LOIS LN (18,457/2)*ENR $16,192

TRUNK WATERMAIN 
TRUNK CHARGE PER (ACRE OR UNIT) $7,488
AVAILABILITY CHARGE PER SAC UNIT $4,710
WATERMAIN LATERAL 80' ARLO LN ($73.00/ft) $5,840
WATERMAIN ASSESSMENT LOIS LN (18,457/2)*ENR $16,192

TOTAL TRUNK SEWER & WATER FEES $66,687

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT $8,796
TOTAL SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT FEES $8,796

Total $75,483
Letter of Credit Amount X 35% $26,419

SUMMARY OF SECURITIES, ESCROW & FEES
SECURITY: DEVELOPER IMP'MENT COSTS $3,822
ESCROW FOR CITY COSTS $11,300
DEVELOPMENT FEES $6,780
SECURITY: TRUNK FEES $26,419

182



Jansen Addition
City Council Meeting
April 22, 2024



Land Use Application
• Land Use Application = Final Plat

• 3 lots

• Applicant = Brian Jansen, Boulder Contracting

• Property = 523 Lois Lane

• Subdivide the existing parcel into 3 single family lots for purpose of 
constructing 2 new single family homes

2



3

PRELIMINARY PLAT

• February 12, 2024:  Resolution No. 24-
11 approving Preliminary Plat

• Lot 2 = Existing house

• Lot 1 & 3 = New houses

• Lois Lane and Arlo Lane
• Minor Collector Roads

• Zoned R-1, Single Family Residential

• Lot size, widths, and setbacks met

3

2
1

Lois Lane

Arlo Lane

He
nr

y 
La

ne



4

FINAL PLAT

• Final plat substantially conforms 
to preliminary plat

• Outstanding preliminary plat 
comments have been addressed

• Park Dedication Fees
• 2 new lots = $6,600

3

2 1

Lois Lane

Arlo Lane

He
nr

y 
La

ne



Council Action
• April 10, 2024:  PZ recommended approval with 6-0 vote

• Consider Resolution No. 24-40 Approving Final Plat

• Consider Resolution No. 24-41 Approving Development Agreement

5



Unused 

6



7

EXISTING CONDITIONS

• Parcel= 1.11 acres

• Existing house built 1982

• Zoning = R-1, Single 
Family

• 2040 Comp Plan-Land Use
• Low Density Res
• 1.6-3.0 net upa

• Proposed: 2.7 net upa
• Consistent

• No Wetlands

• No Floodplain



8

Staff evaluated the need to extend the 30ft wide road right-of-way along the entire north lot line to potentially serve 
511 Lois Lane and determined it wasn’t feasible. 

An additional 30ft of road right-of-way would be needed from 7901 Henry Lane and a public street & utilities would 
need to be constructed to serve the potential one (1) or two (2) additional lots that could be created at 511 Lois 
Lane. 



9

Stormwater Management

• Per RCWD and City Code Section 1011.011, storm water 
management requirements do not apply to SF residential 
subdivisions creating <7 lots

• However, the applicant has proposed an infiltration basin on 
Lot 3

• 1 - 1.5ft deep

• Post-development discharge rates < pre-development rates

3

2
1



Zoning Requirements

10

R-1 
Requirements

Lot 1
(Proposed

House)

Lot 2
(Existing 
House)

Lot 3
(Proposed 

House)
Min. Lot Size 10,800 sf 10,867 sf 19,425 sf 12,075 sfa

Min. Lot Width 

--Corner Lot 100 ft NA NA NA

--Interior Lot 80 ft 80.5 ft 84.5 ft 80.0 ft

Min. Lot Depth 135 ft 135.0 ft 135.0 ft 154 ft

Building Setback (ft)
-From Streets

Lois Lane and Arlo Lane 
(Both Minor Collector) 30 ft 40.0 ft 40.0 ft 40.0 ft

-Rear Yard

--Principal 30 ft 30.0 ft 70 ft 30.0 ft

-Accessory 5 ft Future 50 ft (deck) Future

-Side Yard

--Principal 10 ft 10 ft 11.6 ft 10.0 ft

--Accessory 5 ft 10 ft 10.6 ft 10.0 ft

Impervious Surface 65% TBD w/ 
building permit 21.3% TBD w/ 

building permit



11

Tree Preservation

• Reviewed by EC and EB

• 49 total trees

• 24 trees removed

• 25 trees preserved

• 3 mitigation trees required

Boulevard Trees

• Required on Lots 1 & 3

• Open Area, Canopy Cover 
and Foundation 
Landscaping does not apply



Comprehensive Plan
• Land Use Plan

• Consistent with low density residential development

• Housing Plan
• Compatible with adjacent single family homes and promotes infill development

• Economic Development
• Does not negatively impact

• Transportation Plan
• Lois and Arlo Lane are minor collector roads and have capacity for 1 new home

12



Comprehensive Plan
• Local Water Management Plan

• Infiltration basin

• Sanitary Sewer Plan
• Capacity for 3 single family homes

• Water Supply Plan
• Capacity for 3 single family homes

• Parks, Greenways and Trails
• Cash in lieu of land dedication

13



1 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM 6H 

STAFF ORIGINATOR: Michael Grochala, Community Development Director 

MEETING DATE: April 22, 2024 

TOPIC: Water Treatment Plant Funding, Michael Grochala 

i. Consider Resolution No. 24-43, Authorize Minnesota Public
Facilities Authority Application for Water Treatment Plant
Grant Agreement

ii. Consider Resolution No. 24-45, Authorize Minnesota Public
Facilities Authority Application for Water Treatment Plant
Loan Agreement, Michael Grochala

VOTE REQUIRED:  Simple Majority 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

INTRODUCTION 

Staff is requesting City Council authorization to submit information and enter into grant and 
loan agreements with the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority MPFA. 

BACKGROUND 

During the 2023 Legislative session $13,500,000 was appropriated to the MPFA for a grant to 
the City of Lino Lakes for the water treatment facility.   To receive this money the City must 
submit the required information and enter into a grant agreement. 

The attached resolution certifies that the City has the legal authority to enter into a grant 
agreement and has the capacity to ensure proper construction, operation and maintenance of 
the facility for its design life.  The resolution also designates the Mayor and Clerk as the signers 
of the agreement. 

Additionally, the City is receiving a $3 million grant through the MPFA Emerging Contaminants 
program along with a low interest loan through the Drinking Water Revolving Loan Program for 
the balance of the project cost ($18,000,000).  This program requires the submittal of 
application materials in preparation for the loan agreement.   

Once the required information has been submitted the MPFA will prepare the grant and loan 
agreement for City execution. 

183



2 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. 24-43 and Resolution No. 24-45 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 24-43
2. Resolution No. 24-45

184



RESOLUTION NO. 24-43 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF LINO LAKES TO SUBMIT INFORMATION 
TO THE MINNESOTA PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY (MPFA) AND TO ENTER INTO 

A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE MPFA. 

WHEREAS, under the provisions contained in Laws of Minnesota 2023 chapter 72, article 1, 
section 23, subd. 15, $13,500,000 was appropriated to the MPFA 

“For a grant to the city of Lino Lakes to design, engineer, construct, furnish, and equip a water 
treatment facility, including accompanying water utility infrastructure.” 

WHEREAS, to receive this money, the City of Lino Lakes must submit required information and 
enter into a Grant Agreement with the MPFA, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that the City 
has the legal authority to apply for the grant, and the financial, technical, and managerial 
capacity to ensure proper construction, operation and maintenance of the project for its design 
life. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Grant Agreement shall be executed on behalf of the City of 
Lino Lakes by the signature of its Mayor and its City Clerk.  In the event of disability or 
resignation or other absence of either such officer, the Grant Agreement may be signed by the 
manual signature of that officer who may act on behalf of such absent or disabled officer.  In 
case either such officer whose signature shall appear on the Grant Agreement shall cease to be 
such officer before delivery of the Grant Agreement, such signature shall nevertheless be valid 
and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if he or she had remained in office until delivery. 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes on this 22nd day of April, 2024. 

___________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

SEAL

185



RESOLUTION NO. 24-45 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF LINO LAKES TO SUBMIT INFORMATION 
TO THE MINNESOTA PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY (MPFA) AND TO ENTER INTO 

A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH THE MPFA. 

WHEREAS, the City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota is proposing to construct a water treatment plant, 
and 
WHEREAS, the City is eligible for a loan from the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Lino Lakes, Minnesota that the City is 
hereby applying to the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority for a loan from the Drinking Water 
Revolving Fund for improvements to its municipal drinking water system as described in the 
loan application. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City estimates the amount of the loan to be $18,000,000 or 
the as-bid cost of the project less any grant amounts.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City has the legal authority to apply for the loan, and the 
financial, technical, and managerial capacity to repay the loan and ensure proper construction, 
operation and maintenance of the project for its design life. 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Lino Lakes on this 22nd day of April, 2024. 

___________________________ 
Rob Rafferty, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Hannah Lynch, City Clerk 

SEAL

186


	04-22-2024 Council Meeting Agenda
	Proclamation - Arbor Day
	Item 1A, 04-22-2024 Expenditures
	Item 1B, 03-25-2024 Council Meeting Minutes
	Item 1C, 04-08-2024 Council Work Session Minutes
	Item 1D, 04-08-2024 Council Meeting Minutes
	Item 1E, Approval of the Hiring of Part-Time Staff for the Rookery Activity Center
	Item 5A, Resolution No. 24-22, Accepting Quotes and Awarding a Construction Contract, 2024 Trail Maintenance Project
	Item 6A, Resolution No. 24-44, Approving Centerville Lake Alum Treatment Cost-Share Agreement with Rice Creek Watershed District
	Item 6B, Resolution No. 24-42, Accepting Quotes and Awarding a Contract for 2024 Spring Boulevard Tree Planting
	Item 6C, Resolution No. 24-37, Accepting Bids and Awarding a Construction Contract, 2024 Rejuvenator Project
	Item 6D, Resolution No. 24-38, Approving the CSAH 49/CRJ Reconstruction Project Joint Powers Agreement with the City of Shoreview
	Item 6E, Resolution No. 24-39, Ordering Project, Approving Plans, Authorizing Ad For Bids, Decorative Lighting for the CSAH 49/CRJ Roundabout Project
	Item 6F, 440 Park Court
	Resolution No. 24-34 Approving Conditional Use Permit for Two (2) or More Principal Buildings
	Resolution No. 24-35 Approving Parking Deferment Agreement
	Resolution No. 24-36 Approving Site Improvement Performance Agreement

	Item 6G, Jansen Addition
	Resolution No. 24-40 Approving Final Plat
	Resolution No. 24-41 Approving Development Agreement

	Item 6H Water Treatment Plant Funding
	Resolution No. 24-43, Authorizing Minnesota Public Facilities Authority Application for Water Treatment Plant Grant Agreement
	Resolution No. 24-45, Authorizing Minnesota Public Facilities Authority Application for Water Treatment Plant Loan Agreement

	ADPF6E2.tmp
	440 Park Court�(Lino Lakes Tech Center & Storage Facility)
	Land Use Application
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Planning & Zoning Board
	Council Action
	Unused slides
	Slide Number 13
	Comprehensive Plan
	Findings of Fact-CUP Administrative
	Findings of Fact-CUP Administrative
	Findings of Fact-CUP Administrative
	Findings of Fact - CUP 2 Principal Buildings

	ADP9DE2.tmp
	Jansen Addition
	Land Use Application
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Council Action
	Unused 
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Zoning Requirements
	Slide Number 11
	Comprehensive Plan
	Comprehensive Plan




